A copy of this document, which has been prepared in accordance with the Prospectus Rules of the UK
Listing Authority made under section 85(1) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, has been
filed with the Financial Services Authority in accordance with rule 3.2.1 of the Prospectus Rules.
This Registration Document includes particulars given in compliance with the Prospectus Rules of the
UK Listing Authority for the purposes of giving information with regard to Guaranteed Investment
Products 1 PCC Limited (the Company). The information contained in this Registration Document
should be read in the context of, and together with, the information contained in the relevant
Securities Note and the relevant Summary and distribution of this Registration Document is not
authorised unless accompanied by, or supplied in conjunction with, copies of the relevant Securities
Note and the relevant Summary. This Registration Document includes particulars given in
compliance with the Listing Rules of the Channel Islands Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors of the Company, whose names appear on
page 19 of this document, and the Company itself, accept responsibility for the information contained
in this document and declare that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the
information contained in this document is, to the best of their knowledge, in accordance with the facts
and contains no omission likely to affect its import. The Guarantor accepts responsibility for the
information contained in Part E of this document and declares that, having taken all reasonable care to
ensure that such is the case, the information contained in Part E of this document, and for which the
Guarantor is responsible, is to the best of its knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no
omission likely to affect its import. Santander UK plc accepts responsibility for the information
contained in Part F of this document and declares that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that
such is the case, the information contained in Part F of this document, and for which Santander UK
plc is responsible, is to the best of its knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no
omission likely to affect its import. Abbey National Treasury Services plc accepts responsibility for
the information contained in Part G of this document and declares that, having taken all reasonable
care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in Part G of this document, and for
which Abbey National Treasury Services plc is responsible, is to the best of its knowledge, in
accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import. Anson Fund Managers
Limited accepts responsibility for the information contained in Part H of this document relating solely
to its own credentials and declares that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the
case, the information contained in Part H of this document and for which Anson Fund Managers
Limited is responsible is, to the best of its knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no
omission likely to affect its import. Anson Registrars Limited accepts responsibility for the
information contained in Part I of this document relating solely to its own credentials and declares
that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case, the information contained in Part
I of this document and for which Anson Registrars Limited is responsible is, to the best of its
knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.

Guaranteed Investment Products 1 PCC
Limited
(a protected cell company incorporated with limited liability
under the laws of Guernsey with registered number 42754)

The Company is authorised as an Authorised Closed-Ended Investment Scheme by the Guernsey Financial
Services Commission under Section 8 of the Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1987, as
amended and the Authorised Closed-Ended Investment Scheme Rules 2008. Neither the Guernsey Financial
Services Commission nor the States of Guernsey Policy Council take any responsibility for the financial
soundness of the Company or for the correctness of any of the statements made or opinions expressed with
regard to it. The Guernsey Financial Services Commission has not reviewed this document and it together with
the States of Guernsey Policy Council continue to take no responsibility for the financial soundness of the
Company or for the correctness of any statements made or opinions expressed with regard to it. This document
is not an offer of securities for sale in the United States. The Shares have not been, and will not be, registered
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under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act), or any securities laws of any
state of the United States and may not be offered or sold in the United States or to or for the account or benefit
of US persons (as such terms are defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act) unless registered under the
Securities Act or pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, such registration. The Shares
will not be registered under the relevant securities laws of Canada, Australia or Japan. Accordingly, unless an
exemption under such acts or laws is applicable, the Shares may not be offered, sold or delivered, directly or
indirectly, in or into Canada, Australia or Japan.
The attention of potential investors is drawn to Risk Factors set out on pages 6 to 17 of this document.
Dated 18 January 2013
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION
If you are in any doubt about the contents of this document you are recommended to seek your own personal
advice from an appropriately qualified independent adviser duly authorised under the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000 if in the United Kingdom or otherwise regulated under the applicable laws of your own
country.
Neither the listing of the Shares in the Company on the Channel Islands Stock Exchange nor the approval of this
document pursuant to the listing requirements of the Channel Islands Stock Exchange shall constitute a warranty
or representation by the Channel Islands Stock Exchange as to the competence of service providers to, or any
other party connected with, the Company, the adequacy or accuracy of information contained in this document
or the suitability of the Company for investment or for any other purposes.
The distribution of this document and the offering or purchase of the Shares may be restricted in certain
jurisdictions. No persons receiving a copy of this document in any such jurisdiction may treat this document as
constituting an invitation to them to subscribe for Shares, nor should they in any event use this document unless,
in the relevant jurisdiction, such an invitation could lawfully be made to them and this document could lawfully
be used without compliance with any registration or other legal requirement. Accordingly, this document does
not constitute an offer or solicitation to anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not
lawful or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to anyone to whom it
is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. It is the responsibility of any persons in possession of this
document and any persons wishing to apply for Shares pursuant to this document to inform themselves of, and
to observe, all applicable laws and regulations of any relevant jurisdiction.
Potential subscribers and purchasers of Shares should inform themselves as to (a) the possible tax consequences,
(b) the legal requirements, (c) any foreign exchange restrictions or exchange control requirements and (d) any
other requisite governmental or other consents or formalities which they might encounter under the laws of the
country of their incorporation, citizenship, residence or domicile and which might be relevant to the
subscription, purchase, holding or disposal of Shares.
Prior to investing in the Shares, a potential investor should consider whether it is appropriate to discuss with
their professional advisers how such investment would or could affect them. Potential investors with any
questions regarding the impact of an investment in the Shares on their tax position should consult their tax
adviser. The Company does not provide tax, accounting or legal advice as to the consequences of an investment
in the Shares.
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RISK FACTORS
Investment in the Shares issued by the Company in respect of each Cell is subject to certain risk
factors. Investors should carefully consider both the risks generally associated with investing in
the Company and the risks associated in investing in the relevant Shares as set out in the
Relevant Securities Note.
Risks of Investing in the Company


General
There can be no assurance that the Company's full investment objective in respect of each
Cell will be achieved. The Investment Return payable on the Maturity Date of the Shares
issued in respect of the relevant Cell is dependent upon market fluctuations and other risks
inherent in investing in investments linked to indices or shares. The value of the Shares can
fall as well as rise and investors may not realise the full amount of their investment in the
Shares. Prospective investors should carefully review and evaluate the risks and the other
information contained in this document, the Relevant Securities Note and the Relevant
Summary prior to making an investment.



Investor Returns
The investment objective for the Shares issued in respect of each Cell will be to generate
capital growth for the relevant Shares over their Investment Term and to return to
Shareholders the Investment Return on the Maturity Date for the relevant Shares. In the
opinion of the Directors, the investment objective for the Shares issued in respect of each Cell
should be achieved through the purchase of the investments, as described under the section
headed "Investment Objective and Policy" set out in this document and / or the section headed
"Investment Objective and Policy" set out in the Relevant Securities Note. There may be
particular investment risks attributable to the Shares issued in respect of a particular Cell, the
details of which shall be set out in the Risk Factors section in the Relevant Securities Note.
Investors should be aware of the risks set out in this document and in the Relevant Securities
Note which may result in the investment objective not being achieved.



Plan Investments
Investors should be aware that the Company's only investments for each Cell will be in Plan
Investments and that there may be no counterparty risk diversification. The obligations of
each Investment Counterparty under the Plan Investments will not be collateralised.



Cell Guarantee Risks
In respect of the Shares issued in respect of a Cell in relation to which the Guarantor has
entered into a Cell Guarantee only, Shareholders will receive an amount at least equal to the
Guaranteed Return in respect of their Shares held on their Maturity Date, only if either:
(a)

the obligations of the relevant Investment Counterparty are satisfied under the Plan
Investments relevant to that Cell to pay or repay to the Company an amount at least
equal in aggregate to the Guaranteed Return for their Shares on or around the relevant
Maturity Date, or

(b)

Santander Guarantee Company satisfies its obligations under the relevant Cell
Guarantee if the Company, acting in respect of the relevant Cell, fails to pay an
amount at least equal to the Guaranteed Return to Shareholders in respect of their
Shares held until their Maturity Date and, if necessary, Santander UK plc satisfies its
obligations to Santander Guarantee Company under the Conditional Share
Subscription Agreement.
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If the obligations of the relevant Investment Counterparty are not satisfied under the
relevant Plan Investments and Santander Guarantee Company were to default under
the relevant Cell Guarantee (whether as a result of insolvency or otherwise),
Shareholders could lose some or all of their investment.
The obligation of Santander Guarantee Company to pay Shareholders any shortfall between
the redemption amount they receive from the Company and the Guaranteed Return in respect
of their Shares under the relevant Cell Guarantee applicable to their Shares will apply only in
respect of Shares held until they are redeemed on their Maturity Date. Prior to this date, the
Cell Guarantee will not apply. Shareholders who dispose of their Shares prior to their
Maturity Date will not be covered by the relevant Cell Guarantee in respect of such disposal
and may receive less than the Guaranteed Return or their Investment Amount.
The obligations of Santander Guarantee Company to make payments under any relevant Cell
Guarantee will be limited to the extent that it is illegal for such payment to be made to
Shareholders. In addition, if there is a change of tax legislation at any time resulting in a
withholding tax or other tax deduction affecting payments under any Plan Investment or any
tax is imposed on the Company on the proceeds of any Plan Investment, the amount payable
under the related Cell Guarantee will be reduced accordingly. In the event that the amount
paid by the Company to Shareholders on redemption of Shares at their Maturity Date
becomes subject to any withholding tax, Shareholders will not be entitled to claim against the
Guarantor under any relevant Cell Guarantee for payment of the amounts withheld or
deducted. Payments under each Cell Guarantee will also be made net of any withholding tax
or other tax deduction, including, for the avoidance of doubt, any FATCA Withholding (as
defined in the risk factor headed “US Foreign Account Tax Compliance withholding may
affect payments on the Shares” below).
If Santander UK plc, the relevant Investment Counterparty or Santander Guarantee
Company were to be wound-up or otherwise suffer an insolvency-related event at any
time, Shareholders may lose some or all of their investment.
Potential investors should ensure that they have carefully read and understood the Relevant
Securities Note relating to the relevant Shares, which sets out a summary of the agreements
constituting the Cell Guarantee in respect of the relevant Shares (if any) and, if applicable,
additional counterparty risks relevant to the Shares.


The Santander Group's financial condition may be materially impacted by economic
conditions in the UK
Santander Guarantee Company, Abbey National Treasury Services plc, and Santander UK plc
are each part of the Santander Group.
The Santander Group’s business activities are concentrated in the UK and on the offering of
mortgage and savings related products and services. As a consequence, the Santander Group’s
financial condition is significantly affected by economic conditions in the UK generally, and
by the UK property market in particular. In 2008 and 2009, the UK property market suffered
a significant correction as a consequence of housing demand being constrained by a
combination of rising unemployment, subdued earnings growth, greater pressure on
disposable income, a decline in the availability of mortgage finance and the continued effect
of global market volatility. Although the UK economy began to grow again in late 2009 after
the recession that followed the financial crisis, the sovereign debt crisis in the eurozone,
elevated unemployment rates and high inflation (which hit real average earnings growth and
consequently consumer spending) led to slower growth in 2011. GDP fell in the final quarter
of 2011 and in the first two quarters of 2012. Although GDP rose in the third quarter of 2012,
the Office for Budget Responsibility expects a relatively weak prospect for growth in 2013,
with a forecast for growth of 1.2% published in December 20121.

1

Office for Budget Responsibility.
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Adverse changes in the credit quality of Santander Group's borrowers and counterparties or a
general deterioration in UK or global economic conditions could reduce the recoverability
and value of the Santander Group's assets and require an increase in the Santander Group's
level of provisions for bad and doubtful debts. Likewise, a significant reduction in the
demand for the Santander Group's products and services could negatively impact Santander
UK plc's business and financial condition. UK economic conditions and uncertainties may
have an adverse effect on the quality of the Santander Group’s loan portfolio and may result
in a rise in delinquency and default rates.
The Santander Group recorded impairment loss allowances on loans and advances to
customers of £1,600 million and £1,563 million at 30 June 2012 and 31 December 2011,
respectively. There can be no assurance that the Santander Group will not have to increase its
provisions for loan losses in the future as a result of increases in non-performing loans or for
other reasons beyond its control. Any increases in the Santander Group’s provisions for loan
losses and write-offs/charge-offs could have a material adverse effect on the Santander
Group’s financial condition.
As in several other economies, the UK Government has taken measures to address the
exceptionally high level of national debt, including tax increases and public spending cuts.
Political involvement in the regulatory process and in the major financial institutions in which
the UK Government has a direct financial interest is set to continue.
Credit quality could be adversely affected by a further increase in unemployment. This plus
the combination of slow economic recovery, UK Government intervention , together with any
related significant reduction in the demand for the Santander Group’s products and services,
could have a material adverse effect on the Santander Group’s financial condition.


The Santander Group’s financial condition may be negatively affected by conditions in global
financial markets
The extreme volatility and disruption in global capital and credit markets since 2008 led to
severe dislocation of financial markets around the world and an unprecedented reduction in
available liquidity and increased credit risk premiums for many market participants. This
caused severe problems at many of the world’s largest commercial banks, investment banks
and insurance companies, a number of which are the Santander Group’s counterparties or
customers in the ordinary course of business. These conditions have also resulted in a material
reduction in the availability of financing, both for financial institutions and their customers,
compelling many financial institutions to rely on central banks and governments to provide
liquidity and, in some cases, additional capital during this period. Governments around the
world have sought to provide this liquidity in order to stabilise financial markets and prevent
the failure of financial institutions.
Although conditions have eased to some extent since 2009, the volatility of the capital and
credit markets has continued and liquidity problems remain, exacerbated recently by fears
concerning the financial health of a number of European governments. Certain eurozone
economies came under increased pressure in 2011, with concerns focused on the
sustainability of their sovereign debt. Sovereign debt concerns continued in 2012 but
governments have taken actions to improve fiscal positions and the European Central Bank
has also supported financial stability. However, the disruption in the capital and credit
markets and the continuing market variability and reduction of available credit have
contributed to lower consumer confidence, increased market volatility, increased funding
costs, reduced business activity and, consequently, increasing commercial and consumer loan
delinquencies, and market value declines on debt securities held by the Santander Group, all
of which could have a material adverse effect on the Santander Group’s financial condition.



Long Term Investment
Investors should be aware that investment in any Shares should be viewed as an investment
for the full Investment Term of such Shares and there is no assurance that investors will be
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able to sell their Shares prior to the relevant Maturity Date or as to the price at which any sale
may be possible (please see further the sub-section headed "Liquidity" below).


Stock Risk
Shares issued in respect of particular Cells may have a return which is linked to a Stock
Basket.
No representation or warranty, express or implied, is given on any aspect of the Stock Basket
by either the Company, the Directors, the Investment Manager, any Investment Counterparty,
the Determination Agent, the Marketing Manager, the Guarantor, Santander UK plc or any
other person. Investors should seek independent financial advice on the suitability for their
purpose of any Investment Return which is derived from a Stock Basket.
Shareholders should note that the Determination Agent will be involved in calculating the
value of the components of the Stock Basket applicable to the relevant Shares and in the event
of any Market Disruption Event, may be involved in determining the prices of the
components of the Stock Basket. Any determination made by the Determination Agent in the
context of such an event or circumstance will be binding on the Company (in the absence of
manifest error) and may affect the Investment Return applicable to the relevant Shares. Any
such event or circumstance occurring on or prior to the Maturity Date for the Shares issued in
respect of the relevant Cell may delay the calculation of the price of the components of the
Stock Basket and, as a consequence, the payment of the Investment Return to the
Shareholders of the relevant Shares may be delayed.



Index Risk
Shares issued in respect of particular Cells may have a return which is linked to an Index.
No representation or warranty, express or implied, is given on any aspect of any Index by the
Company, the Directors, the Investment Manager, the Investment Counterparty, the
Determination Agent, the Marketing Manager, the Guarantor, Santander UK plc or any other
person. Investors should seek independent financial advice on the suitability for their
purposes of having an investment giving investment exposure to an Index and the nature of
such investment exposure.
Each of the following may affect the Investment Return on a particular class of Shares linked
to an Index and none of the Company, the Directors, the Investment Manager, the Investment
Counterparty, the Determination Agent, the Marketing Manager, the Guarantor, Santander
UK plc or any other person gives any assurance whatsoever, nor is under any obligation
regarding:
(a)

the continuity of an Index;

(b)

the continuity in the methodology used in calculating an Index;

(c)

the continuity in the calculation, publication and dissemination of an Index;

(d)

the precision, integrity or lack of errors in the composition or calculation of an Index;

(e)

the accuracy and use by the Company of an Index.

Shareholders should note that the Determination Agent will be involved in calculating the
value of the Index applicable to the relevant Shares and, if applicable, in the event of:
(i)

a Fundamental Change;

(ii)

a level of the Index used in the determination of the Final Index Level not being
published on or prior to the date falling two Business Days prior to the Maturity Date;
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(iii)

any Market Disruption Event; or

(iv)

the Index Sponsor making a material modification to the Index, permanently
cancelling the Index or failing to calculate and announce the Index at a Valuation
Time,

may be involved in determining the level of the Index.
Any determination made by the Determination Agent in the context of any such event or
circumstance will be binding on the Company (in the absence of manifest error) and may
affect the Investment Return applicable to the relevant Shares. Any such event or
circumstance occurring on or prior to the Maturity Date for the relevant Shares may delay the
calculation of the Index values and, as a consequence, the payment of the Investment Return
to the Shareholders of the relevant Shares may be delayed.
The Investment Return (if any) and/or dividends payable (if any), and the timing of any such
payment, may depend on the performance of an Index on specified dates (as set out in the
Relevant Securities Note). Accordingly, prospective investors in the Shares should ensure
that they fully understand how the performance of the Index may affect an investment in the
Shares.
Any increase or fall in the level of an Index other than on the dates and times or in respect of
the months specified in the terms and conditions of the Shares (as set out in the Relevant
Securities Note) will not be reflected in the determination of the level of an Index for the
purposes of calculating the relevant Investment Return. There can be no assurance that the
level of an Index on any time or date when the level of that Index is to be determined,
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Shares, will reflect the then prevailing trend (if
any) for the level of the Index or, where relevant, the market price for the shares comprised in
it.
The level of an Index may go down as well as up. Furthermore, the level of an Index may not
reflect its performance in any prior period.
In recent years, the performance of many types of Indices has been volatile. Volatility could
have a positive or negative effect on the Investment Return. There can be no assurance as to
the future performance of any Index.
In particular, the level of an Index may move significantly in very short periods of time. As
such, prospective investors should be aware that the value observed for an Index may not
reflect the value of the Index which has prevailed at other times on the relevant Valuation
Date or in the period immediately preceding or following such Valuation Date. For example,
this may occur if the Valuation Time occurs during a period where the relevant market moves
significantly downwards or upwards before subsequently correcting shortly afterwards.
Whilst the terms and conditions of the Shares (as set out in this document and in the Relevant
Securities Note) may include provisions to allow for postponement of valuation in the event
of certain disruptions in the market, not all significant market movements will be covered by
these provisions. Levels of an Index at the opening or closing of relevant markets may also
be particularly volatile as traditionally many trades are executed at such times. Any such
movements could have an effect on the value of an Index and consequently the Investment
Return (if any) and/or dividends payable (if any) in respect of the Shares.
The formula used to determine the Investment Return (if any) in respect of the Shares may
contain a multiplier, leverage factor or participation rate. If so, the effect of any fluctuation in
the value of an Index will be magnified or diminished, depending on the nature of such
multiplier, leverage factor or participation rate. Consequently, the Investment Return (if any)
in respect of the Shares may be less than the return from a direct investment in the shares
comprised in the Index.
Accordingly, before making an investment decision with respect to the Shares, prospective
0030144-0000332 ICM:16026328.16
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investors should carefully consider whether an investment linked to an Index and the manner
of such linkage are suitable for them.


Conditions of an Offer of Shares
An Offer of Shares issued in respect of a Cell will be conditional on:
(i)

the Company receiving the approval of the Channel Islands Stock Exchange for the
admission of the Shares to the Official List of the Channel Islands Stock Exchange by
the date specified in the Relevant Securities Note; and

(ii)

the relevant Prospectus being approved by the UKLA and filed with the GFSC; and

(iii)

in respect of any new Cell in relation to which the Guarantor is to enter into a Cell
Guarantee only, the execution by the Guarantor of a Deed of Guarantee in relation to
Shares issued in respect of such new Cell, pursuant to which the Guarantor provides
the Cell Guarantee for the benefit of Shareholders of Shares issued in respect of such
new Cell; and

(iv)

such other conditions as are specified in the Relevant Securities Note.

In the event that any of the above conditions is not satisfied in respect of an Offer, no Shares
will be allotted in respect of such Offer and all subscription monies will be returned by the
Receiving Agent to applicants (without interest) by cheque or, at the cost of the applicant, by
telegraphic transfer, all at the risk of the applicant and the Company will cancel the relevant
Cell.


Withdrawal, Limitation or Cancellation of an Offer of Shares
The Company reserves the right to withdraw an Offer of Shares or limit the number of Shares
available under an Offer, as set out in this document and in the Relevant Securities Note. In
this event, the basis of Share allocation shall be at the Company's sole discretion and the
Company reserves the right to reject any application in whole or in part.
The Company may also cancel an Offer of Shares by compulsorily redeeming any relevant
Shares in issue, as set out in the Relevant Securities Note. In this event the listing of such
Shares on the Channel Islands Stock Exchange will be cancelled.



Conflicts of Interest
Abbey National Treasury Services plc will have a number of roles in relation to the Cells and
the Shares and, as a result, will have a number of potential conflicts of interest.
Abbey National Treasury Services plc will be appointed by the Company to provide
calculation agency services to the Company in respect of each Cell as Determination Agent in
accordance with a Determination Agency Agreement, may be the Investment Counterparty in
respect of the Plan Investments in respect of any Cell and will act as Market Maker in respect
of the Shares.
Abbey National Treasury Services plc and/or its Affiliates may contract with the Company
(acting in respect of itself or any protected cell in the Company) and/or enter into transactions
which relate to a Cell, the Shares issued in respect of any Cell and any Plan Investments and,
as a result, Abbey National Treasury Services plc may face a conflict between its obligations
as Determination Agent and its interests and/or its Affiliates' interests in other capacities.
Abbey National Treasury Services plc will have regard to its obligations to act in accordance
with the rules of the FSA and any other regulatory regime to which it is subject, its
obligations under the Determination Agency Agreement and its obligations to other clients.
In the event any that such conflict does arise, Abbey National Treasury Services plc will use
its reasonable endeavours to procure that any such conflict of interest is resolved fairly and to
ensure that the interests of the Company and the Shareholders in respect of a Cell are not
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unfairly prejudiced. However despite resolving such a conflict acting fairly and in ensuring
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders in respect of a Cell are not unfairly
prejudiced, such resolution may involve a determination that places the Company or the
Shareholders in respect of a Cell in a position adverse to the position in which they would
have been placed had a different determination been made (and such determination may
correspondingly place Abbey National Treasury Services plc and/or its Affiliates and/or its
other clients and/or the Shareholders in respect of a different Cell in a better position than if a
different determination had been made).


Liquidity
Dealings in Shares on the Channel Islands Stock Exchange will only commence on
Admission of the relevant Shares.
The Directors do not anticipate that an active secondary market will develop in the Shares.
Although a market maker may offer to buy and sell Shares in the secondary market during
their Investment Term, investors should be aware that such market maker may cease to
undertake any market making activities at any time at its sole discretion. For example, the
market maker may decide not to buy Shares if it determines that market conditions are
unfavourable or it is likely to be in breach of applicable laws and regulations or its internal
policies and limits. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that at any time there will be a
secondary market for any Shares and, if there is, the secondary market price in respect of any
Shares will reflect numerous factors including trade size, volatility of the Index or Stock
Basket, cost of funding, interest rates, credit risk, supply and demand as well as a bid/offer
spread. Accordingly investors should not expect that any secondary market price for any
Shares will be calculated entirely or almost entirely by reference to the Net Asset Value per
Share or an index of any description or by reference to any index or asset referred to in the
terms of any Shares.
The return to any Shareholder who disposes of any Shares prior to their Maturity Date will
depend on the price which can be obtained for those Shares in the market at that time and may
be less than the Investment Return or even the Investment Amount in respect of such Shares.
Any Shareholder who disposes of any Shares prior to their Maturity Date will not be
covered by any relevant Cell Guarantee in respect of such disposal and may receive
back less than the amount which he or she invested in the Shares.



The UK Banking Act 2009
The UK Banking Act 2009 (the Act) came into force on 21 February 2009. The Act creates a
special resolution regime (SRR) which provides the H.M. Treasury, the Bank of England and
the FSA (the Authorities) with a variety of tools for dealing with UK institutions which are
authorised deposit takers (such as Santander UK plc and/or Abbey National Treasury Services
plc) which are failing, and in certain circumstances, their holding companies. If the position
of Santander UK plc and/or Abbey National Treasury Services plc were to decline so
dramatically that it was considered to be failing, or likely to fail, to meet threshold
authorisation conditions set out in FSMA (for example, if there were a mass withdrawal of
deposits over solvency fears surrounding Santander UK plc and/or Abbey National Treasury
Services plc, in a manner analogous to the situation that occurred at Northern Rock, adversely
affecting the ability of Santander UK plc and/or Abbey National Treasury Services plc to
continue to trade), Santander UK plc and/or Abbey National Treasury Services plc could
become subject to the exercise of powers by the Authorities under the SRR.
The Act enables the Authorities, in specified circumstances, to: (i) take a UK bank or a UK
bank holding company into temporary public ownership; (ii) transfer all or part of the
business of a UK bank to a private sector purchaser; or (iii) transfer all or part of the business
of a UK bank to a bridge bank wholly owned by the Bank of England. The SRR also
comprises a new insolvency procedure and a new administration procedure, each of specific
application to banks. These insolvency and administration measures may be invoked prior to
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the point at which an application for insolvency proceedings with respect to a relevant
institution could be made.
If an instrument or order were made under the Act in respect of Santander UK plc and/or
Abbey National Treasury Services plc, such instrument or order (as the case may be) may
(amongst other things): (i) result in a compulsory transfer of the securities or property of
Santander UK plc and/or Abbey National Treasury Services plc; and/or (ii) impact on the
rights of the Company and/or certain related corporate undertakings of Santander UK plc
and/or Abbey National Treasury Services plc (such as Santander Guarantee Company); and/or
(iii) result in the nullification or modification of (a) agreements between Santander UK plc
and/or Abbey National Treasury Services plc and the Company and/or (b) agreements
between Santander UK plc and/or Abbey National Treasury Services plc and certain of their
related corporate undertakings (such as Santander Guarantee Company) including, amongst
others, the Conditional Share Subscription Agreement and any Financial Instruments. In
addition, such an order may impact on various matters in respect of Santander UK plc and/or
Abbey National Treasury Services plc and/or various other aspects of the documentation
entered into in relation to each issuance of Shares (including the enforceability of such
documents and/or the ability of certain parties to perform their obligations under such
documents) which may negatively affect the ability of the Company to meet its obligations in
respect of the Shares and/or the ability of Santander Guarantee Company to meet its
obligations in respect of any Cell Guarantee.
As at the date of this Registration Document, no instruments or orders have been made under
the Act in respect of the Santander Group and there has been no indication that any such order
will be made, but there can be no assurance that this will not change and/or that the Company
and Shareholders will not be adversely affected by any such order if made in the future.


Change in Taxation
Any change in the Company's tax status, or in taxation legislation or in the interpretation or
application of tax legislation in Guernsey or the UK, or in any other tax jurisdiction affecting
the Company, a Shareholder or investor, could affect the value of the investments held by a
Cell of the Company, the amount paid to the Company under the Plan Investments, the
Company's ability to achieve the stated investment objective of each Cell, the amounts
guaranteed or payable under any Cell Guarantee and/or alter the post tax returns to
Shareholders. Statements in this document concerning the taxation of Shareholders resident
in Guernsey or the UK are based upon Guernsey and UK tax law and practice at the date of
this Registration Document, each of which are subject to change, possibly with retrospective
effect. Any such change could adversely affect the ability of the Company to meet the stated
investment objective or adversely affect the ability of the Company to pay any dividends
and/or the Investment Return in relation to the Shares on the relevant Maturity Date and the
net amount of any dividends and/or the Investment Return payable to Shareholders. As is the
case with any investment, there can be no guarantee that the tax position or proposed tax
position prevailing at the time an investment is made in the Company will endure indefinitely.
It is not currently anticipated that there will be any withholding obligation on account of UK
or Guernsey tax affecting payments made under the Plan Investments. If, however, there is a
change in UK or Guernsey tax legislation or an introduction of or change in any other tax
legislation, regulations thereunder or official interpretations thereof at any time which
imposes an obligation to withhold on account of tax from payments by the Investment
Counterparty to the Company under the Plan Investments (including but not limited to the US
Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act discussed below), the amount payable by the
Investment Counterparty may be reduced by the amount of such withholding. This may
affect the ability of the Company to pay the Investment Return to Shareholders. In particular,
it should be noted that if a change in or introduction of taxation law, regulations thereunder or
official interpretations thereof (including but not limited to the US Foreign Account Tax
Compliance Act discussed below) were to result in the obligation to withhold on account of
tax from payments to Shareholders under the Shares, the amount of the Investment Return
actually received by Shareholders would be reduced. The Company will not make any
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additional payments to Shareholders in the event that any withholding obligation is imposed
on payments by the Company under the Shares issued in respect of any Cell. In
circumstances where the amounts payable to Shareholders are reduced as a result of a change
in or introduction of tax legislation, regulations thereunder or official interpretations thereof
as described in this paragraph and those amounts are consequently less than the Guaranteed
Return for the relevant Cell, the liability of the Guarantor under any Cell Guarantee will be
reduced accordingly.


US Foreign Account Tax Compliance Withholding may affect payments on the Shares
Sections 1471 through 1474 of the US Internal Revenue Code ("FATCA") impose a new
reporting regime and potentially a 30% withholding tax with respect to certain payments to
any non-US financial institution (a "foreign financial institution", or "FFI" (as defined by
FATCA)) that (i) does not become a "Participating FFI" by entering into an agreement with
the US Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") to provide the IRS certain information in respect of
its account holders or (ii) is not otherwise exempt from or in deemed-compliance with
FATCA. The new withholding regime will be phased in beginning in 2014 for payments
received from sources within the United States and will apply to "foreign passthru
payments" (a term not yet defined) no earlier than 2017. This withholding would apply to (i)
any Shares characterized as debt (or which are not otherwise characterized as equity and have
a fixed term) for US federal tax purposes that are not yet outstanding as of the date (the
"grandfathering date") that is six months after the date on which final US Treasury
regulations define the term "foreign passthru payments" or are materially modified after the
grandfathering date and (ii) any Shares characterized as equity or which do not have a fixed
term for US federal tax purposes, whenever issued.
The United States and a number of potential partner countries have announced their intention
to enter into intergovernmental agreements to facilitate the implementation of FATCA (each,
an "IGA"), and after consultation with these countries, the United States released a model
IGA. Pursuant to FATCA and the model IGA, an FFI in an IGA signatory country could also
be treated as a "Reporting FI" not subject to FATCA withholding on any payments it
receives. Such an FFI would also not be required to withhold under FATCA or an IGA (or
any law implementing or complying with, or introduced in order to conform to an IGA) from
payments it makes (any withholding under FATCA or an IGA (or any law implementing or
complying with, or introduced in order to conform to an IGA) being a "FATCA
Withholding"), but the model IGA leaves open the possibility that such an FFI might in the
future be required to withhold on foreign passthru payments that it makes. A Reporting FI
would be required to report certain information in respect of its account holders to its home
government. It appears that Guernsey may enter into a model IGA along with the other
Crown Dependencies, although no assurance of this fact can be provided. However, early
indications are such that any model IGA would likely involve HMRC and it is probable that
any information transmitted under Guernsey's IGA would be passed in the first instance to
HMRC.
If the Company becomes a Participating FFI under FATCA or a Reporting FI pursuant to an
IGA, the Company and financial institutions through which payments on Shares are made
may be required to withhold FATCA Withholding if (a) any FFI through or to which payment
on such Shares is made is not a Participating FFI, a Reporting FI, or otherwise exempt from
or in deemed-compliance with FATCA or (b) an investor (other than an exempt investor)
does not provide information sufficient to determine whether the investor is a US person or
should otherwise be treated as holding a "United States Account".
If an amount in respect of FATCA Withholding were to be deducted or withheld from
interest, principal or other payments on Shares, neither the Company nor any paying agent
nor any other person would, pursuant to the conditions of such Shares, be required to pay
additional amounts as a result of the deduction or withholding of such tax. As a result,
investors may receive less interest or principal than expected. If any FATCA Withholding is
imposed, a beneficial owner of Shares that is not a foreign financial institution generally will
be entitled to a refund of any amounts withheld by filing a US federal income tax return,
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which may entail significant administrative burden. A beneficial owner of Shares that is a
foreign financial institution will be able to obtain a refund only to the extent an applicable
income tax treaty with the United States entitles it to an exemption from, or reduced rate of,
tax on the payment that was subject to FATCA Withholding.
FATCA is particularly complex and its application is uncertain at this time. The above
description is based in part on proposed regulations, official guidance and the model IGA, all
of which are subject to change or may be implemented in a materially different form.
Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisers on how these rules may apply to
the Company and to payments they may receive in connection with the Shares.


Entity Risk
The Company was constituted as a protected cell company pursuant to the Companies
(Guernsey) Law, 1994 to 1996, as amended and The Protected Cell Companies Ordinance
1997. With effect from 1 July 2008 the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 1994 to 1996, as
amended and The Protected Cell Companies Ordinance 1997 were repealed and replaced with
the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, as amended (the Companies Law). A protected cell
company is a multi-cellular company whose principal feature is that each cell has its own
distinct assets which are not available to creditors of other cells of that company or the
company as a whole. Jurisdictions other than Guernsey may not be prepared to accept that
creditors of a particular cell are prevented from gaining access to the cellular assets of other
cells, or that creditors of the company as a whole do not have access to those assets
specifically designated as cellular assets. In order to minimise this risk (i) service providers
to the Company will generally be required to agree that their fees will be paid solely from the
assets of the particular Cell to which the services relate and (ii) each Shareholder will be
required to agree when subscribing for Shares that any liability to the Shareholder will be
satisfied only out of assets of the particular Cell to which the liability relates. However, a
court could determine that such agreements are not enforceable.
Other Cells may be introduced by the Company from time to time. A separate portfolio will
be maintained for each Cell and each Cell will bear its own liabilities. Each Cell will remain
ultimately liable to third parties for its own liabilities and the assets of one Cell will not be
available to meet the liabilities of any other Cell(s).



Cross-Cell Liabilities
The structure of the Company allows for the creation of multiple Cells. Generally, the assets
of each Cell are segregated, so that the assets of one Cell are not available to satisfy the
liabilities of any other Cell. In the event of a particular Cell's portfolio suffering severe losses
such that the liabilities of the Cell exceeded the assets of the Cell, under the law currently in
effect in Guernsey, creditors of that Cell could not seek to recover from the assets of other
Cells. However, there can be no assurance that such law will not change and thus that there
will never be any cross-cell liability risk.



Determination Agent's discretion
The Determination Agent has a very broad discretionary authority to make various
determinations and adjustments under the Shares, any of which may have an adverse effect on
the Investment Return (if any) and/or dividends payable (if any) in respect of the Shares. For
example, the Determination Agent has a broad discretion, without limitation, (i) to determine
whether a Disrupted Day, a Market Disruption Event and any other event and/or matter so
specified in the Section headed "Market Disruption and Adjustment" in Part B of this
Registration Document or the Relevant Securities Note, has occurred, (ii) to determine any
resulting adjustments, determinations and calculations as described in the Section headed
"Market Disruption and Adjustment" in Part B of this Registration Document or the Relevant
Securities Note and (iii) in respect of any other matters as may be specified in the Prospectus.
Prospective investors should be aware that any determinations made by the Determination
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Agent may have an impact on the Investment Return (if any) and/or dividends payable (if
any) in respect of the Shares.
If the Determination Agent determines that any Scheduled Valuation Date (i) is a Disrupted
Day or any other day which is subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the relevant Shares and/or (ii) falls on a day in respect of which a disruption,
adjustment or correction or similar event has occurred in respect of the relevant underlying
index or stock basket which affects the valuation of such underlying index or stock basket, the
Determination Agent has broad discretion to make any consequential postponement or
omission of, or any alternative provision for, valuation of such underlying index or stock
basket provided for in the terms and conditions of the Shares, including a determination of the
value of such underlying index or stock basket by the Determination Agent in its discretion,
each of which may have an adverse effect on the Investment Return (if any) and/or dividend
amounts (if any) in respect of the Shares.


Rating Agency Credit Ratings
The long-term issuer credit ratings of Santander UK plc are provided for information
purposes only. No credit ratings are provided in respect of any Shares, any Plan Investments
or the Company. Investors should note that a credit rating assigned to Santander UK plc may
not reflect the potential impact of all of the risks related to the structure, market, type of
return, Plan Investments and additional factors discussed in the Relevant Securities Note may
affect the value of the Shares issued in respect of the relevant Cell. Any rating agency may
lower its ratings or withdraw its rating if, in the sole judgement of the rating agency, the credit
quality of Santander UK plc has declined or is in question. In addition, at any time any rating
agency may revise its relevant rating methodology with the result that, amongst other things,
any rating assigned to Santander UK plc may be lowered. If any rating assigned to Santander
UK plc is lowered or withdrawn, the secondary market value of any Shares may reduce. A
rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold any Shares and may be subject to
suspension or withdrawal (or, as noted above, revision) at any time.



European Regulated Investors and The CRA Regulation
In general, European regulated investors are restricted under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009
(as amended) (the CRA Regulation) from using credit ratings for regulatory purposes, unless
such ratings are issued by a credit rating agency established in the EU and registered under
the CRA Regulation (and such registration has not been withdrawn or suspended). Such
general restriction will also apply in the case of credit ratings issued by non-EU credit rating
agencies, unless the relevant credit ratings are endorsed by an EU-registered credit rating
agency or the relevant non-EU rating agency is certified in accordance with the CRA
Regulation (and such endorsement action or certification, as the case may be, has not been
withdrawn or suspended). The list of registered and certified rating agencies published by the
European Securities Markets Authority (ESMA) on its website in accordance with the CRA
Regulation is not conclusive evidence of the status of the relevant rating agency included in
such list, as there may be delays between certain supervisory measures being taken against a
relevant rating agency and the publication of the updated ESMA list. Certain information
with respect to the credit rating agencies and ratings is set out in Part A of this Registration
Document. S&P, Moody's and Fitch are each established in the European Union and are each
registered under the CRA Regulation. As such S&P, Moody's and Fitch are included in the
list of the credit rating agencies published by the ESMA on its website in accordance with
such Regulation.
The risks listed above and in the Relevant Securities Note and Relevant Summary are those
risks that the Company, as at the date of this Registration Document, is aware of and
considers to be material and should not be considered to be an exhaustive list of the risks
which potential investors should consider before investing in a Cell. Risks that the
Company considers, as at the date of this Registration Document, to be immaterial or of
which it is not aware have not been included and potential investors should be aware that
an investment in Shares issued in respect of a Cell may be exposed to other risks not
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considered material by the Company based on information currently available to it or
which it is not currently able to anticipate. Prospective investors should also read the
detailed information set out elsewhere in this Registration Document and in the Relevant
Securities Note and Relevant Summary and reach their own views prior to making any
investment decision.
Where information has been sourced from a third party within these risk factors the third
party source of such information is identified in a footnote and the Company confirms that
such information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware, and is able
to ascertain from information published by that third party, no facts have been omitted
which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.
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INFORMATION IN RELATION TO THIS DOCUMENT
Abbey National Treasury Services plc, Santander Guarantee Company, Santander ISA Managers
Limited and Santander UK plc have consented to the inclusion of their names in this document in the
form and context in which they appear and solely in their respective capacities as Investment
Manager, Investment Counterparty, Determination Agent, Guarantor and/or party to the Conditional
Share Subscription Agreement, and Marketing Manager, but otherwise are not required to authorise,
and have not authorised, the issue of this document and have not accepted responsibility (except as
disclosed on page 1 above) for, or approved, any statements in this document. None of Abbey
National Treasury Services plc, Santander Guarantee Company or Santander UK plc makes any
representation, express or implied, as to the investment returns or performance of any Plan
Investments or Shares and such statements in this document, as well as all other statements regarding
the Company or a Cell (including without limitation and where applicable, their respective
constitution, objectives and investment policy) are the sole responsibility of the Company and its
Directors and not Abbey National Treasury Services plc, Santander Guarantee Company or Santander
UK plc. Accordingly, none of Abbey National Treasury Services plc, Santander Guarantee Company
or Santander UK plc will be responsible to any person for any matter referred to in this document
other than their respective obligations as Guarantor, Investment Counterparty, Determination Agent,
Investment Manager, party to the Conditional Share Subscription Agreement or under the Cell
Guarantees or in relation to the information set out in those sections for which they are responsible.
Mourant Ozannes Securities Limited (formerly Ozannes Securities Limited), as sponsor to the listing
of the Shares on the Channel Islands Stock Exchange, is acting for the Company and for no one else
in connection with any Offer and will not be responsible to anyone other than the Company for
providing the protections afforded to customers of Mourant Ozannes Securities Limited or for
affording advice in relation to the contents of this document or any other matters referred to in this
document.
All Shareholders are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by and are deemed to have notice of the
provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, copies of which are
available as mentioned in Part J of this document. A summary of the principal provisions of the
Articles of Association is set out in paragraph 6 of Part D of this document.
Defined terms used in this document shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Definitions
section, which commences on page 21 of this document.
Where parts only of documents are incorporated by reference into this Registration Document, any
non-incorporated parts of such document are either deemed not relevant for an investor or are
otherwise covered elsewhere in this Registration Document.
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DEFINITIONS
The following definitions apply in this document unless the context otherwise requires:

Administrator or Secretary

Anson Fund Managers Limited or such other person or
persons as may from time to time be appointed by the
Company as its administrator or secretary

Administration
Agreement

the agreement between the Company and the Administrator, a
summary of which is set out in paragraph 7.4 of Part D of this
document

and

Secretarial

Adjustment to Index

a material change in an Index methodology, a permanent
cancellation of the Index or a failure by the Index Sponsor to
calculate and announce an Index in accordance with and as
described under the section entitled "Market Disruption and
Adjustment" in Part B of this document

Admission

admission of the Shares to the Official List of, and to trading
on, the Channel Islands Stock Exchange

Application Form

in relation to each Cell, the application form for use in
connection with the Offer for Subscription of Shares issued in
respect of that Cell in the form prescribed by the Company
from time to time

Articles or Articles of Association

the articles of association of the Company

Averaged Valuation Period Index
Level

in relation to an Index, shall be as specified in the Relevant
Securities Note

Banco Santander

Banco Santander, S.A.

Banco Santander Group

Banco Santander and its subsidiaries collectively

Business Day

a day on which banks and stock exchanges in Guernsey and
London are normally open for business

Cell

a cell of the Company established by the Directors in
accordance with the Companies Law and the Articles for the
purpose of segregating and protecting cellular assets and
representing the assets of that cell in the manner provided by
the Companies Law

Cell Guarantee

in relation to each Cell in respect of which Santander
Guarantee Company and the Company have entered into a
Deed of Guarantee, the guarantee provided by Santander
Guarantee Company for the benefit of Shareholders of Shares
issued in respect of that Cell, under which Santander
Guarantee Company guarantees that Shareholders who hold
their Shares until the Maturity Date for such Shares (whether
they acquire their Shares pursuant to, or subsequent to, the
relevant Issue) will, subject to the terms and conditions of
such guarantee (a summary of which is set out in the
Relevant Securities Note), receive the Guaranteed Return in
respect of such Shares
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Cell Security Documents

in relation to Shares issued in respect of each Cell in respect
of which Santander Guarantee Company and the Company
have entered into a Deed of Guarantee, any charge
agreement, pledge agreement or other security document
entered into by the Company for the purposes of securing its
interests in the Plan Investments for that Cell (including all
interest, dividends, cash, instruments and other property or
proceeds received, receivable or otherwise distributed in
respect of such Plan Investments) in favour of the Guarantor,
as described in the Relevant Securities Note for that Cell

certificated

recorded in the register of members of the Company and
evidenced by the issue of a negotiable share certificate

Companies Act 2006

the United Kingdom Companies Act, 2006, as amended from
time to time

Companies Law

the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, as amended and
restated from time to time

Company

Guaranteed Investment Products 1 PCC Limited

Company Winding-up Date

the date on which the Company is wound-up

Conditional
Agreement

Subscription

the conditional share subscription deed entered into between
Abbey National plc (now known as Santander UK plc) and
Santander Guarantee Company, as amended from time to
time, a summary of which is set out in paragraph 17.3 of Part
E of this document

Correction to Stock Prices or Index
Levels

any correction to an Index level or the price of a component
of a Stock Basket in accordance with and as described under
the section entitled "Market Disruption and Adjustment"
in Part B of this document

Deed of Guarantee

in respect of a Cell, the deed of guarantee entered into by
Santander Guarantee Company setting out the terms of that
Cell Guarantee for the benefit of the holders of Shares issued
in respect of that Cell, a summary of which is set out in the
Relevant Securities Note. The Deed of Guarantee will be
constituted by the execution of the Series Deed for the
relevant Cell

Derivative

any transaction between the Company and an Investment
Counterparty which is a forward transaction, term loan
agreement governed by an ISDA master agreement, rate swap
transaction, zero coupon swap, basis swap, forward rate
transaction, equity swap, index swap, equity option, index
option, bond option, interest rate option, foreign exchange
transaction, cap transaction, floor transaction, collar
transaction, currency swap transaction, cross currency rate
swap transaction, currency option, credit derivative or any
other similar transaction or any combination of such
transactions

Determination Agent

in respect of a Cell, the determination agent appointed by the
Company to provide calculation agency and other services in
relation to the Shares issued in respect of that Cell

Share
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Determination Agency Agreement

in respect of a Cell, the determination agency agreement
entered into between the Company for and on behalf of the
Cell and the Determination Agent. The Determination
Agency Agreement will be constituted by the execution of
the Series Deed for the relevant Cell

Directors or Board

the directors of the Company

Disrupted Day

any Scheduled Trading Day on which a relevant Exchange or
any Related Exchange fails to open for trading during its
regular trading session or on which a Market Disruption
Event has occurred

Early Closure

unless otherwise specified in the Relevant Securities Note,
the closure on any Exchange Business Day of any relevant
Exchange or Related Exchange prior to its Scheduled Closing
Time unless such earlier closing time is announced by such
Exchange or Related Exchange at least one hour prior to the
earlier of (i) the actual closing time for the regular trading
session on such Exchange or Related Exchange on such
Exchange Business Day and (ii) the submission deadline for
orders to be entered into the Exchange or Related Exchange
system for execution at the Valuation Time on such
Exchange Business Day

Encumbrance

any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other encumbrance
securing any obligation of any person, any arrangement under
which money or claims to it, or the benefit of a bank or other
account, may be applied, set off or made subject to a
combination of accounts so as to effect payment of sums
owed or payable to any person or any other type of
preferential arrangement (including, without limitation, title
transfer and retention arrangements) having a similar effect

Enlarged Santander UK Group

The Santander Group, each Holding Company of Santander
UK plc and the Subsidiaries of each such Holding Company

EU

European Union

Exchange

in relation to a Cell for which the Investment Return is
referable to the performance of an Index or a Stock Basket,
each exchange specified in the Relevant Securities Note

Exchange Business Day

any Scheduled Trading Day on which each relevant
Exchange and Related Exchange are open for trading during
their respective regular trading sessions

Exchange Disruption

in relation to the determination of the level of an Index or the
prices of the components of a Stock Basket any event (other
than an Early Closure) that disrupts or impairs (as determined
by the Determination Agent) the ability of market
participants in general to effect transactions in, or obtain
market values for, (a) the components of the relevant Index or
(b) the components of the relevant Stock Basket on any
relevant Exchange or (c) futures and options contracts
relating to the relevant Index or the components of the
relevant Stock Basket on any relevant Related Exchange,
unless otherwise specified in the Relevant Securities Note
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Final Index Level

in relation to an Index, shall be as specified in the Relevant
Securities Note

Final Stock Basket Price

in relation to a Stock Basket, shall be as specified in the
Relevant Securities Note

Final Valuation Period

in relation to each Cell, shall have the meaning set out in the
Relevant Securities Note

Financial Instruments

in respect of any Cell:
(a)

any Derivative;

(b)

any Notes; or

(c)

any combination of any Derivative and/or Notes

Fitch

Fitch Ratings Ltd

FSA

the UK Financial Services Authority, a company limited by a
guarantee established and authorised to carry out its
regulatory functions under the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000 of the United Kingdom (and any successor
organisation)

FSMA

the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 of the United
Kingdom

FTSE

the FTSETM 100 Index (Capital Return), an index comprising
100 of the largest UK companies (in terms of market
capitalisation) listed on the London Stock Exchange which is
compiled and calculated by the Index Sponsor

Fundamental Change

a fundamental change which, in the opinion of the relevant
Investment Counterparty, is material to its ability to provide a
valuation of an Index, as described under the section entitled
"Market Disruption and Adjustment" in Part B of this
document

GFSC

the Guernsey Financial Services Commission (and any
successor organisation)

Gross Issue Proceeds

in relation to a Cell, as specified in the Relevant Securities
Note

Guarantee Claims Agent

in relation to any Cell Guarantee, Anson Registrars Limited
or such other person appointed by Shareholders pursuant to
their Application Forms to act as their guarantee claims agent
in accordance with the terms of the Guarantee Claims Deed

Guarantee Claims Deed

the guarantee claims deed entered into between the Company,
Santander Guarantee Company and the Guarantee Claims
Agent, as amended from time to time, a summary of which is
set out in paragraph 7.8 of Part D of this document

Guarantee Facility Agreement

the guarantee facility agreement entered into between the
Company and Santander Guarantee Company, as amended
from time to time, a summary of which is set out in paragraph
7.7 of Part D of this document
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Guarantor

Santander Guarantee Company

Guaranteed Return

in relation to Shares issued in respect of any Cell in respect of
which a Cell Guarantee has been provided by the Guarantor,
the amount described as such in relation to such Shares in the
Relevant Securities Note

Holding Company

any body corporate which is for the time being a holding
company within the meaning given to it in section 1159 of
the Companies Act 2006 or section 531 of the Companies
Law

HPI

Halifax UK national, all houses, all buyers, non-seasonally
adjusted House Price Index

Initial Launch Costs

has the meaning given to it in Part A of this document under
the sub-section headed "Fees and Expenses"

Index

the relevant index or indices (if any) used to determine the
Investment Return for each Share issued in respect of a Cell,
as specified in the Relevant Securities Note

Index Sponsor

shall have the meaning set out in the Relevant Securities Note
in relation to the relevant Index

Initial Index Level

in relation to an Index, shall be as specified in the Relevant
Securities Note

Initial Stock Basket Price

in relation to a Stock Basket, shall be as specified in the
Relevant Securities Note

inscribed

recorded in the register of members of the Company but not
evidenced by the issue of negotiable share certificates

Investment Amount

100p for each Share held by a Shareholder until its Maturity
Date, whether the Share is acquired pursuant to the relevant
Issue or subsequent to the relevant Issue

Investment Counterparty

in relation to each Cell, means the investment counterparty
for the Plan Investments in which the assets of that Cell are
invested, being Santander UK plc, Abbey National Treasury
Services plc and/or any other person approved by the
Company, the Guarantor, the Administrator and, if required
by applicable law and regulation, the GFSC

Investment Date

in relation to each Cell, the date specified in the Relevant
Securities Note relating to such Cell

Investment Manager

Abbey National Treasury Services plc or such other person or
persons from time to time appointed by the Company as the
Investment Manager of the Company or a particular Cell

Investment
Agreement

Management
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the agreement between the Company and Abbey National
Treasury Services plc (and any amendment thereto) or, in the
event that some other person is appointed by the Company as
the Investment Manager, the agreement between such person
and the Company which specifies the operation of such
investment management and advice in relation to each Cell or
a particular Cell, a summary of which is set out in
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paragraph 7.3 of Part D of this document
Investment Return and Investment
Return per Share

in relation to the Shares issued in respect of each Cell, the
amount payable on the redemption of each Share issued in
respect of that Cell at the Maturity Date for such Share, in
accordance with, and subject to, the Articles, as set out in the
Relevant Securities Note for that Cell

Investment Term

in respect of Shares issued in respect of each Cell, the period
from the Investment Date to the relevant Maturity Date for
the relevant Shares

Issue

the issue of Shares in a Cell pursuant to an Offer for
Subscription for such Shares

Issue Price

in relation to the Shares issued in respect of a Cell, the issue
price or issue prices per Share set out in the Relevant
Securities Note

ISA

an account within the meaning of (and which satisfies the
requirements set out in) the ISA Regulations

ISA Regulations

the Individual Savings Account Regulations 1998 (United
Kingdom SI 1998/1870), as amended from time to time

ITA 2007

the UK Income Tax Act 2007

listed

for the purposes of the paragraphs under the heading
“Taxation” in Part D of this document, in the context of
Shares being “listed” on the Channel Islands Stock Exchange
and/or any other Recognised Stock Exchange, means listed
within the meaning of section 1005 ITA 2007

Listing

listing of the Shares on the Channel Islands Stock Exchange,
LBG

Listing Rules

the listing rules of the Channel Islands Stock Exchange, LBG

Listing Sponsor

Mourant Ozannes Securities Limited

Listing Sponsor’s Agreement

the conditional agreement between the Company and
Mourant Ozannes Securities Limited, a summary of which is
set out in paragraph 7.1 of Part D of this document

London Business Day

a day (excluding Saturday or Sunday) on which retail banks
are open for business (including dealings in foreign exchange
and foreign currency deposits) in London

London Stock Exchange

the London Stock Exchange plc and any successor thereto

Management Shares

non-participating shares of £1.00 each in the capital of the
Company designated as management shares

Market Disruption Event

the occurrence or existence of a Trading Disruption, an
Exchange Disruption, in each case at any time during the one
hour period that ends at the relevant Valuation Time, or an
Early Closure which, in each case in the opinion of the
Determination Agent, is material to its ability to provide a
valuation, as described under the section entitled “Market
Disruption and Adjustment” in Part B of this document
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Market Maker

Abbey National Treasury Services plc, acting in its capacity
as market maker for Shares, or such other person or persons
from time to time appointed by the Company acting as
market maker to maintain a market for Shares

Marketing Agreement

the agreement between the Company and the Marketing
Manager in relation to the marketing of Shares in a Cell, a
summary of which is set out in paragraph 7.6 of Part D of this
document or in the Relevant Securities Note

Marketing Manager

Santander ISA Managers Limited, or such other person as
may be appointed from time to time by the Company with, if
required, the approval of the GFSC, to act as marketing
manager to the Shares issued in respect of a Cell, as set out in
this document or in the Relevant Securities Note

Maturity Date

in relation to the Shares issued in respect of a Cell, the date
on which such Shares will be compulsorily redeemed as
specified in the Relevant Securities Note

Memorandum
Association

and

Articles

of

the memorandum and articles of association of the Company

Moody's

Moody’s Investors Service Limited

Net Asset Value or NAV

in relation to a Cell, the aggregate net assets attributable to
that Cell as calculated in accordance with the Articles of
Association

Net Asset Value per Share or NAV
per Share

in relation to a Cell, the Net Asset Value of the Cell divided
by the number of Shares issued in respect of that Cell then in
issue

Net Issue Proceeds

in relation to a Cell, the Gross Issue Proceeds less the
relevant Investment Manager’s fee and Marketing Manager’s
fee payable by the Company in respect of that Cell and any
other liabilities, in each case as set out in the sections headed
“Fees and Expenses” in Part A of this document or in the
Relevant Securities Note

Nominal Shares

non-participating shares of 0.0001p each in the capital of the
Company designated as nominal shares

Notes

any bonds, notes, securities or other debt instruments issued
by an Investment Counterparty

Observation

means, in respect of any day, an observation of the level of
the relevant Index or the prices of the relevant components of
the relevant Stock Basket is required for that day:
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(a)

for the purposes of comparing such level or prices
against a pre-determined level of the Index or predetermined prices of components of the Stock
Basket; or

(b)

for the purposes of determining on such day whether
the highest or lowest level of the Index or prices of
the components of the Stock Basket over a particular
period is reached on such day, by comparing such
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level or prices against other levels or prices observed
over that particular period
Offer for Subscription or Offer

the offer for subscription of Shares issued in respect of the
relevant Cell, on the terms set out in the Prospectus

Offer Period

the offer period for Shares issued in respect of the relevant
Cell, as set out in the Relevant Securities Note

Ongoing Costs

has the meaning given to it in Part A of this document under
the section headed “Fees and Expenses”

Plan Investments

in relation to a Cell, any investment or investments in
Financial Instruments made or to be made by the Company
on behalf of that Cell which are intended to generate the
funds required to pay the relevant Investment Return, as more
particularly described in the Relevant Securities Note, and
including, without limitation, any notes, securities, financial
contracts, investments or other assets acquired or entered into
by the Company prior to the redemption of the Shares issued
in respect of the relevant Cell with the proceeds of any of the
foregoing

Prospectus

together this Registration Document, the Relevant Summary
and the Relevant Securities Note, including any supplement
thereto published, from time to time, by the Company

Recognised Stock Exchange

for the purposes of the paragraphs under the heading
“Taxation” in Part D of this Registration Document means a
recognised stock exchange within the meaning of section
1005 ITA 2007

Register

the register of members of the Company

Registrar or Registrar, Transfer
Agent, Paying Agent and Receiving
Agent

Anson Registrars Limited or such other person or persons
from time to time appointed by the Company as its registrar,
transfer agent, paying agent and/or receiving agent

Registrar’s Agreement

the agreement between the Company and the Registrar, a
summary of which is set out in paragraph 7.5 of Part D of this
document

Registration Document

this document, issued by the Company, giving information
relating to the Company and general information about the
offer and issue of Shares issued in respect of Cells in the
Company, as the same is amended and/or supplemented from
time to time

Related Exchange

in relation to an Index or a Stock Basket and a Cell, each
exchange specified as such in the Relevant Securities Note

Relevant Securities Note

in relation to any Cell, the Securities Note describing the
rights attaching to the Shares issued in respect of that Cell
issued by the Company in connection with the Offer for
Subscription of such Shares

Relevant Summary

in relation to any Cell, the summary document describing the
key information relating to the Shares issued in respect of
that Cell issued by the Company in connection with the Offer
for Subscription of such Shares
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S&P

Standard & Poor's Credit Market Services Europe Limited

Santander

Santander UK plc

Santander Group

Santander and its subsidiaries

Scheduled Closing Time

the scheduled weekday closing time of an Exchange or
Related Exchange on a Scheduled Trading Day, without
regard to after hours or any other trading outside of the
regular trading session hours

Scheduled Trading Day

any day on which each Exchange and Related Exchange are
scheduled to be open for trading for their respective regular
trading sessions, other than a day on which trading on any
such Exchange or Related Exchange is scheduled to close
prior to its regular weekday closing time

Scheduled Valuation Date

means, in respect of Shares issued in respect of a Cell, each
date that, but for the occurrence of an event causing a
Disrupted Day, would have been a Valuation Date for the
purposes of the relevant Shares

Securities Note

in respect of Shares issued in respect of a Cell, the document
issued by the Company which contains the terms and
conditions of the relevant Shares, the basis on which the
relevant Shares are offered, risk factors and other information
specific to the relevant Shares

Semi-annual Period

if applicable to a Cell, shall have the meaning set out in the
Relevant Securities Note for that Cell

Series Deed

in relation to each Cell, the series deed entered into between
the Company acting on behalf of the Cell, the Investment
Counterparty, the Guarantor, the Determination Agent and
such other parties as may be specified in the Relevant
Securities Note, the execution of which will constitute the
Deed of Guarantee, the Determination Agency Agreement,
Charge Agreement and such other agreements as may be
specified in the relevant Securities Note in respect of the
Shares issued in respect of that Cell

Shareholders

in relation to a Cell, the holders of Shares issued in respect of
that Cell

Shares

participating redeemable preference shares of 0.0001p each
issued by the Company in respect of a Cell of the Company

Sterling or £

pounds sterling, the lawful currency of the United Kingdom

Stock Basket

in relation to a Cell, the basket of shares (if any) used to
determine the Investment Return for each Share issued in
respect of that Cell as specified in the Relevant Securities
Note

Subsidiary

any company which is for the time being a subsidiary (within
the meaning of section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006 or
section 531 of the Companies Law);
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Trading Disruption

in relation to the determination of the level of an Index or the
prices of the components of a Stock Basket, any suspension
or limitation imposed on trading by the relevant Exchange or
Related Exchange or otherwise and whether by reason of
movements in price exceeding limits permitted by the
relevant Exchange or Related Exchange or otherwise relating
to the components of the Index or the components of the
Stock Basket or futures and options contracts relating to the
Index or the components of the Stock Basket on any relevant
Related Exchange, unless otherwise specified in the Relevant
Securities Note

United Kingdom or UK

the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

United States, USA or US

the United States of America (including the States and the
District of Columbia and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico),
its territories, possessions and all other areas subject to its
jurisdiction;

US$

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

US Person

means, unless otherwise determined by the Directors: (i) a
natural person who is a resident of the United States; (ii) a
corporation, partnership or other entity other than an entity
organised principally for passive investment, organised under
the laws of the United States and which has its principal place
of business in the United States; (iii) an estate or trust, the
income of which is subject to United States income tax
regardless of the source; (iv) a pension plan for the
employees, officers or principals of an entity organised and
with its principal place of business in the United States; (v)
an entity organised principally for passive investment such as
a pool, investment company or other similar entity, provided
that units of participation in the entity held by persons who
qualify as US persons or otherwise as qualified eligible
persons represent in the aggregate 10 per cent. or more of the
beneficial interests in the entity and that such entity was
formed principally for the purpose of investment by such
persons in a commodity pool the operator of which is exempt
from certain requirements of Part 4 of the US Commodity
Futures Trading Commission's regulations by virtue of its
participants being non-US Persons; or (vi) any other US
Person as such term may be defined in Regulation S under
the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or in regulations
adopted under the US Commodity Exchange Act of 1922, as
amended.

Valuation

means, in respect of any day, a determination of the level of
the relevant Index or the prices of the relevant components of
the relevant Stock Basket is required for such day, for the
purposes of calculating the Initial Index Level, Final Index
Level, Averaged Valuation Period Index Level, Initial Stock
Basket Price or Final Stock Basket Price or otherwise or any
other index level or stock basket price specified as requiring a
"Valuation" in the Relevant Securities Note, and there is no
requirement to compare such level or prices against any other
level or prices in order to determine whether to use such level
or prices for the purpose of such calculation
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Valuation Date

means, in respect of the Shares issued in respect of a Cell,
each date specified in the Relevant Securities Note as a date
on which a level of the relevant Index or the prices of the
relevant components of the relevant Stock Basket are
required to be determined for the purposes of the relevant
Shares

Valuation Time

in relation to an Index or a Stock Basket, shall have the
meaning specified in the Relevant Securities Note

Valuation Period

means, in respect of the Shares issued in respect of a Cell, as
determined by the Determination Agent, the Final Valuation
Period, the Semi-annual Period or any other period specified
as such in the Relevant Securities Note during which the
level of the Index or prices of the components of the Stock
Basket are scheduled to be valued for the purposes of the
relevant Shares
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PART A
INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY
INTRODUCTION
The Company is a Guernsey incorporated, closed-ended, protected cell company established on 26
January 2005. The structure of the Company allows different Cells to be created from time to time at
the discretion of the Directors for the purpose of segregating and protecting the assets of each Cell,
each with its own investment objective and policy and portfolio of assets. Persons investing in, or
dealing with, a Cell of the Company only have recourse, and their interests are limited, to the assets
attributable to that Cell from time to time, and they have no recourse to the assets of any other Cell.
The Company currently has a number of Cells established in accordance with the Companies Law.
The Directors may from time to time create additional Cells.
The Company has an unlimited life but the Shares issued in respect of each Cell will have a Maturity
Date on which they will be compulsorily redeemed and Shareholders will receive the Investment
Return per Share applicable to that Cell. Details of the Maturity Date for the Shares issued in respect
of a particular Cell are set out in the Relevant Securities Note.
The Company's main object is the collective investment of its funds on a cellular basis with the aim of
achieving the Investment Return applicable to Shares issued in respect of each Cell.
The Shares are intended to appeal to all classes of investors, although the marketing of the Shares
already in issue prior to the date of this document was primarily aimed at retail investors.
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICY
The assets of each Cell will be invested in accordance with the investment objectives and policies of
that Cell as set out in the Relevant Securities Note.
The Company has no capacity to pay any dividend in respect of any Share except to the extent such
dividend is payable in accordance with the terms and conditions (as set out in the Relevant Securities
Note) applicable to that Share.
The only source of funding that will be available to the Company to acquire and/or enter into and/or
support the Plan Investments designed to fund the amounts payable in respect of any Shares and/or
any other amounts payable by the Company in connection with such Shares will derive from the
capital contributed by the subscribers of such Shares.
The Company and its Directors, in consultation with the Investment Manager, are responsible for the
formulation of the investment policy of each Cell and any subsequent change to that policy.
In the absence of unforeseen circumstances, the investment objectives and policies of the Company
with respect to each Cell will be adhered to for the Investment Term of that Cell. Any change in the
investment objectives and/or policies of the Company with respect to any Cell will only be made in
exceptional circumstances and then only with the prior approval of the Shareholders of the Shares
issued in respect of that Cell by way of special resolution and with the consent of the Guarantor.
It is the intention of the Directors that the investment objectives for each Cell will be achieved by
investing the Net Issue Proceeds of the Offer of Shares issued in respect of such Cell in the Plan
Investments as set out in the Relevant Securities Note. The Company anticipates that the Plan
Investments will consist solely of Financial Instruments provided, guaranteed and/or issued by
Santander UK plc, Abbey National Treasury Services plc and/or any other person approved by the
Company, the Guarantor, the Administrator and, if required by applicable law or regulation, the
GFSC.
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The returns on the Plan Investments are designed to enable the Company to meet its stated investment
objective for the relevant Cell. The Plan Investments are structured by the Investment Manager to
provide a Cell, as at the relevant Maturity Date, with an amount equal to the aggregate Investment
Return of the Shares issued in respect of that Cell. The Company will invest an amount equal to the
Net Issue Proceeds of each Offer in the relevant Plan Investments on Admission of the relevant
Shares.
RETURNS ON THE PLAN INVESTMENTS
The Plan Investments acquired for and entered into in respect of each Cell will be designed to impose
an obligation on the relevant Investment Counterparties to pay or repay to the Company on or around
the relevant Maturity Date an aggregate amount equal to the Investment Return for the Shares issued
in respect of the relevant Cell, as set out in the Relevant Securities Note.
The total amount payable or repayable by the relevant Investment Counterparties to the Company
under the relevant Plan Investments for each Cell will be paid on or around the Maturity Date for the
Shares issued in respect of the relevant Cell.
In relation to each Cell in respect of which the Guarantor has entered into a Cell Guarantee, the
realisation proceeds of any Plan Investments shall be paid into a security account with Santander UK
plc over which the Guarantor has a first charge pursuant to the Cell Security Documents for the
relevant Cell. Under the terms of the Cell Security Documents, the Company is not permitted,
without the prior consent of the Guarantor, to utilise the monies in the security account for any
purpose other than to make payments to Shareholders in respect of the redemption of their Shares.
The payment obligations of the relevant Investment Counterparties under the Plan Investments on or
around the Maturity Date and the security account arrangement (if applicable) is designed to enable
the Company, in turn, to pay to Shareholders on or around the Maturity Date the Investment Return in
respect of their Shares.
The obligations of each Investment Counterparty which is a member of the Santander Group (other
than Santander UK plc) under the Plan Investments for each Cell will be guaranteed by Santander UK
plc but will not be collateralised or secured (unless otherwise specified in the Relevant Securities Note
for the relevant Cell).
A holder of Shares will be entitled to look solely to the assets of the relevant Cell in respect of all
amounts payable in respect of those Shares. If the realised assets of the relevant Cell are insufficient
to pay any amounts payable in respect of such Shares, such a Shareholder will have no further right of
payment in respect of such Shares nor any claim against or recourse to any of the assets of any other
Cell or any of the other assets of the Company.
If the realised assets of the Cell are greater than the amounts payable on the relevant Shares and the
Shareholder has been paid the amounts payable, the Shareholder shall have no entitlement to any such
surplus.
The Plan Investments will not be rated for credit purposes. However, the current long-term issuer
credit ratings of Santander UK plc, which guarantees the obligations of each Investment Counterparty
which is a member of the Santander Group (other than Santander UK plc) under the Plan Investments
for each Cell, are set out below.
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Rating
Agency

Current
Long-term
Issuer
Credit
Rating

Rating
Outlook/
Watch

Range of
Rating
Agency
Ratings

Description of Rating and Rating
Outlook/ Watch

S&P

A

Outlook
Negative

AAA
(highest) to
D (lowest)

An obligor rated A is considered by
S&P to have a strong capacity to meet
its financial commitments, but is
somewhat susceptible to adverse
economic conditions and changes in
circumstances.
An S&P rating outlook of Negative
means that a long-term credit rating
may be lowered over the intermediate
term (typically six months to two
years). An outlook is not necessarily a
precursor of a rating change.

Moody's

A2

Outlook
Negative

Aaa
(highest) to
C (lowest)

A long-term issuer rating is an opinion
of the ability of entities to honour longterm senior unsecured financial
obligations and contracts and is
expressed on Moody's long-term global
obligation scale. Long-term obligations
rated A are considered by Moody's to
be of upper medium grade and are
subject to low credit risk. The modifier
'2' indicates a mid-range ranking in the
A rating category
A Moody's rating outlook of Negative
is an opinion regarding the likely
downward direction of an issuer's
rating over the medium term.

Fitch

A

Outlook
Stable

AAA
(highest) to
D (lowest)

A ratings denote Fitch expectations of
low default risk. The capacity for
payment of financial commitments is
considered strong. This capacity may,
nevertheless, be more vulnerable to
adverse
business
or
economic
conditions than is the case for higher
ratings.
Fitch rating outlooks indicate the
direction a rating is likely to move over
a one to two year period.

S&P, Moody's and Fitch are each established in the European Union and are each registered under
Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended). As such S&P, Moody's and Fitch are included in the
list of credit rating agencies published by the European Securities and Markets Authority on its
website in accordance with such Regulation.
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The information provided in relation to the long-term issuer credit rating of Santander UK plc
should be read in conjunction with the risk factor headed "Rating Agency Credit Ratings".
The Shares are intended to appeal to all classes of investors who are seeking a return linked to equities
and any other index to which the performance of the particular Cell is linked (if relevant) but with an
element of capital protection, although the Shares are intended to be primarily marketed to retail
investors.
CELL GUARANTEE
In respect of the Shares issued in respect of each Cell in relation to which Santander Guarantee
Company and the Company have entered into a Deed of Guarantee and pursuant to the Cell Guarantee
provided by the Guarantor in relation to that Cell, the relevant Shareholders will be guaranteed that
they will receive a minimum return per Share, equal to the Guaranteed Return for each such Share
issued in respect of the relevant Cell held until it is redeemed at its Maturity Date, subject to the terms
and conditions of the Cell Guarantee for that Cell. The Guaranteed Return applicable to the Shares
issued in respect of the relevant Cell in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into a Cell
Guarantee, and a summary of the terms and conditions of such Cell Guarantee will be specified in the
Relevant Securities Note.
Under the terms of any Cell Guarantee in relation to the Shares issued in respect of a Cell, the
Guarantor is obliged to pay Shareholders of Shares issued in respect of the relevant Cell any shortfall
between the amount such Shareholders receive from the Company for Shares redeemed at their
Maturity Date and the Guaranteed Return in respect of such Shares.
The obligations of Santander Guarantee Company to make payments under any relevant Cell
Guarantee will be limited to the extent that it is illegal for such payment to be made to Shareholders.
In addition, if there is a change of tax legislation at any time resulting in a withholding tax or other tax
deduction affecting payments under any Plan Investment or any tax is imposed on the Company on
the proceeds of any Plan Investment, the amount payable under the related Cell Guarantee will be
reduced accordingly. In the event that the amount paid by the Company to Shareholders on
redemption of Shares at their Maturity Date becomes subject to any withholding tax, Shareholders
will not be entitled to claim against the Guarantor under any relevant Cell Guarantee for payment of
the amounts withheld or deducted. Payments under each Cell Guarantee will also be made net of any
withholding tax or other tax deduction, including, for the avoidance of doubt, any FATCA
Withholding (as defined in the risk factor headed “US Foreign Account Tax Compliance withholding
may affect payments on the Shares” above).
The Guarantor has entered into the Conditional Share Subscription Agreement with Santander UK
plc. Under this agreement, the Guarantor may require Santander UK plc to subscribe for additional
shares in the Guarantor if the Guarantor is obliged to make a payment under any Cell Guarantee and it
has insufficient assets to satisfy such Cell Guarantee payment in full.
Under the Guarantee Facility Agreement, Santander Guarantee Company will only issue a new Cell
Guarantee for a new Cell if the issue of that Cell Guarantee will not result in the aggregate
maximum contingent liability of Santander Guarantee Company under all the Cell Guarantees
exceeding £8 billion.
Please refer to sub-sections headed "Plan Investments" and "Cell Guarantee Risks" in the "Risk
Factors" section for information on the circumstances in which Shareholders' may not receive the
Guaranteed Return and the limitations that will apply to each Cell Guarantee
BORROWING AND LENDING POWERS
The Directors do not intend for the Company itself to engage in any borrowing.
DISTRIBUTION POLICY
In the event that dividends are payable in relation to Shares issued in respect of a Cell, any dividends
which are declared will be paid in accordance with applicable law and regulation and, if a Cell
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Guarantee is applicable to that Cell, with the consent of the Guarantor. Any entitlement to dividends
in respect of Shares issued in respect of a Cell will be described in the section headed "Return" set out
in the Relevant Securities Note. The income distributed and the capital growth achieved will derive
from the Plan Investments held by the Company for the relevant Cell in respect of which distributions
are made.
Any dividend which is unclaimed after a period of twelve years from the date of declaration of such
dividend shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company.
SANTANDER GROUP
Santander UK plc and its subsidiaries form a diversified financial services group engaged in a wide
range of banking, financial and finance related activities principally centred in the United Kingdom.
Detailed information in relation to Santander UK plc is set out in Part F of this document. Please see
the section headed "Returns on the Plan Investments" in this Part A for information on the long-term
issuer credit ratings of Santander UK plc.
The information contained in this document with respect to Santander UK plc and the Santander
Group has been obtained from Santander UK plc.
MARKET FOR SHARES
The Directors do not anticipate that an active secondary market will develop in the Shares. However,
from the relevant Investment Date onwards Abbey National Treasury Services plc may act as market
maker (the Market Maker) to maintain a market for the Shares. Such liquidity may be of a limited
nature and the Market Maker may cease to undertake any market making activities at any time at its
sole discretion. For example, the Market Maker may decide not to buy Shares if it determines that
market conditions are unfavourable or it is likely to be in breach of applicable laws and regulations or
its internal policies and limits. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that at any time there will be a
secondary market for any Shares and, if there is, the secondary market price in respect of any Shares
will reflect numerous factors including trade size, volatility of the Index or Stock Basket, cost of
funding, interest rates, credit risk, supply and demand as well as a bid/offer spread. Accordingly
investors should not expect that any secondary market price for any Shares will be calculated entirely
or almost entirely by reference to the Net Asset Value per Share or an index of any description or by
reference to any index or asset referred to in the terms of any Shares.
Any change in the Market Maker of which the Company is aware will be notified to Shareholders in
the annual or semi-annual report of the Company.
In maintaining a market for Shares, the Market Maker may realise profits or sustain losses in the
amount of any differences between the prices at which it buys Shares and the prices at which it sells
such Shares or the amounts it receives on redemption of such Shares. Any profit made by the Market
Maker may be retained by it for its absolute use and it shall not be liable to account to the Company in
respect of such profits.
The return to any Shareholder who disposes of any Shares prior to their Maturity Date will depend on
the price which can be obtained for those Shares in the market at that time and may be less than the
Investment Return or even the Investment Amount in respect of such Shares.
Any Shareholder who disposes of any Shares prior to their Maturity Date will not be covered by
any relevant Cell Guarantee in respect of such disposal and may receive back less than the
amount he or she invested in the Shares.
CROSS-CELL LIABILITIES
The structure of the Company allows for the creation of multiple Cells.
The assets of each Cell are subject to contractual segregation and statutory segregation under the
Companies Law and, subject to certain exceptions (see below in relation to recourse agreements),
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creditors of one Cell or the Company as a whole cannot seek to recover from the assets of other Cells,
and so no cross liability between Cells should occur.
However, as there can be no assurance that the Companies Law will not change or that a court would
not find contractual segregation unenforceable, there can be no assurance that there will never be any
cross liability that may occur between Cells.
Under the Companies Law it is possible for the Company to enter into a recourse agreement which
provides for recourse to core assets or the assets of one or more cells however, the Directors do not
intend for any such recourse agreements to be put in place.
ADDITIONAL CELLS
The Company may from time to time create additional Cells as the Directors may deem appropriate.
Details of any Cell or Cells created in the future shall be set out in the Relevant Securities Note for
such Cell. New Shares will be offered by the Company at a price set out in the Relevant Securities
Note and the Offer of Shares issued in respect of each new Cell is conditional on:
(a)

the Company receiving the approval of the Channel Islands Stock Exchange for the admission
of the Shares to the Official List of the Channel Islands Stock Exchange by the date specified
in the Relevant Securities Note; and

(b)

the relevant Prospectus being approved by the UKLA and filed with the GFSC; and

(c)

in respect of any new Cell in relation to which the Guarantor is to enter into a Cell Guarantee
only, the execution by the Guarantor of a Deed of Guarantee in relation to Shares issued in
respect of such new Cell, pursuant to which the Guarantor provides the Cell Guarantee for the
benefit of Shareholders of Shares issued in respect of such new Cell; and

(d)

such other conditions as are specified in the Relevant Securities Note.

The Company reserves the right to withdraw or limit the Offer in respect of Shares issued in respect
of a new Cell as set out in this document and in the Relevant Securities Note. In this event, the basis
of Share allocation shall be at the Company's sole discretion and the Company reserves the right to
reject any application in whole or in part. The Receiving Agent will then, at the risk of the applicant,
return any monies (without interest) or the balance thereof within seven Business Days of the
rejection by cheque or, at the cost of the applicant, by telegraphic transfer, in each case at the risk of
the applicant.
In the event that any of the above conditions is not satisfied in respect of any Offer, no Shares will be
allotted and all subscription monies will be returned by the Receiving Agent to applicants (without
interest) by cheque or, at the cost of the applicant, by telegraphic transfer, all at the risk of the
applicant and the Company will cancel the relevant Cell.
The Directors may, in their absolute discretion, differentiate between the rights attaching to the
different Cells including, without limitation, as regards the Investment Returns and fees and expenses
payable in respect of each Cell.
MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF THE COMPANY
Introduction
The Directors are responsible for the determination of the Company's investment policy and have
overall responsibility for the Company's activities.
The Company has established a corporate governance framework in accordance with the GFSC
Finance Sector Code of Corporate Governance.
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Directors
The Directors of the Company, all of whom are non-executive, are listed below:
Gavin John Farrell (aged 46) qualified as a Solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales, a
French Avocat and an Advocate of the Royal Court of Guernsey. He is a partner at Mourant Ozannes,
Advocates and Notaries Public, in Guernsey and specialises in international and structured finance
and collective investment schemes. Gavin holds a number of directorships in investment and captive
insurance companies. He is resident in Guernsey.
John Reginald Le Prevost (aged 61) is the Chief Executive Officer of Anson Group Limited and
chairman of its two operating subsidiaries, Anson Fund Managers Limited (the Company's
administrator and secretary) and Anson Registrars Limited (the Company's registrar and receiving
agent and the Guarantee Claims Agent). He has spent over 35 years working in offshore trusts and
investment business during which time he was managing director of County NatWest Investment
Management (Channel Islands) Limited, Royal Bank of Canada's mutual fund company in Guernsey
and Republic National Bank of New York's international trust company. He is a director of a number
of companies associated with Anson's business as well as being a trustee of the Guernsey Sailing
Trust. He is resident in Guernsey.
Paul Jonathan Meader (aged 47) is an independent director of investment and insurance funds and
companies. Until the autumn of 2012 he was Head of Portfolio Management for Collins Stewart
based in Guernsey, prior to which he was Chief Executive of Corazon Capital. He has 26 years’
experience in financial markets in London, Dublin and Guernsey holding senior positions in portfolio
management and trading, with particular expertise in fixed income investments. Prior to joining
Corazon he was Managing Director of Rothschild's Swiss private-banking subsidiary in Guernsey.
Paul is a Chartered Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Securities & Investments, a past
Commissioner of the Guernsey Financial Services Commission and past Chairman of the Guernsey
International Business Association, The International Bankers' Association and of the Guernsey
Investment Managers’ & Stockbrokers’ Association. He is resident in Guernsey.
Marketing Manager
Santander ISA Managers Limited has been appointed by the Company as Marketing Manager
pursuant to the Marketing Agreement and is responsible for marketing its Shares in the UK, in
association with and as authorised by the Company. Pursuant to the Marketing Agreement the
Marketing Manager may delegate its obligations to other entities who will, by virtue of such
delegation, be responsible for marketing its Shares in the UK, in association with and as authorised by
the Company.
Santander ISA Managers Limited is authorised and regulated by the FSA in the United Kingdom.
The Company may appoint other persons to act as marketing manager in relation to Shares issued in
respect of particular Cells, in association with and as authorised by the Company.
Investment Manager
Subject to the overall policy, control and supervision of the Board of Directors, the Directors have
delegated the powers of determining the investment policy and carrying on the investment
management of the Company to Abbey National Treasury Services plc pursuant to the Investment
Management Agreement.
The Investment Manager, which is regulated by the FSA, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Santander
UK plc. The Investment Manager performs or has performed a role similar to that which it will
undertake for the Company in relation to more than 300 fixed term, defined return, investment funds
subject to regulation by the Irish Financial Services Regulatory Authority and referable to share issues
by Irish companies listed on the Irish Stock Exchange and marketed to UK investors.
The Investment Manager, registered in England and Wales under registered number 02338548, was
incorporated on 24 January 1989 and has an indefinite life. The Investment Manager is incorporated
in England and Wales as a public company limited by shares.
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The Investment Manager will arrange for each Cell of the Company to invest in assets which are
intended to produce returns sufficient to enable the Company to pay the Investment Returns on the
Shares issued in respect of the relevant Cell and will not seek to generate higher returns for
Shareholders. Further details of the Investment Manager's role, and details of the Investment
Management Agreement, are set out in paragraph 7.3 of Part D of this document. The Investment
Manager will not be obliged to make good any deficit in the Investment Returns receivable by
Shareholders in respect of any Cell irrespective of the reason for such deficit.
Determination Agent
A Determination Agent will be appointed by the Company in respect of the Shares issued in respect of
each Cell, pursuant to the Determination Agency Agreement created by the Series Deed in relation to
the relevant Cell. A summary of the Determination Agency Agreements entered into as of the date of
this Registration Document are set out in paragraph 7.14 of Part D of this document. Under each
Determination Agency Agreement, the Determination Agent will perform the duties specifically
stated in the Determination Agency Agreement and Prospectus to be performed by the Determination
Agent in respect of the Shares including providing calculation agency services in respect of the Shares
issued by the Company. The functions and duties of the Determination Agent are expected to include,
but not be limited to, the determination of the Initial Index Level, the Final Index Level, the Averaged
Valuation Period Index Level, the Investment Return and the occurrence and consequences of any
events that may have an effect on each of those determinations.
Administrator and Secretary
Anson Fund Managers Limited has been appointed as Administrator and Secretary pursuant to the
Administration and Secretarial Agreement, a summary of which is set out in paragraph 7.4 of Part D
of this document. In such capacity, the Administrator will be responsible for the general secretarial
functions required by the Companies Law and for ensuring that the Company complies with its
continuing obligations as a company listed on the Channel Islands Stock Exchange. The
Administrator will also be responsible for the Company's general administrative functions such as the
calculation of Net Asset Values, the maintenance of accounting records and the processing of
redemptions of Shares. Anson Fund Managers Limited is licensed to act as Administrator and
Secretary by the GFSC. The assets of the Company are not required to be held by a custodian.
Accordingly, no custodian has been appointed and the Administrator shall be responsible for any
administrative responsibilities in respect of the assets.
The Administrator, registered in Guernsey under registered number 34570, was incorporated on 23
October 1998 and has an indefinite life. The Administrator is established as a Guernsey company
limited by shares.
The Registrar, Transfer Agent, Paying Agent and Receiving Agent
Anson Registrars Limited has been appointed as Registrar, Transfer Agent, Paying Agent and
Receiving Agent of the Company pursuant to the Registrar's Agreement, a summary of which is set
out in paragraph 7.5 of Part D of this document. Anson Registrars Limited is a private limited
company incorporated in Guernsey on 7 June 2000 and is a member of the same group of companies
as the Administrator. Anson Registrars Limited is also the Receiving Agent for each Offer for
Subscription. Anson Registrars Limited has been licensed to act as Registrar, Transfer Agent, Paying
Agent and Receiving Agent by the GFSC.
Guarantee Claims Agent
In respect of any Shares issued in respect of a Cell in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into
a Cell Guarantee, Anson Registrars Limited will be appointed as the Guarantee Claims Agent by
Shareholders pursuant to their Application Forms to act as their agent in accordance with the terms of
the Guarantee Claims Deed, a summary of which is set out in paragraph 7.8 of Part D of this
document. Under the Guarantee Claims Deed, the Guarantee Claims Agent agrees to facilitate a
timely demand and payment under any Cell Guarantee, as agent for the relevant Shareholders. In the
unlikely event that Shareholders of Shares issued in respect of any Cell in relation to which the
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Guarantor has entered into a Cell Guarantee do not receive the Guaranteed Return from the Company
in respect of their Shares held until they are redeemed at the Maturity Date, and a demand has to be
made under the relevant Cell Guarantee, such demand will be made by the Guarantee Claims Agent
on behalf of the Shareholders of the relevant Cell.
FEES AND EXPENSES
The fees payable to the Investment Manager and the Marketing Manager are payable by the
Company.
Investment Manager's Fee
Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Investment Manager shall be paid a fee in respect
of each Cell which shall be paid on the Investment Date of the relevant Cell and shall not exceed a
specified percentage of an amount equal to the number of Shares in issue on each Investment Date
multiplied by £1. The specified percentage for each Cell is as set out in the section headed "Fees and
Expenses" in the Relevant Securities Note.
Marketing Manager's Fee
Under the Marketing Agreement, the Marketing Manager shall be paid a fee in respect of each Cell
which will be paid on the Investment Date of the relevant Cell and which will not exceed a specified
percentage of an amount equal to the number of Shares in issue on the applicable Investment Date
multiplied by £1. The specified percentage for each Cell is as set out in the section headed "Fees and
Expenses" in the Relevant Securities Note.
Initial Launch Costs and Ongoing Costs borne by the Investment Manager
Save for its own fee and the Marketing Manager's fee, the Investment Manager has agreed to meet all
other costs and expenses relating to the operation of the Company, any Cells currently being
established or created in the future, the cost of listing any Shares on the Channel Islands Stock
Exchange, the costs associated with the termination of each Cell and the liquidation of the Company,
including the Initial Launch Costs and Ongoing Costs set out below.
If any dispute arises between the Company and the Investment Manager in relation to the calculation
of the expenses of the Company to be met by the Investment Manager, such dispute shall be referred
to a firm of accountants as determined by the President of the Guernsey Society of Certified and
Chartered Accounts from time to time.
It is expected that, in the absence of unforeseen circumstances, the Company will not have to bear any
other fees and expenses apart from the Investment Manager's fee and the Marketing Manager's fee.
Initial Launch Costs
The Initial Launch Costs are costs which arise from or are incidental to the establishment of the
Company and each Cell, the Offer for Subscription and the Admission. These include the Listing
Sponsor's fee, legal and accounting fees, the Administrator's set-up and daily transaction fees, the
Receiving Agent's fee, the Guarantor's initial commission (if applicable), the Guarantee Claims
Agent's fee (if applicable), fees of the Channel Islands Stock Exchange, promotion costs, and printing,
advertising and distribution costs.
Ongoing Costs
The Ongoing Costs are costs which are incidental to the management and administration of the
Company and each Cell and which will be incurred over the period until the Company Winding-up
Date.
The Ongoing Costs include, but are not limited to, the following:

0030144-0000332 ICM:16026328.16

40

Administrator and Secretary's Fees
The Administrator is entitled to receive an annual fee of £5,000 together with, for each Cell, an annual
fee of £1,000 per Cell, payable pro rata monthly in arrear, together with an amount representing out
of pocket expenses.
Auditors' Fees
The Auditors' fees are not expected to exceed the aggregate of £5,000 and £750 per Cell plus
disbursements.
Directors' Fees
Gavin John Farrell and John Reginald Le Prevost are each currently entitled to be paid a fee of £3,000
per annum plus £500 for each Cell up to and including Cell 8, £750 for each Cell from Cell 18 up to
and including Cell 59 and £500 for each Cell thereafter (plus VAT thereon, if applicable). Paul
Jonathan Meader is currently entitled to be paid a fee of £35,000 per annum plus £250 for each Cell,
subject to a cap of £55,000 per annum (plus VAT thereon, if applicable).
Other Operational Expenses
Ongoing costs also include operational expenses of the Company and each Cell, including the fees
and out-of-pocket expenses of the Registrar, Transfer Agent, Paying Agent and Receiving Agent,
legal advisers, the fees and out-of-pocket expenses of the Listing Sponsor, Channel Islands Stock
Exchange fees, printing fees, the costs of publishing the NAV, announcement fees and costs of
preparing and printing the report and accounts and other documents for Shareholders.
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
The Investment Manager and the Directors may, in the course of their business, have potential
conflicts of interest with the management of the Company. In such circumstances, the Investment
Manager and the Directors of the Company will have regard to their respective duties and, in
particular, to their obligations to act in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders so far
as is practicable, having regard also to their obligations to other clients when undertaking any
investments where conflicts of interest may arise. In the event that such conflicts do arise the
Investment Manager and the Directors of the Company will use their best efforts to resolve such
conflicts fairly.
The Determination Agent may have potential conflicts of interest between its role as Determination
Agent and acting in its capacities as Investment Counterparty and Market Maker. The Determination
Agent will have regard to its obligations to act in accordance with the rules of the FSA and any other
regulatory regime to which it is subject and its obligations to other clients. In the event that such
conflicts do arise, the Determination Agent shall use its reasonable endeavours to procure that any
such conflicts of interest are resolved fairly (having regard to its and/or its Affiliates' respective
obligations and duties) and to ensure that the interests of the Company and the Shareholders are not
unfairly prejudiced. However, where any such conflict is resolved in this way, such resolution may be
adverse to the Company, the relevant Cell and the relevant Shareholders or to the interests of the
Company, the relevant Cell and the relevant Shareholders.
The Investment Manager, the Guarantor, each Investment Counterparty, the Determination Agent, any
Marketing Manager, the Directors, any Shareholder, any Market Maker and any of their respective
subsidiaries, affiliates, associates, agents or delegates (Connected Persons and each a Connected
Person) may:
(a)

contract or enter into any financial, banking or other transaction with one another or with the
Company including, without limitation, investment by the Company in securities of a
Shareholder or investment by any Connected Persons in any company or body any of whose
investments form part of the assets of the Company or be interested in any such contracts or
transactions;
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(b)

invest in and deal with Shares or any property of the kind included in the property of the
Company for their respective individual accounts or for the account of a third party provided
that no such transactions or dealings shall result in Shares being acquired for or on behalf of a
US person; and

(c)

deal as agent or principal in the sale or purchase of securities and other investments to, or
from, the Company through, or with, any other Connected Person or any subsidiary, affiliate,
associate, agent or delegate thereof. There will be no obligation on the part of any Connected
Person to account to Shareholders for any benefits so arising and any such benefits may be
retained by the relevant party.

INVESTOR RESTRICTIONS
Restrictions and Compulsory Transfer of Shares
The Shares have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the "Securities Act") and may not be offered or sold in the United States or to or for the
account or benefit of US persons (as such terms are defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act)
except to certain persons in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act.
No Shares may be purchased or held by US Persons. Shares acquired directly or indirectly by a US
Person or held by a person who becomes a US Person, persons in breach of any law or requirement of
any country or persons who directly or indirectly may result in the Company incurring any liability to
taxation or pecuniary disadvantage, are subject to compulsory transfer by the Company in accordance
with the Articles of Association.
MEETINGS AND REPORTS TO SHAREHOLDERS
All general meetings of the Company and Cell meetings are held in Guernsey.
In each year, the Company holds a general meeting as its annual general meeting. A minimum of ten
days' notice (excluding the day of posting and the day of the meeting) is given, in respect of each
general meeting of the Company, to all holders of shares in the Company and, in respect of each Cell
meeting, to all holders of Shares issued in respect of the relevant Cell. The notice specifies the place
and time of the meeting and the business to be transacted at the meeting.
All holders of shares in the Company are entitled to attend general meetings of the Company but,
normally, only the holders of Management Shares are entitled to vote at general meetings. Holders of
Shares in a Cell will be entitled to vote on a resolution at a general meeting only if the resolution
purports to amend, or is deemed by the Articles of Association to amend, any of the rights attaching to
their Shares, if the resolution relates to the issue of a further class of Shares issued in respect of the
same Cell which are expressed to rank pari passu or in priority to their Shares, or if the resolution is
materially prejudicial to them. A proxy may attend a general meeting on behalf of any holder of any
shares in the Company who is entitled to vote at that meeting.
All holders of Shares issued in respect of a Cell are entitled to attend and vote at Cell meetings in
respect of their Cell. A proxy may attend a Cell meeting on behalf of any Shareholder who is entitled
to vote at that meeting.
The Company's audited annual report and financial statements, prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, are prepared to 31 March each year, with the first such
report and financial statements published in 2006. Copies of the audited annual report and accounts to
31 March are sent to Shareholders no later than the end of the following September, for their
information. Shareholders also receive an unaudited interim report to 30 September in each year,
which is despatched no later than the end of the following January.
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PART B
INFORMATION ON THE OPERATION OF THE CELLS
Issue, Transfer and Form of Holding of Shares
The Registrar has been appointed to maintain the Register in which all issues and transfers of Shares
issued in respect of each Cell will be recorded.
Shares will be issued in registered form and may be held in either inscribed form or certificated form.
Shares will be issued in inscribed form unless the relevant applicant requests on his or her Application
Form that his or her Shares be issued in certificated form.
Where Shares are entered in the Register in inscribed form, the name and address of the holder
(including the names of additional holders in the case of joint holders) of such Shares will be
inscribed in the Register and such an inscription will be the sole evidence of title of such holder(s) to
those Shares. Whenever an inscription is made in the Register in respect of inscribed Shares,
following either the issue or the processing of a transfer of Shares in favour of a holder, the Registrar
will issue to that holder a written confirmation of such inscription. Such a confirmation will be sent to
the registered address of the Shareholder (or in the case of a joint holding, the Shareholder first named
on the Register) within seven days' of the date of inscription. No share certificate will be issued for
Shares held in inscribed form.
Where Shares are entered in the Register in certificated form, the name and address of the holder
(including the names of additional holders in the case of joint holders) of such Shares will be
inscribed in the Register for the relevant Cell and, whilst such an inscription will be the definitive
evidence of title of such holder(s) to those Shares, the Registrar will also issue to that holder a share
certificate for such Shares. The share certificate will be sent to the registered address of the
Shareholder (or in the case of a joint holding, the Shareholder first named on the Register) within
seven days' of the date of inscription and issue of the certificate.
Shares held in inscribed form may be converted into certificated form by delivering to the Registrar a
written instruction requesting conversion, in the form prescribed by the Company (Conversion
Form), signed by all holders. Shares held in certificated form may be converted into inscribed form
by written instruction, in the form of a Conversion Form, requesting conversion signed by all holders
together with the relevant share certificate(s) being delivered to the Registrar. Conversion Forms are
available from the Registrar.
Any change in address of a Shareholder should be notified in advance to the Registrar.
Shares are transferable only by instrument in writing signed by (or, in the case of a transfer by a body
corporate, signed on behalf of or sealed by) the transferor being delivered to the Registrar together
with, in the case of shares in certificated form, the relevant share certificates.
In the case of the death of one of the joint Shareholders, the survivor or survivors will be the only
person or persons recognised by the Company or the Registrar as having any title to or interest in the
Shares registered in the names of such joint Shareholders.
Calculation of Net Asset Value
The Net Asset Value of a Share issued in respect of each Cell shall be calculated at such periodic
intervals as may be specified in the Relevant Securities Note, by dividing the Net Asset Value of the
Company attributable to that Cell by the total number of Shares issued in respect of that Cell in issue.
The Articles provide for the method of valuation of the assets and liabilities of each Cell of the
Company for the purposes of determining Net Asset Value.
The Administrator is responsible for the determination and calculation of the Net Asset Value per
Share and will notify such to the Channel Islands Stock Exchange as soon as is practicable following
calculation.
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Suspension of the calculation of Net Asset Value
The Directors may at any time temporarily suspend the calculation of the Net Asset Value per Share
during:
(a)

any period when any of the principal markets or stock exchanges on which a substantial part
of the investments of the Company or any relevant Cell are quoted is closed, otherwise than
for ordinary holidays, or during which dealings thereon are restricted or suspended;

(b)

any period when, as a result of political, economic, military or monetary events or any
circumstances outside the control, responsibility and power of the Directors, disposal or
valuation of a substantial part of the investments of the Company or any relevant Cell is not
reasonably practicable without this being seriously detrimental to the interests of the
Shareholders or if in the opinion of the Directors the Net Asset Value of the Cell cannot be
fairly calculated;

(c)

any breakdown in the means of communication normally employed in determining the value
of the investments of the Company or any relevant Cell or when for any reason the current
prices on any market of a substantial part of the investments of the Company or any relevant
Cell cannot be promptly and accurately ascertained.

Any such suspension will be notified to the Channel Islands Stock Exchange without delay. The
Directors will take all reasonable steps to bring any period of suspension to an end as soon as
possible.
MARKET DISRUPTION AND ADJUSTMENT
The Determination Agent shall act as the calculation agent to the Company acting in respect of each
Cell in making any determinations, calculations or adjustments required in connection with the terms
and conditions of any Shares. For example, the Determination Agent will determine the level of an
Index or the prices of the components of a Stock Basket if such level or prices are unavailable.
Whenever the Determination Agent is required to act or exercise its judgement in any way, it shall do
so acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner and having regard to such factors as
it feels appropriate including, but not limited to:
(a)

the circumstances giving rise to the requirement for the Determination Agent to act or
exercise its judgement;

(b)

then prevailing market practice;

(c)

any hedging arrangements relating to the relevant Shares (including those relating to the Plan
Investments backing the relevant Shares); and

(d)

any factors specific to the method of calculating the Investment Return.

Any determinations, calculations or adjustments made by the Determination Agent on behalf of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of "Market Disruption", "Determination", "Valuation
Roll", "Adjustment", "Correction", "Fundamental Change" or "Maturity Date Index Level
Determination" below or as otherwise specified in the Relevant Securities Note will not constitute a
variation or abrogation of rights, special rights and/or terms and conditions of the relevant Shares.
Market Disruption
The Determination Agent shall act as calculation agent in relation to the determination of the level of
each Index or the prices of the components of each Stock Basket. There is provision in the terms of
the Determination Agency Agreement for the termination of the appointment of the Determination
Agent as calculation agent. In the event that appointment of the Determination Agent is terminated,
the Company will seek to appoint a replacement.
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Where "Market Disruption" is stated as applying in the Relevant Securities Note to the Shares issued
in respect of a Cell, the following provisions shall apply:
Certain events may make it difficult or impossible for the Determination Agent to determine the level
of the Index or prices of the components of the Stock Basket. These events are Market Disruption
Events. Any Scheduled Trading Day on which a relevant Exchange or any Related Exchange fails to
open for business during its regular trading session or a Market Disruption Event occurs is a
Disrupted Day.
If a day (a Valuation Date) on which the level of an Index or the prices of the components of a Stock
Basket are to be determined with respect to the relevant Shares is a Disrupted Day, the Determination
Agent will determine such index level or prices for the purposes of the relevant Shares in respect of
that Valuation Date as set out below.
Unless the Determination Agent determines (acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable
manner and having regard to such factors as it feels appropriate including, but not limited to, the
factors set out in (a) to (d) under the heading "Market Disruption and Adjustment" above) that a more
appropriate method of determination may be effected in respect of any such Disrupted Day, the level
of the relevant Index or the prices of the relevant components of the relevant Stock Basket for the
relevant Valuation Date will be determined in accordance with the following procedure:
If the Determination Agent determines that for the relevant Valuation Date that is a Disrupted Day:
(a)

a Valuation is required, the Determination Agent shall determine the relevant level of the
Index or the prices of the relevant components of the Stock Basket in accordance with the
provisions of "Valuation Roll" below;

(b)

an Observation is required, the Determination Agent shall determine the relevant level of the
Index or prices of the relevant components of the Stock Basket in accordance with the
provisions of "Determination" below.

Determination
If the Valuation Date is a Disrupted Day by reason of a relevant Exchange or any Related Exchange
failing to open for trading during its regular trading session, the Valuation Date will be omitted for the
purposes of the relevant Shares and the Determination Agent will make such determinations and/or
adjustments as it determines are appropriate to the terms of the Shares.
If the Valuation Date is a Disrupted Day by reason of a Market Disruption Event, the Determination
Agent shall observe the level of the relevant Index or relevant prices of the components of the relevant
Stock Basket during such Valuation Date, except that any period of time during that Valuation Date
during which the relevant Market Disruption Event is continuing shall be ignored, and the
Determination Agent shall make any determinations on the basis of such observations that remain
available to it. If, as a consequence, there is no applicable observation available to it on any Valuation
Date during a period in which one or more levels of the Index or prices of the components of the
Stock Basket are required, the Determination Agent shall determine the applicable level(s) or price(s)
and/or make such adjustments to the terms and conditions of the Shares as it determines are
appropriate.
Valuation Roll
The Valuation Date shall be deemed to be the first succeeding Scheduled Trading Day that is not a
Disrupted Day, unless each of the eight Scheduled Trading Days immediately following the original
Scheduled Valuation Date is a Disrupted Day, in which case such eighth Scheduled Trading Day shall
be deemed to be the Valuation Date (except to the extent that the above methodology would result in
the deemed Valuation Date falling after the last day of a Valuation Period, in which case the
Valuation Date shall be deemed to be the last Scheduled Trading Day of the relevant Valuation
Period) notwithstanding the fact that such day is a Disrupted Day.
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Where such deemed Valuation Date is a Disrupted Day, the Determination Agent shall determine the
level of the relevant Index or the prices of the relevant components of the relevant Stock Basket on
the deemed Valuation Date in accordance with:
(a)

in relation to an Index, the formula for and method of calculating the Index last in effect prior
to the occurrence of the original Scheduled Valuation Date using the exchange traded or
quoted price as of the Valuation Time on the deemed Valuation Date of each component of
the Index (or, if an event giving rise to a Disrupted Day has occurred in respect of the relevant
component, its good faith estimate of the value of the relevant component on that date); or

(b)

in relation to a Stock Basket, using its good faith estimate of the value of each component in
the Stock Basket on the deemed Valuation Date.

Discretion
The events that cause Disrupted Days to occur are by their nature unpredictable and the specific
circumstances relating to such events may mean that the anticipated methods of making
determinations as specified in "Determination" and "Valuation Roll" above are not appropriate or fair.
In such circumstances the Determination Agent may make any determinations that are required for the
purposes of the relevant Shares using an alternative method that it determines will give an appropriate
or fair result, taking into account any other information that it considers relevant, including the
hedging arrangements relating to the relevant Shares (including those relating to the Plan Investments
backing the relevant Shares) and the specific circumstances relating to the events that caused the
relevant Disrupted Day.
Adjustment
Where an "Adjustment to Index" is stated in the Relevant Securities Note as applying to the Shares
issued in respect of a Cell and (i) on or prior to any day on which the level of the Index is to be
determined with respect to the relevant Shares, the Index Sponsor announces that it will make a
material change in the formula for or the method of calculating the Index or in any other way
materially modifies the Index (other than a modification prescribed in that formula or method to
maintain the Index in the event of changes in constituent stock and capitalisation and other routine
events) or permanently cancels the Index and no successor index exists or (ii) on any day on which
the level of the Index is to be determined with respect to the relevant Shares the Index Sponsor fails to
calculate and announce the Index, then the Determination Agent shall determine whether such change,
failure or cancellation is material and, if so, shall calculate the level of the Index using, in lieu of a
published level for the Index, the level for the Index as at that day as determined by the Determination
Agent in accordance with the formula for and method of calculating the Index last in effect prior to
that change or failure, but using only those securities that comprised the Index immediately prior to
that change, failure or cancellation.
If the Index is (i) not calculated and announced by the Index Sponsor but is calculated and announced
by a successor sponsor acceptable to the Determination Agent, or (ii) replaced by a successor index
using the same or substantially similar formula for and method of calculation as used in the
calculation of the Index, then the Index will be deemed to be the index so calculated and announced
by that successor sponsor or that successor index, as the case may be. The Determination Agent shall
notify the Company of any such calculations or adjustments by 10.00 a.m. on the London Business
Day immediately following the date on which such calculation or adjustment is made.
Correction
Where a "Correction to Stock Prices or Index Levels" is stated in the Relevant Securities Note as
applying to the Shares issued in respect of a Cell, and a correction to any Index level or any price of a
component of Stock Basket is published by the Index Sponsor or on the Exchange, and such Index
level or price has been used or is to be used in any determination in respect of the relevant Shares, the
Determination Agent shall, to the extent that it has sufficient time and it is reasonable to do so prior to
the making of any related payment, use the corrected Index level or price in its calculation of any
related payment in respect of the relevant Shares.
0030144-0000332 ICM:16026328.16

46

Fundamental Change
Where a "Fundamental Change" is stated as applying in the Relevant Securities Note to the Shares
issued in respect of a Cell, upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following:
(a)

where there is a change in the method of sampling for, or in the method or timing of
calculating the Index such that, in the absolute discretion of the Determination Agent, the
Index is materially incomparable to the Index as in effect immediately before such change; or

(b)

where the Index is not published by the relevant source for a period of sixty (60) consecutive
days; or

(c)

where the Index Sponsor announces that it will no longer publish the Index and the Index
ceases to be published by any applicable source,

if a successor index is published, and provided that such index reflects the performance of a similar
investment profile as determined by the Determination Agent, then the Determination Agent will use
this successor index, and make such adjustments as it determines are necessary. In the event no such
successor index is available the Determination Agent shall, acting in good faith and its absolute
discretion, make such adjustments as it determines are required for the purposes of the Shares issued
in respect of the relevant Cell.
Maturity Date Index Level Determination
Where "Maturity Date Index Level Determination" is stated as applying in the Relevant Securities
Note to the Shares issued in respect of a Cell, in the event that a level of the Index in respect of a
month used in the determination of the Final Index Level is not published on or prior to the date
falling two Business Days prior to the Maturity Date (the Publication Cut-off Date), and provided
that the failure of the Index Sponsor to publish such level on or prior to the Publication Cut-off Date is
not determined by the Determination Agent as at the Publication Cut-off Date to constitute, or to have
contributed to, a Fundamental Change in respect of the Index, the level of the Index in respect of such
month shall be deemed to have been published on the Publication Cut-off Date and be equal to the
level of the Index determined in respect of the month immediately preceding such month.
REDEMPTION AT MATURITY
On or prior to the Maturity Date for the Shares issued in respect of a Cell, the Plan Investments held
by the Company in relation to that Cell will be realised in order to generate the Investment Return per
Share and such Shares will be redeemed in full on the applicable Maturity Date by the Company.
In respect of Shares issued in respect of each Cell in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into a
Cell Guarantee, the realisation proceeds of the Plan Investments shall be paid into a security account
with Santander UK plc over which the Guarantor has a first charge pursuant to the Cell Security
Documents for the relevant Cell. Under the terms of the Cell Security Documents, the Company is
not permitted, without the prior consent of Santander Guarantee Company, to utilise the monies in the
security account for any purpose other than to make payments to Shareholders in respect of the
redemption of their Shares.
The payment obligations of the relevant Investment Counterparties under the Plan Investments on or
around the Maturity Date and the security account arrangement (if applicable) are designed to enable
the Company, in turn, to pay to Shareholders on or around the Maturity Date the Investment Return in
respect of their Shares.
In respect of any Shares issued in respect of a Cell in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into
a Cell Guarantee, the payment by the Company to each Shareholder of the Guaranteed Return in
respect of his or her Shares held until they are redeemed at their Maturity Date (whether such Shares
are acquired pursuant to, or subsequent to, the relevant Issue) is guaranteed by Santander Guarantee
Company under the relevant Cell Guarantee (subject to its terms and conditions). Santander
Guarantee Company is obliged under the relevant Cell Guarantee to pay Shareholders any shortfall
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between the redemption amount they receive from the Company and the Guaranteed Return in respect
of the relevant Shares held until they are redeemed on their Maturity Date.
In respect of any Shares issued in respect of a Cell in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into
a Cell Guarantee, the Guarantee Claims Agent will be appointed by Shareholders pursuant to their
Application Forms to act as their agent in accordance with the terms of the Guarantee Claims Deed.
Under the Guarantee Claims Deed, the Guarantee Claims Agent agrees to facilitate a timely demand
and payment under any Cell Guarantee, as agent for Shareholders of Shares issued in respect of the
relevant Cell. In the event that such Shareholders do not receive the Guaranteed Return from the
Company in respect of Shares held until they are redeemed on their Maturity Date, and a demand has
to be made under the Cell Guarantee for that Cell, such demand will be made by the Guarantee
Claims Agent on behalf of Shareholders Shares issued in respect of that Cell. In such case, any
supporting documentation and certification should be provided by the Guarantee Claims Agent to the
Guarantor within a prescribed time period. Any amounts to be paid to the Guarantee Claims Agent by
the Guarantor in relation to a claim under any Cell Guarantee will be paid into, and held in, a
segregated trust account by the Guarantee Claims Agent as trustee for and on behalf of Shareholders
entitled to receive such amounts under the terms of the relevant Cell Guarantee. The Guarantor will
not be obliged to oversee or supervise the Guarantee Claims Agent or to ensure that the Guarantee
Claims Agent complies with the payment mechanics set out in the Guarantee Claims Deed.
In respect of any Shares issued in respect of a Cell in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into
a Cell Guarantee, in the event that the Guarantee Claims Agent fails to fulfil its responsibilities under
the Guarantee Claims Deed, the Guarantor will be obliged, subject to the terms of the Guarantee
Claims Deed, to establish an alternative mechanism to facilitate claims under the relevant Cell
Guarantee. However, the Guarantor will not be obliged to notify any Shareholder that he or she may
have a claim for payment or to request any such Shareholder to submit a claim.
In respect of any Shares issued in respect of a Cell in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into
a Cell Guarantee each Shareholder, in applying for Shares issued in respect of that Cell, will be
deemed to have confirmed to the Guarantor that Santander Guarantee Company:
(a)

shall be released and discharged from its payment obligations under the relevant Deed of
Guarantee upon payment of any amount due to be paid by the Guarantor under such Deed of
Guarantee to the Guarantee Claims Agent or directly to the relevant Shareholder in
accordance with such Deed of Guarantee and the Guarantee Claims Deed; and

(b)

has no responsibility to oversee or supervise the Guarantee Claims Agent nor to ensure that
the Guarantee Claims Agent complies with the payment mechanics set out in the Guarantee
Claims Deed.

Please refer to the Risk Factors section for information on the circumstances in which the
Company's ability to pay to Shareholders the full amount scheduled to be paid in respect of the
Shares may be adversely affected and where Shareholders may not receive any Guaranteed
Return in respect of their Shares.
PAYMENT AT MATURITY
Payment of redemption proceeds in respect of Shares which are held until they are redeemed on their
Maturity Date shall be made by the Company to Shareholders within three Business Days of the
Maturity Date or, if the realisation of the Plan Investments of the Cell to which the Shares relate is
delayed, within three Business Days of such later date on which the realisation proceeds are actually
received by the Company in cleared moneys.
The payment of redemption proceeds will be made by the Paying Agent by cheque made payable to
the relevant Shareholder (or all named holders in the case of joint holders) and sent by first class post
to the name and address of the Shareholder (or to the name and address of the first named holder in
the case of joint holders) as appearing in the Register; all at the risk of the Shareholder(s) concerned.
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A Shareholder may make a request in writing (signed by all holders in the case of joint holders) in the
form of a Payment Instruction Form or by email to the Paying Agent for the payment of redemption
proceeds to be made by some other method than a cheque, whereupon the Paying Agent will be
deemed authorised to deduct any bank charges to be incurred in effecting such alternative payment
method from the Shareholders entitlement before such payment is made. A Payment Instruction Form
for this purpose is available from the Registrar. The Paying Agent's email address for this purpose is
registrars@anson-group.com.
Any further details of the mechanics for redemption of Shares at the Maturity Date for the relevant
Cell will be notified to Shareholders at that time.
PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS
In the event that dividends are declared in the future, the payment of dividends will be made by the
Registrar by cheque made payable to the relevant Shareholder (or all named holders in the case of
joint holders) and sent by first class post to the name and address of the Shareholder (or to the name
and address of the first named holder in the case of joint holders) as appearing in the Register; all at
the risk of the Shareholder(s) concerned.
A Shareholder may make a request in writing (signed by all holders in the case of joint holders) in the
form of a Payment Instruction Form or by email to the Registrar for the payment of dividends to be
made by some other method than a cheque whereupon the Registrar will be deemed authorised to
deduct any bank charges to be incurred in effecting such alternative payment method from the
shareholders entitlement before such payment is made. A Payment Instruction Form for this purpose
is available from the Registrar. The Paying Agent's email address for this purpose is
registrars@anson-group.com.
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PART C
FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The Company's accounting periods terminate on 31 March of each year. The Company has received a
certificate from the Registrar of Companies in Guernsey entitling it to commence business and
exercise borrowing powers.
The audited financial statements of the Company for the financial years ended 31 March 2010 (as set
out in the Company's Securities Note in respect of Cell 190 dated 28 September 2010), 31 March
2011 (as set out in the Supplementary Prospectus in respect of Cells 209 to 212 dated 24 August
2011) and 31 March 2012 (as set out in the Company’s Securities Note in respect of Cell 234 dated 3
September 2012) are hereby incorporated by reference and are available for inspection at the address
referred to in Part J of this Registration Document and include, on the pages specified in the table
below, the following information:
For the period
ended 31 March
2012

For the period
ended 31 March
2011

For the period
ended 31 March
2010

Nature of Information

Page

Page

Page

Independent Auditor's Report

13

12

12

Statement of Net Assets

16

15

15

Statement of Cashflows

18

17

17

Statement of Changes in Net
Assets

17

16

16

Accounting
Policies
Explanatory Notes

19

18

18

and

The unaudited half-yearly financial report for the period ended 30 September 2012 (as set out in the
Supplementary Prospectus in respect of Cells 236 - 239 dated 4 January 2013) is hereby incorporated
by reference and is available for inspection at the address referred to in Part J of this Registration
Document and includes, on the pages specified in the table below, the following information:

Nature of Information

Page

Directors' Report

3

Statement of Comprehensive Income

6

Statement of Financial Position

8

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Shares

9

Statement of Cash Flows

10

Notes to the Financial Statements

11

Schedule of Investments

54

Directors, Advisors and Other Information

58
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PART D
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY
1.

Incorporation and Administration

1.1

The Company was incorporated with an unlimited life and limited liability in Guernsey under
the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 1994 to 1996, as amended and The Protected Cell
Companies Ordinance 1997 as a protected cell investment company limited by shares and as a
closed-ended investment company on 26 January 2005 with registered number 42754. With
effect from 1 July 2008 the Companies (Guernsey) Law 1994 to 1996, as amended and the
Protected Cell Companies Ordinance 1997 were repealed and replaced with the Companies
(Guernsey) Law 2008. The registered office of the Company is Anson Place, Mill Court, La
Charroterie, St. Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 1EJ. The Company operates under the Companies
Law and the ordinances and regulations made thereunder and has no subsidiaries or
employees. The Company is not regulated under the FSMA and is not an unregulated
collective investment scheme under United Kingdom regulations.

1.2

The Company is authorised as an Authorised Closed-Ended Investment Scheme by the GFSC
under Section 8 of the Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1987, as
amended and the Authorised Closed-Ended Investment Schemes Rules 2008 to act as a closed
ended fund and for the raising of monies by the issue of the Shares. Under the terms of this
authorisation, the Administrator must give written notice forthwith to GFSC of, inter alia, any
proposed material change to the Prospectus or to the Articles or any proposed change of any
of the parties to the material contracts which are summarised in the Prospectus or of any
proposed material alteration to the Company including its name and its investment, borrowing
and hedging powers.

1.3

Ernst & Young LLP, Accountants and Auditors, were first appointed as auditors of the
Company on 28 January 2005.

1.4

Save for the issue of Cell 232 Shares, Cell 233 Shares, Cell 234 Shares, Cell 235 Shares, Cell
236 Shares, Cell 237 Shares and Cell 238 Shares in respect of which the Company raised
aggregate gross issue proceeds of £94,907,736.19 as at 14 January 2013 and the redemption
of Cell 15 Shares, Cell 16 Shares, Cell 75 Shares and Cell 78 Shares in respect of which the
aggregate gross redemption proceeds paid out were £483,226,056.40 as at 14 January 2013,
there has been no significant change in the trading or financial position of the Company
which has occurred since the end of the last published financial report of the Company, being
the unaudited half-yearly financial report for the period ended 30 September 2012.

2.

Share Capital

2.1

The authorised share capital of the Company on incorporation and as at the date hereof is
£100,100 divided into 100 Management Shares of £1.00 each and 100,000,000,000 (100
billion) Unclassified Shares of 0.0001p each. Unclassified Shares may be issued as Shares or
Nominal Shares (or shares of any other denomination as the Directors may decide). As at the
date hereof, only two Management Shares are in issue. The Management Shares were issued
at par and are legally and beneficially owned by the Administrator and are fully paid up.
Management Shares do not entitle the holders to any dividend and on a winding-up entitle the
holder to receive the amount paid up thereon but not otherwise to participate in the assets of
the Company. Nominal Shares will be subscribed for by and issued to the Administrator as
and when Shares are redeemed in order to ensure that at all times the Company maintains and
does not reduce the nominal value of its issued share capital.

2.2

The Management Shares and Nominal Shares are not subject to the Offers for Subscription.

2.3

There have been no changes to the authorised share capital of the Company since its
incorporation.
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2.4

The Company's issued and outstanding share capital as at 31 March 2012 was £6,304,125,
046. The Company's issued and outstanding share capital as at 30 September 2012 was
£5,527,873,188.

2.5

Save as disclosed above, in the latest published financial statements of the Company, and in
the Relevant Securities Note, from the date of its incorporation until the date of this
Registration Document, no share or loan capital of the Company has been issued or agreed to
be issued, or is now proposed to be issued, either for cash or any other consideration, and no
commissions, discounts, brokerages or other special terms have been granted by the Company
in connection with the issue or sale of any such capital. No share or loan capital of the
Company is under option or has been agreed, conditionally or unconditionally, to be put
under option.

2.6

Subject to the exceptions set out in paragraphs 6.2.8 and 6.2.9 of this document in the sections
subtitled "Transfer of Shares" and "US Persons and other restricted persons" respectively,
Shares issued by the Company are freely transferable and entitled to participate equally in the
assets of the relevant Cell in respect of which they are issued on a liquidation. The Shares
issued by the Company in respect of each Cell of the Company, which must be fully paid on
issue, carry no preferential or pre-emptive rights and are entitled to one vote at all meetings of
the relevant class of shareholders but are not entitled to vote at any general meeting of the
Company except in the circumstances set out in paragraph 6.2.1 of this document. All Shares
rank pari passu with other Shares of the relevant class.

3.

Portfolio Description
As at the date of this Registration Document, Shares in 202 Cells of the Company remain
outstanding. The investments of each Cell consist solely of Financial Instruments entered
into by the Company in respect of each outstanding Cell.
In respect of each of Cells 8 to 133 that remain outstanding, these consist of either: (i) an
interest rate swap; (ii) an equity index swap; (iii) a property index swap; or (iv) a fund index
swap, or a combination thereof.
In respect of each of Cells 134 to 239 that remain outstanding, these consist of a term loan
agreement (each a Term Loan Agreement) and a forward transaction (each a Forward
Transaction).
Descriptions of the Financial Instruments entered into by the Company in respect of each
outstanding Cell are set out in the relevant Securities Note relating to each outstanding Cell
on the pages specified in the table below, and are incorporated by reference into this
document.
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Cell

Page No.

Cell

Page No.

Cell 8

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 58

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 18

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 59

Pages 16, 17 and 18

Cell 19

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 61

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 21

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 62

Pages 16, 17 and 18

Cell 22

Pages 17, 18 and 21

Cell 64

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 24

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 65

Pages 16, 17 and 18

Cell 25

Pages 17, 19 and 20

Cell 68

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 26

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 69

Pages 16, 17 and 18

Cell 27

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 70

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 29

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 71

Pages 16, 17 and 18

Cell 30

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 73

Pages 20, 21 and 22

Cell 31

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 74

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 32

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 76

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 34

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 77

Pages 16, 18 and 19

Cell 35

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 79

Pages 19, 21 and 22

Cell 36

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 80

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 37

Pages 17,18 and 19

Cell 81

Pages 19, 20 and 21

Cell 39

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 82

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 40

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 83

Pages 19, 20 and 21

Cell 42

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 84

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 43

Pages 16, 17 and 18

Cell 85

Pages 16, 17 and 18

Cell 45

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 86

Pages 20, 22 and 23

Cell 46

Pages 16, 17 and 18

Cell 87

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 48

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 88

Pages 20, 22 and 23

Cell 49

Pages 16, 17 and 18

Cell 89

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 51

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 90

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 52

Pages 16, 17 and 18

Cell 91

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 55

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 92

Pages 20, 22 and 23

Cell 56

Pages 16, 17 and 18

Cell 93

Pages 17, 18 and 19
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Cell

Page No.

Cell

Page No.

Cell 94

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 123

Pages 19, 20 and 21

Cell 95

Pages 20, 22 and 23

Cell 124

Pages 20, 22 and 23

Cell 96

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 125

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 97

Pages 20, 22 and 23

Cell 126

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 98

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 127

Pages 22, 23 and 24

Cell 99

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 128

Pages 20, 22 and 23

Cell 100

Pages 20, 22 and 23

Cell 129

Pages 20, 22 and 23

Cell 101

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 130

Pages 21, 23 and 24

Cell 102

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 131

Pages 22, 23 and 24

Cell 103

Pages 20, 22 and 23

Cell 132

Pages 20 and 22

Cell 104

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 133

Pages 20 and 22

Cell 105

Pages 21, 23 and 24

Cell 134

Pages 15, 23 and 24

Cell 106

Pages 19, 20 and 21

Cell 135

Pages 14, 15, 22 and 23

Cell 107

Pages 19, 20 and 21

Cell 136

Pages 16, 17, 24 and 25

Cell 108

Pages 20, 22 and 23

Cell 137

Pages 15, 23 and 24

Cell 109

Pages 18, 19 and 20

Cell 138

Pages 15, 16, 23 and 24

Cell 110

Pages 17, 18 and 19

Cell 139

Pages 6, 12, 14, 15, 22 and
23

Cell 111

Pages 21, 23 and 24
Cell 140

Pages 14, 15, 22 and 23

Cell 112

Pages 18, 20 and 21
Cell 141

Pages 15, 16, 23 and 24

Cell 113

Pages 21, 23 and 24
Cell 142

Pages 14, 15, 22 and 23

Cell 114

Pages 19, 20 and 21
Cell 143

Pages 16, 24 and 25

Cell 115

Pages 19, 20 and 21
Cell 144

Pages 14, 15, 22 and 23

Cell 116

Pages 20, 22 and 23
Cell 145

Pages 16, 17, 24 and 25

Cell 117

Pages 18, 19 and 20
Cell 146

Pages 15, 23 and 24

Cell 118

Pages 18, 19 and 20
Cell 147

Pages 15, 16, 23 and 24

Cell 119

Pages 21, 23 and 24
Cell 148

Pages 14, 15, 22 and 23

Cell 120

Pages 19, 21 and 22
Cell 149

Pages 14, 15, 22 and 23

Cell 121

Pages 21, 23 and 24
Cell 150

Pages 16, 17 and 25

Cell 122

Pages 19, 20 and 21
Cell 151

Pages 16, 17 and 25
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Cell

Page No.

Cell

Page No.

Cell 152

Pages 15, 16, and 24

Cell 181

Pages 16, 17 and 26

Cell 153

Pages 14, 15 and 23

Cell 182

Pages 15, 16 and 25

Cell 154

Pages 15, 16 and 24

Cell 183

Pages 16, 17 and 26

Cell 155

Pages 16, 17 and 25

Cell 184

Pages 16, 17 and 26

Cell 156

Pages 16, 17 and 25

Cell 185

Pages 16, 17 and 26

Cell 157

Pages 15, 16 and 24

Cell 186

Pages 16, 17 and 26

Cell 158

Pages 14, 15 and 23

Cell 187

Pages 15, 16 and 25

Cell 159

Pages 15, 16 and 24

Cell 188

Pages 16, 17 and 27

Cell 160

Pages 16, 17 and 25

Cell 189

Pages 16, 17 and 27

Cell 161

Pages 16, 17 and 25

Cell 190

Pages 15, 16 and 25

Cell 162

Pages 15, 16 and 24

Cell 191

Pages 15, 16 and 25

Cell 163

Pages 14, 15 and 23

Cell 192

Pages 15, 16 and 26

Cell 164

Pages 15, 16 and 25

Cell 193

Pages 15, 18 and 26

Cell 165

Pages 15, 16 and 25

Cell 194

Pages 15, 18 and 26

Cell 166

Pages 16, 17 and 26

Cell 195

Pages 15, 18 and 26

Cell 167

Pages 15, 16 and 25

Cell 196

Pages 15, 16 and 26

Cell 168

Pages 14, 15 and 24

Cell 197

Pages 15, 16 and 26

Cell 169

Pages 15, 16 and 25

Cell 198

Pages 14, 15 and 25

Cell 170

Pages 15, 16 and 25

Cell 199

Pages 12, 15 and 23

Cell 171

Pages 16, 17 and 25

Cell 200

Pages 12, 14 and 22

Cell 172

Pages 15, 16 and 24

Cell 201

Pages 13, 16 and 25

Cell 173

Pages 15, 16 and 24

Cell 202

Pages 13, 15 and 24

Cell 174

Pages 15, 16 and 24

Cell 203

Pages 12, 15 and 24

Cell 175

Pages 16, 17 and 25

Cell 204

Pages 12, 14 and 23

Cell 176

Pages 15, 16 and 25

Cell 205

Pages 12, 15 and 24

Cell 177

Pages 15, 16 and 25

Cell 206

Pages 12, 14 and 23

Cell 178

Pages 16, 17 and 26

Cell 207

Pages 12, 14 and 23

Cell 179

Pages 15, 16 and 25

Cell 208

Pages 12, 14 and 23

Cell 180

Pages 15, 16 and 25

Cell 209

Pages 14, 17 and 28
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Cell

Page No.

Cell

Page No.

Cell 210

Pages 14, 16 and 27

Cell 239

Pages 17, 19 and 20

Cell 211

Pages 14, 17 and 28

Cell 212

Pages 14, 16 and 27

Cell 213

Pages 14, 17 and 28

Cell 214

Pages 14, 16 and 27

Cell 215

Pages 14, 16 and 27

Cell 216

Pages 14, 16 and 27

Cell 217

Pages 14, 16 and 27

Cell 218

Pages 16, 17 and 27

Cell 219

Pages 15, 16 and 26

Cell 220

Pages 16, 17 and 27

Cell 221

Pages 15, 16 and 26

Cell 222

Pages 16, 19 and 20

Cell 223

Pages 16, 18 and 19

Cell 224

Pages 16, 19 and 20

Cell 225

Pages 16, 18 and 19

Cell 226

Pages 16, 19 and 20

Cell 227

Pages 16, 18 and 19

Cell 228

Pages 16, 19 and 20

Cell 229

Pages 15, 18 and 19

Cell 230

Pages 17, 20 and 21

Cell 231

Pages 16, 18 and 19

Cell 232

Pages 18, 20 and 21

Cell 233

Pages 16, 18 and 19

Cell 234

Pages 16, 19 and 20

Cell 235

Pages 16, 18 and 19

Cell 236

Pages 16, 19 and 20

Cell 237

Pages 16, 18 and 19

Cell 238

Pages 17, 20 and 21
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4.

Directors' and Other Interests

4.1

The Company has not been notified by any Director of any interest in the share capital of the
Company (including any interests of a connected person), the existence of which is known to,
or could with reasonable diligence be ascertained by, that Director whether or not held
through another party, which would be required to be notified to the Company under the
Companies Law, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

4.2

John Le Prevost, a director of the Company, is also a director of Anson Fund Managers
Limited (the Administrator and Secretary of the Company and the owner of the two
Management Shares of the Company) and Anson Registrars Limited (the Registrar, Transfer
Agent, Paying Agent and Receiving Agent and the Guarantee Claims Agent). John Le
Prevost is also the Chief Executive Officer and the majority shareholder of Anson Group
Limited, the holding company of Anson Fund Managers Limited and Anson Registrars
Limited. Gavin Farrell is a partner of Mourant Ozannes, the Advocates to the Company, and
a director of Mourant Ozannes Securities Limited, the Sponsor of Admission to Listing.

4.3

The aggregate remuneration of each Director shall not exceed £5,000 plus £1,000 per Cell of
the Company per annum (plus any VAT payable thereon) or such higher amount as may be
approved by the Company by ordinary resolution in a general meeting. No Director of the
Company has waived or agreed to waive future emoluments nor has any Director waived any
such emolument during the past financial year. For the financial year ended 31 March 2012
the aggregate remuneration paid and benefits in kind granted to the Directors of the Company
was £347,087.

4.4

The Directors shall also be entitled to be paid their reasonable travelling, hotel and incidental
expenses of attending and returning from meetings of the Directors or committees of the
Board or general meetings and all expenses properly and reasonably incurred by them in the
conduct of the Company's business or in the discharge of their duties as Directors.

4.5

In respect of the Directors, no amounts are set aside or acquired by the Company to provide
pension, retirement or similar benefits.

4.6

The Company meets the premium cost of directors and officers liability insurance for its
Directors.

4.7

No Director has a service contract with the Company, nor are any such contracts proposed.
The Directors were appointed as non-executive directors on 28 January 2005 and their
appointment is subject to the Articles of Association. The Directors' appointments can be
terminated without notice and without compensation. Copies of the Directors' letters of
appointment are available for inspection at the address specified in paragraph 1 of Part J of
this document.

4.8

As at the date of this Registration Document and save as disclosed in this Registration
Document or the Relevant Securities Note, none of the Directors nor any connected person
has any interest, beneficial or non-beneficial, in the share capital of the Company or any
options in respect of such capital.

4.9

The Company has not granted any options over its share or loan capital which remain
outstanding or has not agreed, conditionally or unconditionally to grant any such options.

4.10

No loan has been granted to, nor any guarantee provided for the benefit of, any Director by
the Company.

4.11

None of the Directors has, or has had, an interest in any contract or transaction which is or
was unusual in its nature or conditions or significant to the business of the Company or which
has been effected by the Company since its incorporation and none of the Directors has, or
has had, any interest in the promotion of, or in any property acquired or proposed to be
acquired by, the Company.
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4.12

In addition to their directorships of the Company, the Directors hold directorships in other
companies and are members of various partnerships. Details of those directorships (apart
from the Company) and partnerships as well as details of the Directors' directorships and
partnerships during the five years preceding the date of this document are set out below:

Gavin John Farrell
Current Directorships and Partnerships
Altima Advisors (Guernsey) Limited
Altima Agriculture Equity Fund Limited
Altima Agriculture Equity Master Fund Limited
Altima Central Asia Fund Limited
Altima Central Asia Master Fund Limited
Altima Emerging Markets Fund Limited
(formerly Altima European Special Situations
Fund Limited)
Altima Emerging Markets Master Fund Limited
(formerly Altima European Special Situations
Master Fund Limited)
Altima Global Special Opportunities Fund
Limited
Altima Global Special Opportunities Master
Fund Limited
Altima Global Special Situations Fund Ltd
Altima Global Special Situations Master Fund
Ltd
Altima India Fund Limited
Altima India Master Fund Limited
Altima One World Agriculture Fund Limited
Altima One World Agriculture Master Fund
Limited
Altima Situational Credit Fund S.A.
Altima Situational Credit Vehicle S.a.r.l
Arle (Guernsey) GP Limited
AXA Property Trust Limited
BBOF II SLP G.P. Limited
BBOF III SLP G.P. Limited
BBOF IV GP Limited
Brockton Capital Fund I GP (Guernsey)
Limited
Brockton Capital Fund II GP (Guernsey)
Limited
Candover 2005 Fund (Guernsey) Limited
Candover 2008 Alpha GP Limited
Candover 2008 Beta Limited
Candover 2008 GP Limited
Cheshire Business Insurance Limited
CHG Insurance Limited
Directorco One Limited
Directorco Two Limited
E.I. Sturdza Funds Plc
E.I. Sturdza Strategic Management Limited
European Forest Resources Limited
European Forest Resources Holdings GP
Limited
European Forest Resources Holdings Limited
HitecVision Asset Solutions (GP) Limited
HitecVision V (GP) Limited
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Past Directorships and Partnerships
Alternative Risk Management (Guernsey)
Limited (formerly Thomas Miller Risk
(Guernsey) Management Limited)
Altima Asia Fund Limited
Altima Asia Master Fund Limited
Altima Global Emerging Markets Fund
Limited
Altima Global Special Situations Fund I
Ltd
Altima Latin America Fund Limited
Altima Latin America Master Fund
Limited
Altima Situational Credit Fund Limited
AQH Dundee GP Limited (Alternate)
AQH Edward Street GP limited
(Alternate)
AQH Edward Street Properties Limited
(Alternate)
Associated Partners GP Limited
(Alternate)
B-Haig Acquisitions (Lux) S.a.r.l
Bermuda Holdco Lux 1 S.a.r.l
Bermuda Holdco Lux 2 S.a.r.l
Bermuda Holdco Lux 3 S.a.r.l
Bermuda Holdco Lux 4 S.a.r.l
Brockton (EC1) Limited
Candover 2008 CEE GP Limited
Donald Luxco Sarl (formerly VCP VII
Luxco 5 S.a.r.l)
Eliot Luxembourg Holdco S.à.r.l.
(formerly Tulip Luxembourg Holdco
S.a.r.l)
Eredene General Partner Limited
Fennel Acquisition (Lux) S.a.r.l
Glendevon King (Guernsey) Limited
(formerly King Capital Management
(Guernsey) Limited)
Haig Luxembourg Holdco S.a.r.l
JD Selector S.a.r.l (formerly H-Haig
Acquisitions (Lux) S.a.r.l)
JOHCM (Guernsey) Limited
JOHCM Offshore PCC Limited
Kinetrics Holdings S.a.r.l
Legis Limited
Markland Thorpe Park Limited
(Alternate)

HitecVision VI (GP) Limited
HSBC NF China Investors Limited
HVPE IV (GP) Limited
John Mowlem (Guernsey) Limited
Ma Selector S.a.r.1
Memberco One Limited
Memberco Two Limited
Mourant Ozannes Corporate Services
(Guernsey) Limited
Mourant Ozannes (Partner)
Mourant Ozannes Property Holdings
(Guernsey) Limited
Mourant Ozannes Securities Limited
Nippon Growth Fund Limited
Norvestor IV (GP) Limited (formerly NVPE IV
G.P. Limited)
Norvestor V (GP) Limited
Norvestor VI (GP) Limited
Parallel Insurance Services Limited
Real Asset Insurance Limited
Secretaryco Limited
Strategic Blue Star Resources Fund Limited
Strategic Evarich Japan Fund Limited
Strategic Fund Limited
Strategic Global Growth Fund Limited
Strategic Global Innovation Fund Limited
Strategic US Growth Fund Limited
Super Selector S.a.r.l
Terphane Holdco Lux S.a.r.l (formerly VCP
VII Luxco 3 S.a.r.l)
THC Acquisition Lux S.a.r.l (formerly VCP VII
Luxco 4 S.a.r.l)
The Accelerated Return Fund Ltd (Alternate)
Topi Insurance Company Limited
VCI (General Partner) Limited
VC Offshore Limited
VCP Finance Limited
VCP IV (GP) Limited
VCP JET GP Limited
VCP V-A GP (Guernsey) Limited
VCP VI GP (Guernsey) Limited
VCP VI A General Partner Limited
VCP VI A-R GP Limited
VCP VI B GP (Guernsey) Limited
VCP VI E GP (Guernsey) Limited
VCP VI S GP (Guernsey) Limited
VCP VII A GP Limited
VCP VII B GP Limited
VCP VII C GP Limited
VCP VII GP Limited
Vision Capital (CI) Holdings Limited
Vision Capital GP Holdings Limited
Vision Gatsby GP Limited (formerly VCP VII
D GP Limited)
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Markland Thorpe Park Investments
Limited (Alternate)
M&J Properties Limited (Alternate)
Nelson Luxco S.a.r.l (formerly VCP VII
Luxco 1 S.a.r.l)
New Super Selector S.a.r.l (formerly CHaig Acquisitions (Lux) S.a.r.l)
Nippon Growth Fund CHF Class Limited
Onestop Insurance Limited
Pantheon Cipio V Limited (Alternate)
Park Cakes Acquisition (Lux) S.a.r.l
(formerly Caterpillar Acquisition (Lux)
S.a.r.l)
Pasia V GP Limited (Alternate)
Peuro V GP Limited (Alternate)
Peuro VI GP Limited (Alternate)
PGIF GP Limited (Alternate)
PGSF III GP Limited (Alternate)
Pi Selector S.a.r.l
Po Selector S.a.r.l
Poppy Acquisition (Lux) S.a.r.l
Portman Group International S.a.r.l
(formerly Q-Haig Acquisitions (Lux)
S.a.r.l)
Psource Capital Guernsey Limited
Sphinx Luxco A S.a r.l.
Sphinx Luxco B S.a r.l.
Sphinx Luxco C S.a r.l.
Sphinx Luxco D S.a r.l.
Sphinx Luxco S.a r.l.
Strategic Anaconda Fund Limited
Strategic Blue Star Euro Holdings
Limited
Strategic Euro US Opportunities Limited
Strategic Evarich USD Holdings Limited
Strategic Global Innovation Euro
Holdings Limited
Strategic Global Innovation Fund CHF
Class Limited
Strategic Global Opportunities Euro
Holdings Limited
Sweeper Selector S.a.r.l
Teesland Thorpe Park (Guernsey) Limited
(Alternate)
T-Haig Acquisitions (Lux) S.a.r.l
TRF Guernsey PCC Limited (formerly the
King Capital Management Total Return
Fund Limited)
Trident Luxembourg 1 S.à.r.l
Trident Luxembourg 2 S.à.r.l
Trio Luxco 3 S.a.r.l
True North (GP) Limited
VCP V-A (GP) (CI) Limited
VCP V-A (GP) Limited
VCP V-B (GP) Limited
VCP VI GP Limited
VCP VI-B GP Limited
VCP VI E GP Limited

VCP VI S GP Limited
VCP VII Holdco Lux S.a.r.l (formerly
VCP VII Luxco 2 S.a.r.l)
VCP VII Luxco 6 S.a.r.l
VCP VII Luxco 7 S.a.r.l
Vision Capital (General Partners)
Holdings Limited
Vision Capital Sub Holdings Limited
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John Reginald Le Prevost
Current Directorships and Partnerships
Anson Administration (UK) Limited
Anson Custody (UK) Limited
Anson Custody Limited
Anson Fund Managers Limited
Anson Fund Services Limited
Anson Group Limited
Anson Registrars (BVI) Limited
Anson Registrars (Cayman) Limited
Anson Registrars (UK) Limited
Anson Registrars Limited
BlueCrest AllBlue Fund Limited
Breton Limited
Close Asset Funds Limited
Close European Accelerated Fund Limited
Close Fund Management Portfolios II PCC
Limited
Equity Partnerships Fund Management
(Guernsey) Limited
German Aktiv Co-op Limited
German Aktiv General Partner Limited
Granite Fund Management Limited
Guaranteed Investment Products 1 PCC
Limited
Guernsey Sailing Trust
Harewood Structured Investment PCC Limited
Lincoln Unit Trust
Markland Thorpe Park Investments Limited
Markland Thorpe Park Limited
Nordic Aktiv Co-op 2 Limited
Nordic Aktiv Coop Limited
Nordic Aktiv General Partner 2 Limited
Nordic Aktiv General Partner Limited
Nottingham Unit Trust
TAPP Property Limited
Thai Prime Fund Limited
The Advantage Property Income Trust Limited
TOPP Bletchley Limited
TOPP Holdings Limited
TOPP Property Limited
University Capital Trust
University Properties Limited
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Past Directorships and Partnerships
Agricultural Commodities Trust Limited
BBAOF Management (Guernsey) Limited
Close Enhanced Commodities Fund
Limited
Close Enhanced Commodities Fund II
Limited
Close Man Guaranteed Hedge Fund II
Limited
De-Di Investments Limited
DIF S3 General Partners Limited
Doric Nimrod Air One Limited
European Equity Tranche Income Limited
Gaia-Soyuz Advisors Limited
Garth Heads Limited (formerly TAPP Hal
Two Ltd)
Granite CHF Investments Limited
Granite CHF Properties Limited
Guernsey Sailing Trust LBG
Heatherhill Property Limited
Hunet New Frontier Limited
India Strategic Assets Limited
Japanese Accelerated Performance Fund
Limited (I.V.L)
Louvre Group Limited
Melbourne Street Limited
MSL Holdings Limited
MW Tops Limited
Ocean Capital 3 (Opportunities Fund)
Limited
Phaunos Timber Fund Limited
Platinum Guernsey Limited
Property Acquisition & Management
Limited
Property Joint Ventures Limited
Shelco Three Limited
S-Infra Limited
Southgate Limited
SPG Insurance Company Limited
TAPP Hal Five Limited
TAPP Hal Four Limited
TAPP Hal One Limited
TAPP Hal Seven Limited
TAPP Hal Six Limited
TAPP Hal Three Limited
TAPP Hemel Hempstead Limited
TAPP Manchester Limited
TAPP Northampton Limited
Teesland Thorpe Park (Guernsey) Limited
The Accelerated Return Fund Limited
The Close Man Hedge Fund Limited
TIPP Holdings Limited
TIPP Property Limited
TIPP Property Subsidiary Limited

Paul Jonathan Meader
Current Directorships and Partnerships
Allez Property Limited
Bluecrest AllBlue Fund Limited
Corazon Absolute Return Fund Limited
Corazon Capital Accumulation Fund IC
Limited
ICG-Longbow Senior Secured UK Property
Debt Investments Limited
International Investments ICC Limited
International P&I Reinsurance Company
Limited
Milroy & Meader Holdings Limited

4.13

Past Directorships and Partnerships
Albion Investments Holdings Limited
British Real Estate Accumulation Fund
Limited
British Real Estate Fund Limited
British Real Estate Investments Limited
Corazon Capital Group Limited
Corazon Capital Limited
Corazon Capital (Jersey) Limited
Corazon Capital (Suisse) S.A.
Corazon Fund Management Limited
Glanmore Investments Limited
Glanmore Property Accumulation Fund
Limited
Glanmore Property Company Limited
Glanmore Property Dollar Fund Limited
Glanmore Property Euro Fund Limited
Glanmore Property Fund Limited
Guernsey Finance LBG
Lucas House Limited
Talisman Guernsey Management Limited

At the date of this document, none of the Directors:
4.13.1 has any convictions in relation to fraudulent offences for at least the previous five
years;
4.13.2 has been bankrupt or been a director of any company or been a member of the
administrative, management or supervisory body of an issuer or a senior manager of
an issuer at the time of any receivership or compulsory or creditors' voluntary
liquidation for at least the previous five years; or
4.13.3 has been subject to any official public incrimination or sanction of him by any
statutory or regulatory authority (including designated professional bodies) nor has he
been disqualified by a court from acting as a director of a company or from acting as
a member of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies of an issuer or
from acting in the management or conduct of the affairs of any issuer, for at least the
previous five years.

4.14

Each Director's business address is that of the registered office of the Company.

4.15

The Administrator, by virtue of holding the two Management Shares, exercises control over
the Company. Save as disclosed in paragraph 6.2.1(a) only holders of Management Shares
are entitled to attend and vote at General Meetings of the Company and save as disclosed in
this paragraph 4.15, as at the date of this Registration Document, the Company is not aware of
any person who directly or indirectly has an interest in the Company's capital or voting rights
which is notifiable under Guernsey law.

4.16

The Administration and Secretarial Agreement contains measures to ensure that the control
the Administrator exercises over the Company is not abused. The Company may terminate
the appointment of the Administrator on three months' written notice and on termination the
Board will direct the Administrator to transfer or procure the transfer of the Management
Shares for consideration equal to their nominal value. In addition, any case where the
Administrator has a material interest in relation to any of its duties or a relationship with a
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third party which may involve a conflict of interest with the Administrator's duties to the
Company must be disclosed to the Company and the Listing Sponsor. The Administrator is
also subject to the control of and review by the Directors when carrying out its duties and
must comply with the Articles of Association.
4.17

Except as disclosed in paragraphs 4.2 and 4.15 above, there are no potential conflicts of
interests between the duties to the Company of the Directors and their private interests or
other duties.

5.

Taxation
General
The information below, which relates only to Guernsey and United Kingdom taxation,
summarises the advice received by the Board and is applicable to the Company and to persons
who are resident or ordinarily resident in Guernsey or the United Kingdom for taxation
purposes and who hold Shares as an investment. It is based on current revenue law and
published practice and is subject to any subsequent changes therein.
If you are in any doubt about your tax position, or if you may be subject to tax in a
jurisdiction other than Guernsey or the United Kingdom, you should consult your
independent professional adviser.
Guernsey
(i)

The Company
Guernsey currently does not levy taxes upon capital inheritances, capital gains, gifts,
sales or turnover, nor are there any duties, save for an ad valorem fee for the grant of
probate or letters of administration.
The Company has received exempt status for Guernsey tax purposes.
In return for the payment of a fee, currently £600, a company is able to apply
annually for exempt status for Guernsey tax purposes. A Company that has exempt
status for Guernsey tax purposes is exempt from tax in Guernsey on both bank
deposit interest and any income that does not have its source in Guernsey.
Payments of dividends and interest by a Guernsey company can be made without
deduction of tax in Guernsey.
In the absence of exempt status the Company would be treated as resident in
Guernsey for Guernsey income tax purposes but would be subject to a zero rate of
income tax as described below.
In response to the review carried out by the European Union Code of Conduct Group,
the States of Guernsey has abolished exempt status for the majority of companies and
introduced a zero rate of tax for companies carrying on all but a few specified types
of regulated business. However, the States of Guernsey has also agreed that because
collective investment schemes, including closed ended investment vehicles, were not
one of the regimes in Guernsey that were classified by the EU Code of Conduct
Group as being harmful, such schemes would continue to be able to exempt status for
Guernsey tax purposes.
It is therefore expected that the Company will continue to apply for and be granted
exempt status regardless of the changes to the taxation of companies introduced under
the zero ten regime. As a result these changes are not expected to have any material
impact on the Company.
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Guernsey is undertaking a review of its personal tax regime during 2013 which may
have limited implications as far as corporate taxation is concerned but this review is
not expected to have a material impact on the Company.
(ii)

Shareholders
Shareholders resident for tax purposes in Guernsey, Alderney or Herm will be subject
to Guernsey income tax on actual distributions made to them. Such Shareholders will
not be taxed directly on the underlying investment income of the Company nor on
any deemed distributions by the Company. The Administrator will make a return to
the Director of Income Tax providing details of distributions to Shareholders resident
in Guernsey, Alderney and Herm.
Non Guernsey resident Shareholders will not be subject to any tax in Guernsey in
respect of any Shares owned by them.
Guernsey has introduced measures that are equivalent to the EU Savings Tax
Directive. The Company will not, under the existing regime, be regarded as an
undertaking for collective investment established in Guernsey that is equivalent to a
UCITS authorised in accordance with EC Directive 85/611/EEC of the Council for
the purposes of the application in Guernsey of the bilateral agreements on the taxation
of savings income entered into by Guernsey with EU Member States. Consequently,
in accordance with current States of Guernsey guidance on the application of the
bilateral agreements, where the Company’s paying agent (as defined for these
purposes) is located in Guernsey, the paying agent would not be required to exchange
information regarding distributions made by the Company and/or the proceeds of the
sale, refund, or redemption of shares in the Company.
The operation of the EU Savings Directive is currently under review by the European
Commission and a number of changes have been outlined which, if agreed, will
significantly widen its scope. These changes could lead to the Company having to
comply with the provisions of the EU Savings Directive in the future.

United Kingdom
The following statements are by way of a general guide only to Shareholders. They are not
exhaustive and do not constitute tax advice. Shareholders are therefore advised to consult
their professional advisors concerning possible taxation or other consequences of purchasing,
holding, selling or otherwise disposing of the Shares under the laws of their country of
incorporation, establishment, citizenship, residence or domicile.
The information below relates only to UK taxation and is applicable to the Company and to
UK residents holding Shares as an investment and does not apply to other categories of
taxpayers such as dealers in shares and securities. It is based on UK tax law and HM Revenue
and Customs (HMRC) published practice at the date of this document, the current intentions
of the Directors and the proposed activities of the Company as described in this document.
This information is therefore subject to any subsequent changes in law or HMRC practice, to
any non-fulfilment of the Directors' current intentions or changes in the proposed activities of
the Company. Anyone who is unsure of his tax treatment in relation to Shares should seek
independent professional advice.
(a)

The Company

The Directors intend to manage the affairs of the Company in such a way that it should not be
resident in the UK for UK tax purposes. Accordingly, and provided also that the Company
does not carry on a trade in the UK (whether or not through a branch or agency situated
there), the Company will not be subject to UK income tax or corporation tax other than on
any UK sourced income (or income with a comparable connection to the UK) from which
income tax may be deducted.
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(b)

Shareholders – Individual UK tax resident and domiciled Shareholders

Prospective Shareholders who are individuals should note that, following a consultation
which ran from June to September 2012, the UK Government has announced its intention,
among other things, to introduce a statutory test for UK tax residence for individuals, and to
abolish the concept of ordinary residence for UK tax purposes. Draft legislation relating to
this was published in December 2012 and is to be enacted in the Finance Act 2013, and to
have effect for the 2013/2014 tax year onwards.
Taxation on disposal or redemption
Subject to what follows, an individual UK tax resident and domiciled Shareholder who holds
Shares (that are not an interest in an offshore fund) as an investment should be subject to
capital gains tax (CGT) on any capital gains arising from the disposal of the Shares.
The principal factors which will determine the extent to which a capital gain arising from the
disposal of Shares will be subject to CGT are the level of the annual allowance of tax-free
capital gains in the tax year in which the disposal takes place (the annual exemption), the
extent to which the Shareholder realises any other capital gains in that year and the extent to
which the Shareholder has incurred capital losses in that or any earlier tax year.
The annual exemption is £10,600 for the 2012/2013 tax year. For the 2013/2014 tax year and
later years, this exemption will be, unless Parliament decides otherwise, increased annually in
line with the rate of increase (if any) in the consumer prices index. However, for the
2014/2015 and 2015/2016 tax years, it has been announced that this exemption will be
increased by 1 per cent. in each year, instead of in line with the consumer prices index.
Shareholders should be aware that the UK Parliament is entitled to withdraw this link
between the level of the annual exemption and the consumer prices index or even to reduce
the level of the annual exemption for future tax years below its current level.
For the purposes of illustration only, the various reliefs and allowances mentioned above
could interact in respect of a Shareholder who realises a capital gain (the relevant capital
gain) on a disposal of Shares in a particular tax year (the year of disposal) as follows:
1.

If the Shareholder has incurred no capital losses in the year of disposal and has no
unrelieved capital losses from any previous tax year, he will be subject to CGT if and
to the extent that the relevant capital gain plus any other capital gains realised by him
in the year of disposal exceed the annual exemption for that year.

2.

If the Shareholder has incurred capital losses in the year of disposal but has no
unrelieved capital losses from any previous tax year, those losses can be set off
against the relevant capital gain and against any other capital gains realised by him in
the year of disposal. To the extent that those losses are insufficient to relieve the
whole of the relevant capital gain and any other capital gains realised by the
Shareholder in the year of disposal, CGT will be payable by the Shareholder if and to
the extent that the net capital gains exceed the annual exemption for that year.

3.

Where either the Shareholder has incurred no capital losses in the year of disposal or
any capital losses so incurred are insufficient to relieve the whole of the relevant
capital gain and any other capital gains realised by the Shareholder in the year of
disposal, but the Shareholder has incurred unrelieved capital losses in some previous
tax year(s), those losses can be set off against the net capital gains realised by the
Shareholder in the year of disposal to the extent that it is necessary to reduce those
net capital gains to the level of the annual exemption for that year (and therefore to
the level where no CGT will be payable by the Shareholder for that tax year). If the
unrelieved capital losses from the previous tax year(s) are insufficient to reduce the
Shareholder's net capital gains for the year of disposal to the level of the annual
exemption for that year, CGT will be payable by the Shareholder if and to the extent
that the capital gains exceed the annual exemption for the year of disposal.
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Where an individual’s total taxable income and gains (after allowable deductions) are less
than the upper limit of the basic rate income tax band (which is £34,370 for the 2012/2013 tax
year and is expected to be £32,010 for the 2013/2014 tax year), capital gains tax will be
charged at 18 per cent. Any gains or part gains in excess of that upper limit will be taxed at
28 per cent.
A prospective Shareholder should only expect to be treated as holding the Shares as an
investment (subject to CGT and with the benefit of the annual exemption) if he acquires the
Shares intending to hold them for the medium to longer term and not to dispose of them in the
short term for profit.
Dividends
Any dividends received in respect of Shares (that do not constitute an interest in an offshore
fund)which are held as an investment by individuals domiciled and ordinarily resident in the
UK will be taxed either at the dividend ordinary rate (currently 10 per cent.) or (if total
income in a tax year exceeds the higher rate threshold) the dividend upper rate (currently 32.5
per cent.). Dividend income for individuals with taxable income for a tax year in excess of
£150,000 is charged at 42.5 per cent. for tax years before 2013/2014; the Government has
announced that this rate will drop to 37.5 per cent. for the 2013/2014 tax year and later tax
years.
Individuals in receipt of dividends from non-UK resident companies are entitled to a nonpayable tax credit of one ninth of the distribution if they own less than 10 per cent. of the
issued share capital of the distributing non-UK resident company.
Individual Shareholders who acquire their investment in Shares through an Individual
Savings Account
The Shares should qualify for inclusion within a stocks and shares ISA provided that they are
and remain (i) listed on a Recognised Stock Exchange and (ii) subject to a significant risk at
all times during the five years following the entry of the Shares into an ISA that their value
may fall below 95 per cent. of the capital invested (the 5 per cent. Test); and (iii) the
Company is not an "open-ended investment company". Shares that do not qualify for
inclusion within a stocks and shares ISA only because they do not satisfy the 5 per cent. Test
(i.e. where there is no significant risk that their value may fall below 95 per cent. throughout
that period) should still be eligible to be included in a cash ISA.
The Company's understanding of HMRC's interpretation of the 5 per cent. Test is that Shares
with the following characteristics should (notwithstanding the strict formulation of the 5 per
cent. Test) qualify for inclusion in a stocks and shares ISA:
(a)

Shares which have more than five years left until redemption at the time when they
are first held within an ISA (even if they are designed to provide a minimum return
on redemption of an amount equal to or greater than the amount paid by the
Shareholders for those Shares); or

(b)

Shares that are not designed to provide a return equal to at least 95 per cent. of the
amount paid by Shareholders for those Shares.

UK tax resident Shareholders who acquire their investment in Shares through an ISA and who
satisfy the requirements for tax exemption in the ISA Regulations will not be subject to either
UK income tax or UK capital gains tax on income and gains realised from their Shares and
any losses on their investment will be disregarded for the purposes of UK capital gains tax.
Where Shares in respect of a Cell are unlisted or are not listed on a Recognised Stock
Exchange, such Shares will not qualify for inclusion within a stocks and shares ISA. The tax
treatment of UK tax resident or ordinarily resident individual Shareholders in respect of such
Shares is set out above.
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Investors should note that the current yearly subscription limit for a stocks and shares ISA
(for the 2012/2013 tax year) is £11,280.
UK Self-Invested Personal Pensions (SIPP) and Small Self-Administered Schemes (SSAS)
The Shares in the Company should be capable of being held within a SIPP or SSAS that is a
registered pension scheme subject to the individual circumstances of the Shareholders.
Shareholders should obtain independent advice in relation to the tax treatment of Shares held
within a SIPP or SSAS.
(c)

Shareholders - UK tax resident corporate Shareholders

Shareholders that are companies should note that their tax treatment is dependent on their
particular circumstances.
A UK tax resident company Shareholder that holds the Shares as an investment and which
disposes of those Shares by way of sale should be subject to corporation tax on capital gains
arising from the disposal of Shares. Such Shareholders are currently entitled to an indexation
allowance which applies to reduce capital gains to the extent that they arise due to inflation.
The proceeds of the redemption of Shares should be within the charge to corporation tax on
income (subject to the availability of certain exemptions), to the extent that the redemption
proceeds exceed the amount of capital treated as repaid on the Shares on their redemption.
The tax treatment of such excess should be the same as the tax treatment of dividends
received in respect of the Shares (as described below). To the extent that an exemption is
available for the redemption proceeds of the Shares, Shareholders may be subject to
corporation tax on capital gains arising from the disposal of such Shares on redemption.
Dividends
Any Shareholders who are within the charge to UK corporation tax will be subject to
corporation tax on any dividends received. Such Shareholders should note that there are
certain exemptions from UK corporation tax on certain dividends and distributions.
However, for Shareholders which are small or micro enterprises (within the meaning of the
Annex to Commission Recommendation 2003/361/EC) the exemption is only available for
dividends and distributions paid by companies which are resident in a territory with which the
UK has a double taxation treaty containing a non-discrimination article. Guernsey does not
currently have a double taxation treaty with the UK that contains a non-discrimination article.
Accordingly, Shareholders which are small or micro enterprises will continue to be subject to
UK corporation tax on any dividends received on the Shares.
For other corporate Shareholders, an exemption from corporation tax on income is available
in a number of situations, including certain cases in which the Shareholder, together with
persons connected with the Shareholder, hold less than 10 per cent. of the Shares issued in
respect of the relevant Cell and where the dividend is paid out of profits arising from
transactions none of the main purposes of which was to achieve a reduction in UK tax.
However, the availability of the exemption is subject to a number of conditions, and also in
certain circumstances the exemption is not available if the distribution is paid as part of a
scheme or arrangement the main purpose or one of the main purposes of which is to secure a
UK tax advantage.
(d)

Other UK tax considerations

Withholding Tax and Provision of Information
The Company will not be required to withhold UK tax at source from dividends paid on the
Shares.

0030144-0000332 ICM:16026328.16

67

Shareholders who are individuals may wish to note that HMRC has the power to obtain
information (including the name and address of the beneficial owner of the foreign dividend)
from any person in the UK who either pays a foreign dividend to or receives a foreign
dividend for the benefit of an individual. Information so obtained may, in certain
circumstances, be exchanged by HMRC with the tax authorities of other jurisdictions.
However, HMRC published practice indicates that HMRC will not exercise the power to
require such information in respect of foreign dividends paid on or before 5 April 2013
(except in limited circumstances).
Offshore funds
The tax treatment of Shareholders discussed above is based on the assumption that the
Company is not and each Cell in respect of which Shares are issued is not an "offshore fund"
for tax purposes. This tax treatment would differ in certain respects if the Company is, or the
relevant Cell in respect of which Shares are issued is, an "offshore fund".
Prospective Shareholders should note that extensive changes to the United Kingdom offshore
funds regime were made by the Finance Act 2009, including the introduction of a new
definition of offshore fund for tax purposes. Under the new definition of an "offshore fund",
an offshore fund includes a "mutual fund" which is constituted by a company resident outside
the United Kingdom. On the basis that the Company is resident in Guernsey, the new
definition of "offshore fund" will be met in respect of an interest in the Company if it can be
regarded as an interest in a mutual fund.
The legislation, now contained in the Taxation (International and Other Provisions) Act 2010
(TIOPA 2010), defines a mutual fund as arrangements relating to property which meet each
of Conditions A to C, as set out in that Act. Where there is more than one class of interest in
the arrangements, each class will be considered individually for the purpose of determining
whether Conditions A to C are met. Each different Cell in the Company will be treated as a
different class of interest for these purposes. This means that Conditions A to C (together
with any relevant exceptions from the definition of "mutual fund") must be considered
separately in relation to each Cell in respect of which Shares are issued. There are certain
exceptions to the definition of mutual fund. If an exception applies to a Cell in respect of
which Shares are issued, that Cell will not constitute an offshore fund.
If the relevant Cell in respect of which Shares are issued does not qualify for an exception
from the definition of "mutual fund", that Cell is likely to constitute a mutual fund (and hence
an offshore fund) under the legislation in TIOPA 2010. A UK resident who acquires and then
disposes of any interest in an offshore fund may be charged to income tax (or corporation tax)
on any gain made on the disposal.
The Company anticipates that the arrangements relating to the Shares issued in respect of
each Cell should fall within the exception to the definition of “mutual fund” and on that basis
should not constitute an offshore fund.
UK Controlled Foreign Company Rules
The UK controlled foreign companies rules, found in Part 9A of the Taxation (International
and Other Provisions) Act 2010 for accounting periods of a non-UK resident company
beginning on or after 1 January 2013, can cause a proportion of certain categories of profits of
non-UK resident companies, which are controlled by persons resident in the UK, to be
imputed to and taxed upon UK companies which have a "relevant interest" in the non-UK
resident company. The categories of profits which may be imputed in this way are referred to
as "chargeable profits". A holding of Shares by a UK tax resident company would qualify as
a relevant interest in the Company for these purposes. "Relevant interests" held by bare
trustees or nominees will be treated as held by the person or persons for whom the bare
trustee or nominee holds the interest. Each Cell in respect of which Shares are issued by the
Company will be treated as a separate non-UK resident company under the rules. No
imputation of profits of a Cell in respect of which Shares are issued by the Company to a UK
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tax resident corporate Shareholder will take place unless the Shareholder (and persons
connected with that Shareholder) would have at least 25 per cent. of the relevant Cell
chargeable profits imputed to it on a "just and reasonable basis".
For accounting periods of a non-UK resident company beginning before 1 January 2013, the
previous controlled foreign companies rules in Chapter IV of Part XVIII of the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 continue to apply. Under those rules, all profits of a non-UK
resident company, rather than just certain categories of profits, are within the scope of the
regime. There is no rule treating each Cell in respect of which Shares are issued by the
Company as a separate non-UK resident company, so in order for an imputation of profits of
the Company to a UK tax resident corporate Shareholder to take place, that Shareholder
would have to have at least 25 per cent. of the Company's total profits (instead of 25 per cent.
or more of the relevant Cell chargeable profits) imputed to it on a "just and reasonable basis".
Section 13 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992
This paragraph applies only to Shareholders who are resident or ordinarily resident in the UK
and whose interest (when aggregated with persons connected with them) in a chargeable gain
of the Company exceeds one tenth. If the Company would be "close" if it were resident in the
UK, then part of the chargeable gain accruing to the Company may be attributed to such a
Shareholder and may (in certain circumstances) be liable to UK tax on capital gains in the
hands of the Shareholder. The part attributed to the Shareholder corresponds to the
Shareholder's proportionate interest in the capital gain.
On 6 December 2011, the Government announced its intention to reform the provisions
described in the previous paragraph, in response to a challenge by the European Commission
to the legality of the provisions. A consultation relating to those reforms ran from July 2012
to October 2012, and draft legislation was published in December 2012. It is proposed that
the one-tenth threshold for the rules to apply will be increased to one-quarter. In addition, the
introduction of some new exceptions to the provisions is proposed. One of those new
exceptions would, if the draft legislation is enacted in its current form, apply in relation to
chargeable gains accruing on the disposal of an asset by the Company, and would apply
where it could be shown that neither the disposal of that asset nor the acquisition or holding of
that asset by the Company formed part of a scheme or arrangements of which the main
purpose, or one of the main purposes, was the avoidance of liability to capital gains tax or
corporation tax. These amendments will be enacted in Finance Act 2013 and will apply
retrospectively from 6 April 2012 (but taxpayers may elect to defer application until 6 April
2013).
Sections 714-751 of ITA 2007
The attention of individual Shareholders who are ordinarily resident in the UK is drawn to the
provisions of sections 714-751 ITA 2007 contained in Chapter 2 of Part 13 of ITA 2007 (the
Transfer of Assets Abroad Legislation). Under sections 714-751 ITA 2007, the income
accruing to an issuer may be attributed to such a Shareholder and may (in certain
circumstances) be subject to UK income tax in the hands of the Shareholder. However, under
section 737 ITA 2007, sections 714-751 ITA 2007 will not apply if the Shareholder can
satisfy HMRC that either:
(1)

it would not be reasonable to draw the conclusion, from all the circumstances of the
case, that the purpose of avoiding liability to UK taxation was the purpose or one of
the purposes for which an investment in the Shares or any "associated operations"
within the meaning of section 719 ITA 2007 (together, the Share Transactions) was
effected; or

(2)

the Share Transactions were "genuine commercial transactions" and it would not be
reasonable to draw the conclusion, from all the circumstances of the case, that any
one or more of the Share Transactions was designed, more than incidentally, for the
purpose of avoiding UK taxation.
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Sections 737 and 738 ITA 2007 provide that, in interpreting these provisions:
(A)

the intentions and purposes of any person who, whether or not for consideration,
designs or effects any of the Share Transactions or provides advice in relation to any
of the Share Transactions would have to be taken into account in determining the
purposes for which the Share Transactions were effected;

(B)

for the purposes of (2) above, a Share Transaction would only be a "commercial
transaction" if, broadly, it was on arm's length terms and, in addition, if it was
effected in the course of a trade or business, or with a view to setting up and
commencing a trade or business and, in either case, for the purposes of that trade or
business; and

(C)

the making and managing of investments, or the making or managing of investments,
can only constitute a trade or business for the purposes of the preceding paragraph to
the extent that the person carrying out the activity and the person for whom it is done
are independent persons dealing at arm's length.

On 6 December 2011, the Government announced its intention to reform the Transfer of
Assets Abroad Legislation, in response to a challenge by the European Commission to the
legality of the provisions. A consultation relating to those reforms ran from July 2012 to
October 2012. The introduction of a new exception to the provisions is proposed, which, if
enacted in its current form, would apply in addition to those described above. In addition, the
amendments will also introduce rules to match income arising to a person abroad (which in
this case would be the Company) with benefits received by a UK individual. These
amendments will be enacted in Finance Act 2013 and will apply retrospectively from 6 April
2012.
Sections 731-751 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 (CTA 2010) and Sections 682-713 of ITA
2007
The attention of Shareholders who are corporation tax payers is drawn to the provisions of
sections 731 to 751 of CTA 2010. The attention of Shareholders who are income tax payers
is drawn to sections 682 to 713 of ITA 2007. These provisions could potentially apply to
counteract UK tax advantages arising to a Shareholder but the provisions will not apply
provided the Shareholder can demonstrate that:
(A)

(B)

in the case of a Shareholder who is a corporation tax payer:
(i)

its investment in the Shares was made for bona fide commercial reasons or in
the ordinary course of making or managing investments; and

(ii)

none of the main objects of the investment in the Shares was to obtain a
corporation tax advantage within the meaning of section 732 of CTA 2010

in the case of a Shareholder who is an income tax payer, none of the main purposes of
the investment in the Shares was to obtain an income tax advantage within the
meaning of section 687 of ITA 2007.

Stamp duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax
No stamp duty, stamp duty reserve tax or other similar tax is payable in the United Kingdom
on the issue of Shares.
No United Kingdom stamp duty reserve tax is payable on an agreement to transfer Shares
provided the register on which they are registered is kept outside the United Kingdom.
However, United Kingdom stamp duty, together with interest and any applicable penalties,
would be payable in the event that it became necessary to rely upon any instrument
transferring Shares in United Kingdom court proceedings (other than criminal proceedings),
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or to use such a transfer for any purposes in the United Kingdom, but only where such
transfer was executed in the United Kingdom or relates to any matter or thing done or to be
done in the United Kingdom.
If any potential investor is in any doubt about the taxation consequences of acquiring,
holding or disposing of Shares, he should seek advice from his own independent
professional adviser.
6.

Memorandum and Articles of Association

6.1

The Memorandum of Association of the Company provides that the main object of the
Company is the collective investment of its funds in property on a cellular basis with the aim
of achieving the investment return applicable to Shares issued in respect of each Cell in the
Company. The objects of the Company are set out in full in Clause 4 of the Memorandum of
Association, a copy of which is available for inspection at the address specified in
paragraph 1 of Part J of this document.

6.2

The Articles of Association of the Company contain provisions, inter alia, to the following
effect:
6.2.1

General Classes of Shares
(a)

Cell Shares
Redeemable participating preference shares of 0.0001p each (Cell Shares) as
the Directors may decide may be created and shall be issued with such
specific rights and attributable to such Cells as the Directors may determine.
Income
Subject to any specific rights attributable to any Cell Shares as described in
the Articles of Association or in the Prospectus relating to those Cell Shares,
the Cell Shares carry the right to receive all the revenue profits of the Cell to
which such Cell Shares relate which are available for distribution and from
time to time determined to be distributed by way of interim and/or final
dividend at such time as the Directors may determine.
Capital
Subject to any specific rights attributable to any class or classes of Cell
Shares as described in the Articles of Association or in the Prospectus
relating to those Cell Shares, upon the redemption of Cell Shares (or upon
any other return of capital on or after the Maturity Date for such Shares)
holders of Cell Shares are entitled to receive by way of capital, the
Investment Return for their Cell Shares.
On a winding-up of a Cell (or on any other return of capital) prior to the
Maturity Date for the Cell Shares in that Cell, after paying all debts
attributable to, and satisfying all liabilities of, that Cell and subject to the
rights of holders of Nominal Shares, holders of Cell Shares of that Cell shall
be entitled to receive by way of capital any surplus assets of that Cell in
proportion to their holdings.
The holders of Cell Shares are only entitled to participate in the assets of the
Cell to which their Cell Shares relate and have no entitlement to participate in
the distribution of any assets attributable to any other Cell or, except as
provided under the Companies Law, to the assets not attributable to any Cell
in meeting their capital entitlement.

0030144-0000332 ICM:16026328.16

71

Voting
Holders of Cell Shares are entitled to attend and vote at any separate general
meeting of the holders of the Cell Shares to which the separate general
meeting relates. Cell Shares carry one vote each on a poll.
The Company shall not without the previous consent in writing of the holders
of not less than three-quarters of the relevant Cell Shares in issue or the
sanction of a resolution passed at a separate general meeting of the holders of
the relevant Cell Shares by a majority of not less than three-quarters of the
votes cast at such meeting:
(a)

(except pursuant to the same initial offer of the relevant Cell Shares)
issue any further Cell Shares in the same Cell where such new Cell
Shares are expressed to rank pari passu with or in priority to the
relevant Cell Shares; or

(b)

make any material change in the investment policy of the relevant
Cell which, at the time of such change, appears likely in the
reasonable opinion of the Directors to be materially prejudicial to
holders of the Cell Shares of such Cell; or

(c)

pass any resolution amending, altering or abrogating any of the rights
attaching to the relevant Cell Shares as a class.

The holders of Cell Shares shall not be entitled to vote at a general meeting of
the Company unless a resolution is proposed at the general meeting to effect
any of the matters set out in items (a) to (c) above in relation to their Cell or
Cell Shares or is deemed to vary the special rights attaching to their Cell
Shares pursuant to paragraph 6.2.17 below, in which case the holders of Cell
Shares shall be entitled to vote only on such resolution at the relevant general
meeting of the Company.
The holders of Cell Shares shall not be entitled to vote on the establishment
of any further Cell(s) in the Company, the issue of Cell Shares in any other
Cell(s) in the Company or the increase in the authorised share capital of the
Company.
The rights attaching specifically to any Cell Shares as regards income, capital
and voting may be set out in a prospectus (or Securities Note) of the
Company relating to those Cell Shares.
(b)

Management Shares
Management Shares of £1.00 each have been created so that participating
shares may be issued. The Management Shares will be issued only to the
Administrator or its delegate or nominee or any other person approved by the
Directors from time to time and any Management Shares not so held shall be
subject to compulsory purchase under the Articles. Monies subscribed for
Management Shares shall be treated as non-cellular assets.
Income
The Management Shares do not carry any right to dividends.
Capital
Subject to the Companies Law, on a winding-up, the holders of Management
Shares are entitled, after payment of all creditors of the Company (and for the
avoidance of doubt such creditors do not include specified creditors of any
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Cell of the Company) and after a return of capital to the holders of Cell
Shares and Nominal Shares (in accordance with the rights attaching to the
respective shares), to be repaid an amount equal to the amount paid up on the
Management Shares and all remaining assets in the Company which are not
otherwise attributable to any Cell of the Company.
Voting
The holder or holders of Management Shares are entitled to attend and vote at
general meetings of the Company. Management Shares carry one vote each
on a poll.
(c)

Nominal Shares
Nominal Shares of 0.0001p each have been created so that redeemable
preference shares may be issued and redeemed. Nominal Shares can only be
issued at par to the Administrator or such other person approved by the
Directors from time to time.
The Administrator or such other person is obliged to subscribe for Nominal
Shares for cash at par when Cell Shares of any Cell are redeemed to ensure
that funds are available to redeem the nominal amount paid-up on such Cell
Shares, unless the Directors decide that the nominal amount of the Cell
Shares is to be redeemed out of profits attributable to the relevant Cell.
Income
The Nominal Shares do not carry any right to dividends.
Capital
Subject to the Companies Law, on a winding-up, holders of Nominal Shares
are entitled, after payment of all creditors of the Company and after a return
of capital to the holders of Cell Shares (in accordance with the rights
attaching to such shares), to be repaid an amount equal to their nominal value
in priority to any return of capital to the holders of Management Shares.
Voting
The holder or holders of Nominal Shares shall have the right to receive notice
of and to attend general meetings of the Company but shall not be entitled to
vote thereat.

6.2.2

Directors' Authority in relation to Shares
Subject to the Companies Law and the provisions of the Articles of Association, the
Company's unissued shares shall be under the control of the Directors who may offer,
allot, grant options over, or otherwise dispose of them to such persons, for such
consideration, on such terms and conditions and at such times as they think fit and
without prejudice to any special rights for the time being conferred on the holders of
any shares or class of shares (which special rights shall not be varied or abrogated
except with such consent or sanction as is provided by paragraph 6.2.6 below). Any
shares may be issued with or have attached thereto such preferred, deferred or other
special rights or restrictions whether in regard to dividend, return of capital, voting or
otherwise as the Directors may determine, provided that no new share shall be issued
out of an existing class of shares already in issue at a price which is a discount to the
prevailing net asset value per share of such existing class.
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6.2.3

Voting at General Meetings
(a)

(b)

(c)

6.2.4

Subject to any special rights or restrictions for the time being attaching to any
class of shares in any Cell or in the Company and subject as set out above, at
general meetings of the Company, holders of shares who are entitled to vote
at that meeting shall be entitled:
(a)

on a show of hands (if present in person) to one vote; or

(b)

on a poll (if present in person or by proxy) to one vote in respect of
each share held by him.

Subject to any special rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any
class of shares of any Cell or of the Company and subject as set out above, at
a separate general meeting of holders of shares in a particular Cell or a
particular class of shares, only holders of shares of that Cell or class shall be
entitled to vote in respect thereof and each holder shall be entitled:
(a)

on a show of hands (if present in person) to one vote; or

(b)

on a poll (if present in person or by proxy) to one vote in respect of
each Share of that Cell or class held by him.

A holder of shares in the Company shall not, unless the Directors otherwise
determine, be entitled to vote at any general meeting or Cell meeting of the
Company, either personally or by proxy, or exercise any privileges as a
member, unless all amounts payable by him in respect of the relevant shares
of which he is the holder or one of the joint holders have been paid.

Winding up of the Company
(a)

The assets available for distribution among the holders of shares of the
Company upon its winding-up shall be applied in the following priority:
(a)

(b)

The assets of each Cell
(i)

first, in repayment pari passu to the holders of Cell Shares of
that Cell of the nominal amount paid up by them on such
Cell Shares;

(ii)

second in repayment pari passu to the holders of Nominal
Shares of that Cell of the nominal amount paid up by them
on such Shares;

(iii)

any surplus of cellular assets of the Company then remaining
shall be distributed among the holders of Cell Shares of that
Cell pro rata to the number of participating Shares of that
Cell.

Non-Cellular assets
By distribution among the holders of Management Shares pro rata to
their respective holdings.

(b)

If the Company is wound up the liquidator may with the authority of a special
resolution of holders of Cell Shares of any particular Cell divide among the
holders in specie the whole or any part of the assets of the Cell in question
and whether or not the assets shall consist of property of a single kind and
may for such purposes set such value as he deems fair upon any asset or
classes of assets and may determine how such division shall be carried out as
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between the holders of shares in the Company or different classes of holders
of shares in the Company. The liquidator may with the like authority vest
any part of the assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of holders of
shares in the Company as the liquidator with the like authority shall think fit
and the liquidation of the Company may be closed and the Company
dissolved but so that no holder of shares in the Company shall be compelled
to accept any shares in respect of which there is liability.
(c)

6.2.5

Where the Company is proposed to be or is in the course of being wound-up
and the whole or part of its business or property is proposed to be transferred
or sold to another company (the transferee) the liquidator may, with the
sanction of an ordinary resolution, conferring either a general authority on the
liquidator or an authority in respect of any particular arrangement, receive in
compensation or part compensation for the transfer or sale, shares, policies or
other like interests in the transferee for distribution among the holders of
shares in the Company or may enter into any other arrangement whereby the
holders of shares in the Company may, in lieu of receiving cash, shares,
policies or other like interests, or in addition thereto, participate in the profits
of or receive any other benefits from the transferee.

Rights as to redemption
(a)

On the Maturity Date for each Cell Share, the Company shall redeem such
Cell Share in issue in the manner and at the redemption price described in the
Articles of Association or in the Prospectus of the Company relating to that
Cell.

(b)

The redemption moneys payable in respect of redemption of any Cell Share
held in inscribed or certificated form will be paid to the holder of such Cell
Share (or, in the case of joint holders, to the holder whose name stands first in
the Register in respect of such Cell Share) by cheque despatched at his own
risk within three Business Days of the Maturity Date for such Cell Share or
(if receipt by the Company of any investment returns in respect of the Plan
Investments for the relevant Cell to which the Cell Share relates is delayed)
within three Business Days of such later date on which the Company actually
receives the investment returns in respect of the relevant Plan Investments in
cleared moneys. A holder may make a request in writing (signed by all
holders in the case of joint holders), in such form as may be prescribed from
time to time by the Company, to the Paying Agent for the payment of
redemption proceeds to be made by some other method than a cheque
whereupon the Paying Agent will be deemed to have been authorised to
deduct any bank charges to be incurred in effecting such alternative payment
method from the holders' entitlement before such payment is made.

(c)

The redemption moneys payable in respect of the redemption of any Cell
Share held in uncertificated form will be paid within 30 Business Days of the
Maturity Date for such Cell Share (or as soon as practicable thereafter) to the
holder of such Cell Share by such method as may be determined by the
Directors.

(d)

The redemption moneys payable in respect of redemption of any Cell Shares
will be paid out of distributable profits of the Company or the Company's
share premium account or in such other manner as may be permitted under
the Companies Law.

(e)

The Company shall not be liable for any loss or damage suffered or incurred
by any holder of Shares or any other person as a result of or arising out of late
settlement, howsoever such loss or damage may arise.
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6.2.6

6.2.7

Variation of rights and alteration of capital
(a)

The special rights attached to the Management Shares, the Nominal Shares or
any class of Cell Shares (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of
the shares of that class) may, whether or not the Company is being wound up,
be varied with the consent in writing of the holders of three-quarters of the
issued shares of that class (whether Management Shares, Nominal Shares or
Cell Shares) or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate
meeting of the holders of such shares by a majority of not less than threequarters of the votes cast at such meeting. The provisions of the Articles of
Association relating to general meetings apply, mutatis mutandis, to every
such separate general meeting except that the quorum is at least two holders
of shares representing not less than one twentieth of the issued shares of that
class and if at any adjourned meeting of such holders a quorum is not present
the holders of shares of the class present shall constitute a quorum. Every
holder of shares of the class concerned shall be entitled at such meeting to
one vote for every share held by him on a poll.

(b)

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the Company may by
ordinary resolution cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the
resolution, have not been taken, or agreed to be taken, by any person and
diminish the amount of its issued share capital by the amount of shares so
cancelled.

(c)

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the Company may purchase,
or enter into a contract under which it will or may purchase, any of its own
shares of any class.

(d)

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the Company may by
special resolution reduce its share capital or any share premium account in
any manner.

(e)

The special rights conferred upon the holders of Cell Shares or any other
class of shares issued with preferred, deferred or other special rights (unless
otherwise expressly provided by the conditions of issue of such shares) shall
be deemed not be varied by the Directors having determined to create further
Cells and to issue shares in such Cells.

(f)

The special rights conferred upon the holders of Cell Shares or any other
class of shares issued with preferred, deferred or other special rights (unless
otherwise expressly provided by the conditions of issue of such shares) shall
be deemed not be varied solely by the increase in the authorised share capital
of the Company.

(g)

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, the Company may by
ordinary resolution passed by the holders of the Management Shares increase
its authorised share capital and may, if necessary, alter its Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association by increasing or reducing the amount
of its share capital and of its shares accordingly.

Creation of additional Cells and issues of Shares
Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Directors may from time
to time determine to create one or more Cells and to issue a class of Cell Shares in
respect thereof. Each Cell created shall have its own distinct name or designation.

6.2.8

Transfer of Shares
Subject to paragraph 6.2.12 below and such other restrictions noted below and in the
Articles of Association as may be applicable, any holder of shares in the Company
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may transfer all or any of his/her shares in any form which the Board may accept, and
his/her shares held in inscribed form or certificated form by a written instrument of
transfer. Any written instrument of transfer of a share must be signed by or on behalf
of the transferor and, in the case of a partly paid share the transferee, and the
transferor will be deemed to remain the holder of the share until the name of the
transferee is entered in the register. The Board may, in its absolute discretion and
without assigning any reasons therefore, refuse to register a transfer of any share in
inscribed or certificated form which is not fully paid or on which the Company has a
lien provided, in the case of a listed share, that this restriction on transfers of partly
paid shares will only be exercised if this would not prevent dealings in the shares
from taking place on an open and proper basis.
The Board may also refuse to register the transfer of shares unless:
(a)

the instrument of transfer is delivered for registration to the Company's
registered office or such other place as the Board may decide and is
accompanied by (a) in the case of a transfer of certificated shares, the relevant
share certificate and such other evidence as the Board may reasonably require
to prove title of the transferor or his right to transfer the shares, and (b) where
the instrument of transfer is executed by a person other than the transferor on
behalf of the transferor, the authority of that person to do so;

(b)

the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class of share; and

(c)

in the case of a transfer to joint holders, the number of joint holders to whom
the share is to be transferred does not exceed four.

If the Board refuses to register a transfer it must, within two months of the date on
which the instrument of transfer was lodged with the Company, send notice of the
refusal to the transferee.
In the case of the death of any one of joint holders the survivor or survivors, and in
the case of the death of a sole holder the executor, shall be the only person or persons
recognised by the Company as having any title to or interest in the shares of the
deceased holder.
Subject to the Companies Law, registration of transfers may be suspended and the
register of members closed by the Directors at their discretion either generally or in
respect of a particular class of share, provided that the register of members shall not
be closed for more than 30 days in any year.
No transfer will be registered if it would appear to the Directors or the Registrar,
acting reasonably, to result in US Persons being the legal and/or beneficial owners of
Shares or other outstanding securities of the Company at any time.
6.2.9

US Persons and other restricted persons
No shares may be purchased or held by US Persons. The Directors may at any time
give notice in writing to the holder of a share requiring him to make a declaration as
to whether or not he is a US Person.
Holders of shares are required to notify the Administrator and Registrar immediately
in the event that they become, or hold their shares on behalf of, US Persons and, if
required by the Board, shall be required to dispose of those shares to non-US Persons
as soon as possible. Holders of shares hereby agree to be bound by any requirement
to transfer any Shares which are or become owned, directly or indirectly, by a US
Person.
Shares acquired directly or indirectly by a US Person or held by a person who
becomes a US Person (except pursuant to an exemption under the US Securities Act
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of 1933) or persons in breach of any law or requirement of any country or persons
who directly or indirectly may result in the Company incurring any liability to
taxation or pecuniary disadvantage, are subject to compulsory transfer by the
Company.
6.2.10 Directors
(a)

The number of the Directors shall not be less than two.

(b)

At no time shall a majority of Directors be resident in the United Kingdom.

(c)

The remuneration of each Director shall be determined from time to time by
the Directors provided always that the aggregate remuneration of each
Director shall not exceed the aggregate of £5,000 plus £1,000 per Cell per
annum (plus any VAT payable thereon).

(d)

The Directors shall also be entitled to be paid their reasonable travelling,
hotel and incidental expenses of attending and returning from meetings of the
Directors or committees of the Board or general meetings and all expenses
properly and reasonably incurred by them in the conduct of the Company's
business or in the discharge of their duties as Directors.

(e)

Every Director, secretary and other officer or servant of the Company shall
(subject to the Companies Law) be indemnified by the Company out of non
cellular assets of the Company against (and it shall be the duty of the
Directors out of the non cellular assets of the Company to pay) all costs,
losses and expenses which any such officer or servant may incur or become
liable to by reason of any contract entered into or in any way in discharge of
his duties including legal expenses and the amount for which such indemnity
is provided shall immediately attach as a lien on the property of the Company
and have priority as between the holder of shares over all other claims.
The Company may purchase and maintain insurance for the benefit of the
Directors and other officers of the Company or any subsidiary including
insurance against costs, charges, expenses, losses or liabilities suffered or
incurred by such persons in respect of any act or omission in the actual or
purported discharge of their respective duties, powers and discretions in
relation to the Company.

(f)

A Director who to his knowledge is in any way, directly or indirectly,
interested in a contract or arrangement or proposed contract or arrangement
with the Company, otherwise than by virtue of his interests in shares or
debentures or otherwise in or through the Company, shall disclose the nature
of his interest to the Board. A Director shall not vote or be counted in the
quorum in relation to any resolution of the Board or of a committee of the
Board concerning any contract, arrangement, transaction or any other
proposal to which the Company is or is to be a party and in which he is to his
knowledge alone or together with any person connected with him materially
interested, save that this prohibition shall not apply in respect of a resolution
relating to any of the following matters:
(a)

the giving of a guarantee, security or indemnity in respect of money
lent or obligations incurred by him or any other person at the request
of or for the benefit of the Company or any of its subsidiary
undertakings;

(b)

the giving of a guarantee, security or indemnity in respect of a debt or
obligation of the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings for
which he himself has assumed responsibility in whole or in part,
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either alone or jointly with others, under a guarantee or indemnity or
by the giving of security;
(c)

a contract, arrangement, transaction or proposal concerning an offer
of shares, debentures, or other securities of the Company or any of its
subsidiary undertakings for subscription or purchase, in which offer
he is or may be entitled to participate as a holder of securities or in
the underwriting or sub underwriting of which he is to participate;

(d)

a contract, arrangement, transaction or proposal to which the
Company is or is to be a party concerning another company in which
he (and any persons connected with him) is interested and whether as
an officer, holder of shares, creditor or otherwise, if he does not to his
knowledge hold an interest in shares representing 1%, or more of
either a class of the equity share capital or of the voting rights in the
relevant company;

(e)

a contract, arrangement, transaction or proposal for the benefit of
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings
which only awards him a privilege or benefit generally awarded to
the employees to whom it relates; and

(f)

a contract, arrangement, transaction or proposal concerning the
purchase or maintenance of any insurance policy for the benefit of
Directors or for the benefit of persons including Directors.

(g)

There is no obligation on the Directors to retire by rotation.

(h)

A share qualification for a Director may be fixed by the Company in general
meeting and unless and until so fixed no qualification shall be required. A
Director need not be a holder of shares in the Company.

(i)

A Director shall be required to vacate his office at the conclusion of the
annual general meeting commencing next after he attains the age of 70.

(j)

The Board shall have the power at any time to appoint any person to be a
Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing
Directors. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re election.

(k)

Any Director may act by himself or by his firm in a professional capacity for
the Company, other than as auditor, and he or his firm shall be entitled to
remuneration for professional services as if he were not a Director.

(l)

The office of Director shall be vacated if the Director resigns his office by
written notice, if he shall have absented himself from meetings of the Board
for a consecutive period of six months and the Board resolves that his office
shall be vacated, if he becomes of unsound mind or incapable, if he becomes
insolvent, suspends payment or compounds with his creditors, if he is
requested to resign by written notice signed by all his co-Directors, if the
Company in general meeting by ordinary resolution shall declare that he shall
cease to be a Director, or if he becomes resident for tax purposes in the
United Kingdom and, as a result, a majority of the Directors are resident in
the United Kingdom.

6.2.11 Borrowing powers
(a)

The Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money of
an amount up to such limit and subject to restrictions either in respect of the
Company as a whole, or of an individual Cell as may be set out in a
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Prospectus relating to the relevant Cell published from time to time and to
guarantee, mortgage, hypothecate, pledge or charge all or part of its
undertaking property or assets and uncalled capital and to issue debentures
and other securities whether outright or as collateral security for any liability
or obligation of the Company or of any third party.
(b)

Any person lending money to the Company shall be entitled to assume that
the Company is acting in accordance with the Articles and shall not be
concerned to enquire whether such provisions have in fact been complied
with.

6.2.12 Disclosures of interests in Shares
The Directors may serve notice on any holder of shares in the Company requiring that
holder of shares to disclose to the Company the identity of any person (other than the
holder of shares) who has an interest in the shares held by the holder of shares and the
nature of such interest. Any such notice shall require any information in response to
such notice to be given in writing within such reasonable time as the Directors may
determine.
6.2.13 Untraced Holders of Shares
The Company shall be entitled to sell (at a price which the Company shall use its
reasonable endeavours to ensure is the best obtainable) the shares of a holder of
shares or the shares to which a person is entitled by virtue of transmission death or
bankruptcy or otherwise by operation of law if and provided that:
(a)

during the period of not less than 12 years prior to the date of the publication
of the advertisements referred to below (or, if published on different dates,
the first thereof) at least three dividends in respect of the shares in question
have become payable and no dividend in respect of those shares has been
claimed; and

(b)

the Company shall following the expiry of such period of 12 years have
inserted advertisements, both in a national newspaper and in a newspaper
circulating in the area in which the last known address of the holder of shares
at which service of notices may be effected under the Articles is located
giving notice of its intention to sell the said shares; and

(c)

during the period of three months following the publication of such
advertisements (or, if published on different dates, the last thereof) the
Company shall have received indication neither of the whereabouts nor of the
existence of such holder of shares or person; and

(d)

notice shall have been given to the Channel Islands Stock Exchange of its
intention to make such sale.

6.2.14 Dividends
(a)

The Company in general meeting may declare a dividend in respect of Cell
Shares where the rights attaching thereto entitle their holders to receive
dividends but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the
Directors.

(b)

No dividend shall be paid other than out of profits available for that purpose
under the Companies Law provided always that all moneys realised on the
sale or other realisation of any capital assets in excess of book value and all
other moneys in the nature of accretion to capital, determined conclusively by
the Directors, will not be treated as profits available for dividend.
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(c)

The Directors may, if they think fit, from time to time pay the holders of Cell
Shares such interim dividends on the Shares of a Cell as appear to be justified
by the profits of the Company attributable to that Cell.

(d)

All unclaimed dividends may be invested or otherwise made use of by the
Directors for the benefit of the Company until claimed. No unclaimed
dividend shall bear interest against the Company. Any dividend unclaimed
after a period of twelve years from the date of declaration of such dividend
shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company.

(e)

The Directors are also empowered to create reserves before recommending or
declaring any dividend. The Directors may also carry forward any profits
which they think prudent or fit not to distribute or to place to reserve.

6.2.15 Allocation of Assets and Liabilities
If at any time the shares in issue are attributed to separate Cells, the Directors shall
establish a fund for each such Cell and the assets of a Cell shall constitute cellular
assets for the purposes of the Companies Law. The Directors shall maintain all the
assets, income, earnings, liabilities, expenses and costs of each Cell separate and
separately identifiable from all other assets, income, earnings, liabilities, expenses
and costs of the Company (or any other Cell), and the following provisions shall
apply thereto:
(a)

any consideration received on, or proceeds from, the allotment and issue of
Cell Shares shall be applied to the relevant Cell, and the assets and liabilities
and income and expenditure attributable thereto shall be applied only to that
Cell subject to the sub-paragraphs below of this Section 6.2.15 and on a
redemption of any Share in a particular Cell the assets of the fund established
for that Cell shall be reduced by the amount of the redemption proceeds
payable on the redemption of that Share;

(b)

for each such Cell, the Company shall keep separate books in which all
transactions relating to that Cell shall be recorded;

(c)

any asset derived from any other asset or assets (whether cash or otherwise)
comprised in any Cell shall be applied in the books of the Company to the
same Cell as the asset or assets from which it was derived and any increase or
diminution in the value of an asset comprised in a Cell shall be applied to that
Cell;

(d)

in the event that there is any asset of the Company (not being proceeds
received on the subscription for Management Shares) which the Directors do
not consider readily attributable to cellular or non-cellular assets or to a
particular Cell or Cells, the Directors shall allocate such asset in such manner
and on such basis as they in their discretion deem fair and equitable and the
Directors shall have the power to and may at any time and from time to time
vary such basis in respect of any asset not previously allocated;

(e)

the Directors shall (subject to the provisions of the Companies Law) have
discretion to determine the basis upon which any liability which is not
attributable to a particular Cell or to the Management Shares shall be
allocated between the Cells (including conditions as to subsequent allocation
thereof if circumstances so permit or require) and shall have power at any
time and from time to time to vary such basis and to charge expenses of the
Company or any Cell against either the revenue or the capital of the
Company or that Cell as the case may be; and
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(f)

subject as otherwise provided in the Articles of Association the assets held
for each Cell shall be applied solely in respect of Shares of that Cell.

6.2.16 Calculation of Net Asset Value
(a)

The Net Asset Value of each Cell shall be calculated as at such time as may
be determined by the Directors for such Cell (Net Asset Valuation Time)
and shall be equal to the value, as at the Net Asset Valuation Time, of all the
assets, less all the liabilities, of the Company in respect of such Cell.

(b)

The Net Asset Value of each Cell shall be calculated by valuing the assets of
each Cell in accordance with the following valuation methodology:
(a)

Any investment which is quoted, listed or normally dealt in on a
securities market will be valued as at the Net Asset Valuation Time at
(in order of the following priority, depending on availability) the
latest available traded price, mid-market price, official closing price,
or bid price or, where these are not available or are unrepresentative,
the securities will be valued at the probable realisation value
estimated with care and in good faith by a competent entity approved
for the purpose by the Administrator. Where such security is listed
or dealt on more than one securities market, the relevant market shall
be the one that constitutes the main market or the one which the
Directors determine provides the fairest criteria in a value for the
security.

(b)

Exchange traded options, share price index futures contracts and
other futures contracts will be valued at the settlement price in the
market where such contracts are principally traded. If the settlement
price is not available, the value shall be the probable realisation value
estimated with care and in good faith by the Directors or a competent
person appointed by the Directors and approved for the purpose by
the Administrator.

(c)

Forward currency exchange contracts will be valued by reference to
the price at which a new forward contract of the same size and
maturity could be undertaken.

(d)

Unlisted securities and listed securities for which a price is not
available will be valued at probable realisation value, estimated with
care and in good faith by a competent entity approved for the purpose
by the Administrator.

(e)

Money market instruments, unless listed on a securities market,
which are defined as those debt securities with a remaining maturity
of 60 days or less, will be valued at amortised cost. Listed money
market instruments shall be valued in accordance with paragraph (a)
above.
The Company must carry out a weekly review of
discrepancies between market value and portfolio value; if
discrepancies in excess of 0.3% occur a daily review must take place;
if discrepancies in excess of 0.5% occur the Directors must promptly
consider what action, if any, must be taken to reduce such dilution.

(f)

OTC contracts will be valued monthly by the counterparty and
verified by a party independent to the counterparty which is approved
for the purpose by the Administrator.

(g)

Cash shall be valued at face value (together with accrued interest to
the relevant Net Asset Valuation Time) unless, in the opinion of the
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Directors, any adjustment should be made to reflect the fair value
thereof.
(h)

Units or shares or other similar participation in any collective
investment scheme which provides for the units or shares or other
similar participation therein to be redeemed at the option of the
holder out of the assets of that undertaking shall be valued at the last
available net asset value per unit or share or other similar
participation as at the Net Asset Valuation Time.

(i)

Any value expressed otherwise than in Sterling shall be converted
into Sterling at the rate (whether official or otherwise) which the
Administrator deems appropriate in the circumstances.

(j)

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing sub-paragraphs, the Directors
may, with the approval of the Administrator, adjust the value of any
investment or other property if, having regard to currency, applicable
rate of interest, maturity, marketability and/or such other
considerations as they may deem relevant, they consider that such
adjustment is required to reflect the fair value thereof.

(k)

If in any case a particular value is not ascertainable as above
provided or if the Directors shall consider that some other method of
valuation better reflects the fair value of the relevant investment then
in such case the method of valuation of the relevant investment shall
be such as the Directors in their absolute discretion shall decide with
the approval of the Administrator.

(l)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, where at the time of any valuation
any asset of the Company has been realised or contracted to be
realised there shall be included in the assets of the Company in place
of such asset the net amount receivable by the Company in respect
thereof provided that if such amount is not known exactly then its
value shall be the net amount estimated by the Directors as receivable
by the Company with the approval of the Administrator.

(m)

The pricing services, whether automated or not, of one or more third
parties may be engaged to ascertain the value of any investment.

(n)

Any valuations made pursuant to these Articles shall be binding on
all persons with the approval of the Administrator.

6.2.17 Modification of Rights
(a)

The special rights attached to the Management Shares, the Nominal Shares or
any class of Cell Shares (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of
the shares of that class) may, whether or not the Company is being wound up,
be varied with the consent in writing of the holders of three-quarters of the
issued shares of that class (whether Management Shares, the Nominal Shares
or Cell Shares) or with the sanction of a resolution passed at a separate
meeting of the holders of such shares by a majority of not less than threequarters of the votes cast at such meeting.

(b)

The special rights conferred upon the holders of Cell Shares or any other
class of shares issued with preferred, deferred or other special rights shall be
deemed to be varied by:
(a)
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7.

(b)

any merger, reconstruction or amalgamation affecting the Company
or its share capital;

(c)

any discontinuance of or material change in the nature of the business
of the Company as described in the Prospectus;

(d)

the creation or issue of any other class of Shares whether now in
existence or hereafter created ranking pari passu or in priority to
them as respects participation in the profits or assets of the Company;
or

(e)

by any change in the status of the Company as a protected cell
company.

Material Contracts
The following is a summary of: (i) each material contract, other than contracts entered into in
the ordinary course of business, to which the Company is a party, for the two years
immediately preceding publication of this Registration Document; and (ii) any other contract,
not being a contract entered into in the ordinary course of business, entered into by the
Company which contains any provision under which the Company has any obligation or
entitlement which is material to the Company as at the date of this Registration Document.

7.1

The Listing Sponsor's Agreements dated 28 February 2006 for Cell 8, dated 14 May 2007 for
Cell 18 and Cell 19, dated 20 July 2007 for Cell 21 and Cell 22, dated 10 August 2007 for
Cell 24 and Cell 25, dated 1 October 2007 for Cell 26 and Cell 27, dated 18 October 2007 for
Cell 29 and Cell 30, dated 23 November 2007 for Cell 31 and Cell 32, dated 21 December
2007 for Cell 34 and Cell 35, dated 30 January 2008 for Cell 36, Cell 37, Cell 39 and Cell 40,
dated 17 April 2008 for Cell 42, Cell 43, Cell 45 and Cell 46, dated 13 June 2008 for Cell 48,
Cell 49, Cell 51 and Cell 52, dated 27 June 2008 for Cell 55, Cell 56, Cell 58 and Cell 59,
dated 19 November 2008 for Cell 61, Cell 62, Cell 64 and Cell 65, dated 23 December 2008
for Cell 68, Cell 69, Cell 70 and Cell 71, dated 17 February 2009 for Cell 73, Cell 74, Cell 76
and Cell 77, dated 11 March 2009 for Cell 79, Cell 80, Cell 81, Cell 82, Cell 83, Cell 84 and
Cell 85, dated 28 April 2009 for Cell 86, Cell 87, Cell 88, Cell 89, Cell 90, Cell 91, Cell 92,
Cell 93 and Cell 94, dated 5 June 2009 for Cell 95, Cell 96, Cell 97, Cell 98, Cell 99, Cell
100, Cell 101 and Cell 102, dated 10 July 2009 for Cell 103, Cell 104, Cell 105, Cell 106,
Cell 107, Cell 108, Cell 109 and Cell 110, dated 21 August 2009 for Cell 111, Cell 112, Cell
113, Cell 114, Cell 115, Cell 116, Cell 117 and Cell 118, dated 25 September 2009 for Cell
119, Cell 120, Cell 121, Cell 122, Cell 123, Cell 124, Cell 125 and Cell 126, and dated 10
November 2009 for Cell 127, Cell 128, Cell 129, Cell 130, Cell 131, Cell 132 and Cell 133,
dated 16 December 2009 for Cell 134, Cell 135, Cell 136, Cell 137, Cell 138, Cell 139, Cell
140, Cell 141 and Cell 142, dated 22 January 2010 for Cell 143, Cell 144, Cell 145, Cell 146,
Cell 147, Cell 148 and Cell 149, dated 26 February for Cell 150, Cell 151, Cell 152, Cell 153
and Cell 154, dated 1 April for Cell 155, Cell 156, Cell 157, Cell 158 and Cell 159, dated 23
April 2010 for Cell 160, Cell 161, Cell 162, Cell 163 and Cell 164, dated 28 May 2010 for
Cell 165, Cell 166, Cell 167, Cell 168 and Cell 169, dated 28 June for Cell 170, Cell 171, Cell
172, Cell 173, Cell 174 and Cell 175, dated 30 July 2010 for Cell 176, Cell 177, Cell 178,
Cell 179, Cell 180 and Cell 181, dated 20 August 2010 for Cell 182, Cell 183, Cell 184, Cell
185 and Cell 186, dated 28 September 2010 for Cell 187, Cell 188 and Cell 189, dated 22
October 2010 for Cell 190, Cell 191 and Cell 192, dated 22 November 2010 for Cell 193, Cell
194 and Cell 195, dated 7 December 2010 for Cell 196, Cell 197 and Cell 198, dated 28
January 2011 for Cell 199 and Cell 200, dated 25 February 2011 for Cell 201 and Cell 202,
dated 1 April 2011 for Cell 203 and Cell 204, dated 3 May 2011 for Cell 205 and Cell 206,
dated 27 May 2011 for Cell 207 and Cell 208, dated 29 June 2011 for Cell 209 and Cell 210,
dated 29 July 2011 for Cell 211 and Cell 212, dated 2 September 2011 for Cell 213 and Cell
214, dated 30 September 2011 for Cell 215, Cell 216 and Cell 217, dated 4 November 2011
for Cell 218 and Cell 219, dated 25 November 2011 for Cell 220 and Cell 221, dated 22
December 2011 for Cell 222 and Cell 223, dated 25 January 2012 for Cell 224 and Cell 225,
dated 22 February 2012 for Cell 226 and Cell 227, dated 2 April 2012 for Cell 228 and Cell
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229, dated 26 April 2012 for Cell 230 and Cell 231, dated 21 June 2012 for Cell 232 and Cell
233, dated 31 August 2012 for Cell 234 and Cell 235, dated 25 October 2012 for Cell 236 and
Cell 237 and dated 28 November 2012 for Cell 238 and Cell 239, between the Company and
Mourant Ozannes Securities Limited under which Mourant Securities Limited agreed to act as
sponsor in connection with the application for Admission of the Shares in the relevant Cell.
In consideration of the services provided by it, Mourant Ozannes Securities Limited was paid
a one-time fee of £3,000, an initial fee of £750 per Cell in respect of all Cells up to and
including Cell 223 and of £600 per Cell in respect of all Cells from and including Cell 224
onwards, and then an annual fee per Cell. The annual fee was £750 per Cell for all Cells until
the end of December 2011, and was £600 per Cell for all Cells from January 2012 onwards.
7.2

The Listing Sponsor's Agreement contains certain warranties and indemnities, which are of a
customary nature, given by the Company in favour of Mourant Ozannes Securities Limited.
The agreement may be terminated by either party by not less than 60 days notice in writing.
In certain circumstances, the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by
either party to the other and may, in certain circumstances, be terminated prior to such
Admission.

7.3

The Investment Management Agreement dated 28 January 2005 (as amended) between the
Company and Abbey National Treasury Services plc provides for the appointment of Abbey
National Treasury Services plc as the Investment Manager. The appointment will continue in
force from 28 January 2005 until the Company Winding-Up Date unless and until terminated
by either party giving to the other not less than 90 days written notice. In certain
circumstances the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by either party
to the other.
The agreement contains an indemnity from the Company in favour of the Investment
Manager and its associates which is restricted to exclude matters arising by reasons of the
fraud, bad faith, negligence or wilful default of the Investment Manager or any of its
associates in the performance of its duties or a breach of the Investment Management
Agreement or any applicable law or regulation by the Investment Manager or any of its
associates.
The agreement contains provisions pursuant to which the Investment Manager will meet the
Initial Launch Costs, the Ongoing Costs and any other costs and expenses of the Company as
may be agreed between the Investment Manager and the Company to ensure the sufficiency
of assets to provide Investment Returns (see section headed "Fees and Expenses" in Part A of
this Registration Document or the Relevant Securities Note for further details).
Neither the Investment Manager nor any of its associates will be liable to the Company in
relation to this agreement, save to the extent that the Company has suffered a loss due to the
negligence, fraud, bad faith or wilful default of the Investment Manager or any of its
associates or to a breach of the Investment Management Agreement or any applicable law or
regulation by the Investment Manager or any of its associates.

7.4

The Administration and Secretarial Agreement dated 28 January 2005 (as amended) between
the Company and Anson Fund Managers Limited provides for the appointment of Anson
Fund Managers Limited as administrator and secretary of the Company. Under the
Administration and Secretarial Agreement, the Administrator received an initial appointment
fee not exceeding £6,000 and is entitled to receive: (i) an initial fee of £1,500 for each new
Cell of the Company on the date the Company first issues Shares in respect of such new Cell,
(ii) a basic Company annual fee of £5,000 per annum, and (iii) a basic Cell annual fee of
£1,000 per annum in respect of each Cell commencing on the date such Cell first issues
Shares to the date its Shares are fully redeemed. The Administrator shall be entitled to
reimbursement of any other fees and expenses reasonably disbursed by it on behalf of the
Company.
The Administration and Secretarial Agreement contains an indemnity in favour of the
Administrator against claims by third parties except to the extent that the claim arises from
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the breach of any of its obligations under the Administration and Secretarial Agreement,
negligence, wilful default or fraud of the Administrator or in respect of any breach by the
Administrator of any statute or regulation governing its conduct.
The Administration and Secretarial Agreement may be terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than three months' notice in writing after the first anniversary of the date of
incorporation of the Company or otherwise in circumstances where one of the parties goes
into liquidation or commits a material breach of its obligations under the Agreement.
7.5

The Registrar's Agreement dated 28 January 2005 between the Company and Anson
Registrars Limited pursuant to which the Anson Registrars Limited has agreed to act as
registrar, transfer agent, paying agent and receiving agent of the Company for a minimum
annual fee payable by the Company of £200 per Cell. The Company shall also pay to the
Registrar additional fees in respect of the performance by the Registrar of other tasks
requested of it by the Company upon submission by the Registrar of invoices in respect of
such additional fees at the end of each month. The Registrar shall be entitled to
reimbursement by the Company of any other fees and expenses reasonably disbursed by it in
connection with the performance of its services under the Registrar's Agreement. The
Registrar's Agreement may be terminated by either party by service of 90 days' written notice
served on the other party (such notice not to be effective within the first six months after the
date of the Registrar's Agreement), although in certain circumstances the Registrar's
Agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by either party to the other. The
Registrar's Agreement contains an indemnity in favour of the Registrar against all claims
brought by a third party against the Registrar in the course of carrying out its duties under the
Registrar's Agreement except where such claims arise from the negligence, fraud or wilful
default of the Registrar or the breach by it of the terms of the Registrar's Agreement in the
performance or non-performance of its duties thereunder.

7.6

The Marketing Agreement dated 28 January 2005, as amended and restated as of 28 February
2006, 23 October 2006, 16 December 2009 and 26 October 2012 between Abbey National
PEP and ISA Managers Limited (now known as Santander ISA Managers Limited), Abbey
National Treasury Services plc and the Company pursuant to which the Company appoints
Abbey National PEP and ISA Managers Limited as the Marketing Manager.
Pursuant to this agreement, the Marketing Manager is appointed (in association with and as
authorised by the Company) for the purpose of marketing the Shares in certain Cells to
investors in the United Kingdom through ISAs and direct investment via a nominee account
in the name of the Marketing Manager or its nominee. Pursuant to the Marketing Agreement
the Marketing Manager may delegate its obligations to other entities (who will, by virtue of
such delegation, be acting in association with and as authorised by the Company).
The agreement may be terminated by any party by not less than 90 days notice in writing. In
certain circumstances, the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by any
party to the other parties.

7.7

The Guarantee Facility Agreement dated on or about 28 February 2006 (as amended) between
the Company and Abbey National Guarantee Company (now known as Santander Guarantee
Company) established, inter alia, (i) the agreed form of the Deed of Guarantee for the Cell
Guarantee for Cell 8 and each Cell established thereafter by the Directors (in relation to which
the Guarantor has entered into a Cell Guarantee), (ii) conditions to the provision of a Cell
Guarantee by Santander Guarantee Company to the holders of Shares in Cell 8 and each Cell
established thereafter by the Directors (in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into a
Cell Guarantee), (iii) an indemnity to be given by the Company to Santander Guarantee
Company in relation to each Cell Guarantee for Cell 8 and each Cell established thereafter by
the Directors (in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into a Cell Guarantee), (iv)
representations and covenants required to be made by the Company to Santander Guarantee
Company (in respect of a Cell in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into a Cell
Guarantee), (v) events of default following which Santander Guarantee Company may
enforce its security under the Cell Security Documents in respect of the relevant Cell (in
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relation to which the Guarantor has entered into a Cell Guarantee) in default. The Guarantee
Facility Agreement contains a condition that Santander Guarantee Company shall only issue a
new Cell Guarantee for a new Cell if the issue of that Cell Guarantee will not result in the
aggregate maximum contingent liability of Santander Guarantee Company under all the Cell
Guarantees exceeding £8 billion. In addition, (in respect of a Cell in relation to which the
Guarantor has entered into a Cell Guarantee) under the Guarantee Facility Agreement, the
Company is required to set up a bank account at Abbey National plc (now known as
Santander UK plc) in respect of the relevant Cell into which it shall deposit the proceeds
received by it under the Plan Investments for the relevant Cell and grant a fixed charge over
the account for the relevant Cell in favour of Santander Guarantee Company by entering into
the Cell Security Documents for the relevant Cell. The Company is not obliged to pay
Santander Guarantee Company guarantee fees under the Guarantee Facility Agreement.
7.8

The Guarantee Claims Deed dated 28 February 2006 (as amended) entered into between the
Company, Abbey National Guarantee Company (now known as Santander Guarantee
Company) and the Guarantee Claims Agent which provides for the appointment of the
Guarantee Claims Agent as an agent of Shareholders in making claims under the Cell
Guarantee for Cell 8 and each Cell established thereafter by the Directors (in relation to which
the Guarantor has entered into a Cell Guarantee). Under the Guarantee Claims Deed, (i) any
demand for payment in respect of any Cell Guarantee for Cell 8 or any Cell established
thereafter by the Directors (in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into a Cell
Guarantee), under the relevant Deed of Guarantee is to be made by the Guarantee Claims
Agent on behalf of Shareholders of the relevant Cell, (ii) any claim has to be made within the
specified time frame, (iii) the Guarantee Claims Agent is required to open a segregated
guarantee claims bank account into which Abbey National Guarantee Company shall pay all
amounts to be paid under any Cell Guarantee for Cell 8 or any Cell established thereafter by
the Directors (in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into a Cell Guarantee), and (iv)
(in respect of a Cell in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into a Cell Guarantee) the
Guarantee Claims Agent is to hold all monies standing to the credit of the guarantee claims
account on trust for the benefit of the relevant Shareholders. In the event that the Guarantee
Claims Agent fails to fulfil its responsibilities under the Guarantee Claims Deed (in respect of
a Cell in relation to which the Guarantor has entered into a Cell Guarantee), the Guarantor
will be obliged, subject to the terms of the Guarantee Claims Deed, to establish an alternative
mechanism to facilitate claims under that Cell Guarantee, provided that the Guarantor will not
be obliged to notify any Shareholder that he or she may have a claim for payment or to
request any such Shareholder to submit a claim and is discharged from its obligations under
that Cell Guarantee by virtue of making proper payment to the Guarantee Claims Agent.

7.9

The Company and Abbey National Guarantee Company (now known as Santander Guarantee
Company) entered into a charge agreement on 28 February 2006 under which the Company
granted a fixed charge over the Plan Investments for Cell 8 and a bank account at Abbey
National plc (now known as Santander UK plc) in respect of Cell 8 (Charged Cell Assets)
into which it will pay the proceeds of Plan Investments for Cell 8 in favour of Santander
Guarantee Company as security for its indemnity obligations to Santander Guarantee
Company under the Guarantee Facility Agreement in relation to the Cell Guarantee applicable
to the Shares for Cell 8. Under the terms of the charge agreement for Cell 8, the Company is
entitled to make payments out of the bank account only where such payments have been
countersigned by a duly authorised officer of Santander Guarantee Company.
In the event that the Company fails to repay Cell 8 Shareholders the Guaranteed Return in
respect of the relevant Shares redeemed on the Maturity Date for the relevant Cell, Santander
Guarantee Company will be entitled to enforce its security over the Charged Cell Assets for
the relevant Cell to assist it in meeting its obligations to pay Shareholders under the Cell
Guarantee applicable to Shares in Cell 8.

7.10

The Company has entered into a separate master agreement dated 28 February 2006 for Cell 8
with Abbey National Treasury Services plc, as the Investment Counterparty, in the form of
the 1992 International Swaps and Derivatives Association's Multicurrency Cross-Border
Agreement (ISDA Master Agreement).
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The ISDA Master Agreement governs the Plan Investment for Cell 8. The Plan Investment
for Cell 8 is evidenced by a confirmation letter exchanged between the Company and the
Investment Counterparty which shall supplement and form part of the ISDA Master
Agreement for Cell 8.
The ISDA Master Agreement contains standard events of default and termination events,
including failure to pay and insolvency related events. Under the terms of the ISDA Master
Agreement, the Investment Counterparty has agreed to limit its recourse for payments due to
it from the Company under the ISDA Master Agreement to the assets of Cell 8.
Performance by the Investment Counterparty of any obligation or liability to make any
payment in cash which is or becomes payable by it under the ISDA Master Agreement is
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by Abbey National plc (now known as Santander
UK plc) pursuant to a deed poll guarantee dated 26 January 2004. It should be noted that the
guarantee is a guarantee of payments due under the ISDA Master Agreement to the Company
and not a guarantee of the Investment Returns in respect of the relevant Cells.
7.11

The ISDA Master Agreements and charge agreements (Charge Agreements) entered into by
the Company in respect of each of Cells 18 to 239 that remain outstanding (summaries of
which are set out in the Relevant Securities Note relating to each such Cell on the pages
specified in the table below and are incorporated by reference in this document) are available
for inspection at the address referred to in Part J of this Registration Document.

ISDA Master Agreement

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 18

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 19

Page 19

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 21

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 22

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 24

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 25

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 26

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 27

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 29

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 30

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 31

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 32

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 34

Page 21

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 35

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 36

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 37

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 39

Page 20

Page 21
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ISDA Master Agreement

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 40

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 42

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 43

Page 18

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 45

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 46
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Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 48

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 49

Page 18

Page 19
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Page 18
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Securities Note for Cell 55
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Securities Note for Cell 56
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Securities Note for Cell 59

Page 18

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 61
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Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 62

Page 18
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Securities Note for Cell 64
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Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 65

Page 18

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 68

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 69

Page 18

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 70

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 71

Page 18

Page 18

Securities Note for Cell 73
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Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 74

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 76
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Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 77
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Securities Note for Cell 81

Page 21
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ISDA Master Agreement

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 83

Page 21

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 84

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 85

Page 18

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 86

Page 23

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 87

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 88

Page 22

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 89

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 90

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 91

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 92

Page 22
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Page 24
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Page 23
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ISDA Master Agreement

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 112

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 113

Page 24

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 114

Page 21

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 115

Page 21
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Page 21
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Page 21
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Page 25
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Page 24
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Page 22

Page 23
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Securities Note for Cell 138
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0030144-0000332 ICM:16026328.16

91

ISDA Master Agreement

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 141

Page 23

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 142

Page 22

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 143

Page 24
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Securities Note for Cell 144

Page 22
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ISDA Master Agreement

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 170

Page 25

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 171

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 172

Page 25
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Securities Note for Cell 173
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ISDA Master Agreement

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 199
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ISDA Master Agreement

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 228

Page 31

Page 31

Securities Note for Cell 229

Page 32

Page 32

Securities Note for Cell 230
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Securities Note for Cell 231
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Securities Note for Cell 232
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7.12

The Series Deeds entered into by the Company which, in respect of each of Cells 127 to 239
that remain outstanding, constitute, inter alios, the ISDA Master Agreement, the Deed of
Guarantee, the Charge Agreement and the Determination Agency Agreement in respect of
such Cells.

7.13

The Series Deeds entered into by the Company in respect of each of Cells 127 to 239 that
remain outstanding (summaries of which are set out in the Relevant Securities Note relating
to each such Cell on the pages specified in the table below) are incorporated by reference in
this document and are available for inspection at the address referred to in Part J of this
Registration Document.

7.14

The Company has entered into separate determination agency agreements (the
Determination Agency Agreements) for Cells 127 to 239 that remain outstanding
(summaries of which are set out in the Relevant Securities Note relating to each such Cell on
the pages specified in the table below and are incorporated by reference into this document),
under which the Company has appointed Abbey National Treasury Services plc to undertake
a calculation agency role in connection with the Shares and to make the determinations
specified in this document to be made by the Determination Agent. Each Determination
Agency Agreement contains certain warranties and indemnities, which are of a customary
nature and given by the Company in favour of Abbey National Treasury Services plc.

Series Deed

Determination Agency
Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 127

Page 24

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 128

Page 22
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Page 24

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 130

Page 23

Page 23
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Series Deed

Determination Agency
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Series Deed

Determination Agency
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Securities Note for Cell 160

Page 25

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 161

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 162

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 163

Page 25

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 164

Page 24

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 165

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 166

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 167

Page 27

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 168

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 169

Page 25

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 170

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 171

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 172

Page 27

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 173

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 174

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 175

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 176

Page 27

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 177

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 178

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 179

Page 27

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 180

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 181

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 182

Page 27

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 183

Page 26

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 184

Page 27

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 185

Page 27

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 186

Page 27

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 187

Page 27

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 188

Page 26

Page 26

0030144-0000332 ICM:16026328.16

97

Series Deed
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Securities Note for Cell 189
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7.15

As at the date of this document and save as disclosed in this paragraph, in Part B of this
document or in the Relevant Securities Note, there are no other contracts (not being contracts
entered into in the ordinary course of business) which have been entered into by the Company
at any time which contain any provision under which the Company has any obligation or
entitlement which is or may be material to the Company.

7.16

Other than the transactions set out in Paragraphs 7.1, 7.4 and 7.5 of Part D of this Registration
Document, the Company has not entered into any related party transactions (as defined in
IAS24).
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8.

Litigation
There have been no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such
proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Company is aware) during the
previous 12 months, which may have, or have had, in the recent past, a significant effect on
the Company's financial position or profitability.

9.

General

9.1

The Company is authorised as an Authorised Closed-Ended Investment Scheme by the GFSC
under Section 8 of the Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1987, as
amended and the Authorised Closed-Ended Investment Schemes Rules 2008. The Company
is domiciled in Guernsey and its registered offices is Anson Place, Mill Court, La Charroterie,
St. Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 1EJ. The Company operates under the Companies Law and
ordinances and regulations made thereunder and has no employees.

9.2

The Admission of the Shares is being sponsored by Mourant Ozannes Securities Limited.
The Issue of each class of Shares is not underwritten.

9.3

Mourant Ozannes Securities Limited has given and not withdrawn its consent to the issue of
this document with the inclusion of its name and references to it in the form and context in
which they appear.

9.4

Ernst & Young LLP has given and not withdrawn its consent to the issue of this document
with the inclusion of its name and references to it in the form and context in which they
appear.

9.5

Santander ISA Managers Limited is or may be a promoter of the Company. No amount or
benefit has been paid or given by the Company to the promoter or any of its subsidiaries since
the incorporation of the Company and none is intended to be paid or given other than as
described in the sections headed "Fees and Expenses" in Part A of this document and in the
Relevant Securities Note (if any).

9.6

The amount of the Issue Price per Share in excess of its nominal value of 0.0001p represents a
premium.

9.7

Save in relation to each Offer for Subscription, Shares have not been marketed to, and are not
available in whole or in part to, the public in conjunction with each Issue.

9.8

The Shares will be issued in registered form and may be held either in inscribed form or in
certificated form.

9.9

In accordance with the Rules of the Channel Island Stock Exchange, the Company may not
change its principal investment objectives and policies as set out in this document for a
minimum period of three years from the date of its listing other than with the consent of a
majority of Shareholders.

10.

Availability of Registration Document and Material Contracts
Copies of this Registration Document and the material contracts in respect of the Company
can be obtained during normal business hours on any week day (Saturdays, Sundays and
public holidays excepted) from the date of this document until the close of the Offer for
Subscription from either of the following:
Mourant Ozannes Securities Limited
PO Box 186
1 Le Marchant Street
St. Peter Port
Guernsey
GY1 4HP
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Santander ISA Managers Limited
287 St. Vincent Street
Glasgow
G2 5NB
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Copies of this Registration Document will also be available on the website of the Company at
http://www.anson-group.com/GIPL/GIP1PCCL.html.
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PART E
INFORMATION ON SANTANDER GUARANTEE COMPANY
1.

Statutory Auditors
The Guarantor's auditors are Deloitte LLP of 2 New Street Square, London, EC4A 3BZ.
Deloitte LLP are members of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

2.

Information About The Guarantor

2.1

Santander Guarantee Company is an unlimited company with shares, incorporated and
registered in England and Wales on 7 February 1992 under the Companies Act 1985 with
registered number 2687070. The registered office of the Guarantor is 2 Triton Square,
Regent’s Place, London NW1 3AN, and the telephone number is 0870 607 6000.

2.2

On 4 March 2010, the Guarantor's name was changed from Abbey National Guarantee
Company to Santander Guarantee Company. On 20 December 2005 the Guarantor’s name
was changed from Homesave Company to Abbey National Guarantee Company. From
incorporation until 25 February 1992 the Guarantor was called Secretariat Services Company.

2.3

The Guarantor was established in February 1992 as part of the "Mortgage to Rent" scheme
put in place by Abbey National plc (now known as Santander UK plc). Under this scheme,
householders defaulting on their mortgage payments would be offered the chance (assuming
certain criteria were met) to sell their property to the Guarantor, and to become tenants in the
same property. Approximately 40 properties were acquired under this scheme by the
Guarantor. On 21 April 1993 the decision was taken to close the "Mortgage to Rent" scheme.
On 16 December 1993 the value of properties held by the Guarantor was approximately £2.8
million. On 13 December 1996 the Guarantor decided to dispose of these properties. The
disposal process was completed on 11 November 1998.

2.4

On 28 February 2006 the Guarantor entered into the Guarantee Facility Agreement (as
amended) with the Company. On 28 February 2006 the Guarantor entered into the
Conditional Share Subscription Agreement with Abbey National plc (now known as
Santander UK plc).

3.

Business Overview
From 31 December 2002 to 31 December 2005, the Guarantor was dormant. Save for the
activities described herein, from 1 January 2006, the Guarantor has not undertaken any
material activities.

4.

Organisational Structure

4.1

The Guarantor is a wholly owned direct subsidiary of Santander UK plc. Prior to 12
November 2004 the ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party of the Guarantor was
Abbey National plc (now known as Santander UK plc), a company incorporated in England
and Wales. As from 12 November 2004, the Guarantor’s ultimate parent undertaking and
controlling party has been Banco Santander, a bank incorporated in Spain. Banco Santander
is the parent undertaking of the largest group of undertakings for which group accounts are
drawn up and of which the Guarantor is a member. Santander UK plc is the parent
undertaking of the smallest group of undertakings for which group accounts are drawn up and
of which the Guarantor is a member.
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4.2

The Guarantor has no subsidiaries.

5.

Capital Resources

5.1

The Guarantor entered into the Conditional Share Subscription Agreement on or around 28
February 2006 which is the Guarantor's principal capital resource (both short and long term).
Under this agreement the Guarantor may require Santander UK plc to subscribe for additional
shares in the Guarantor if the Guarantor is obliged to make a payment under any Cell
Guarantee and it has insufficient assets to satisfy such Cell Guarantee payment in full. A
summary of the Conditional Share Subscription Agreement is set out at paragraph 17 below.

5.2

In addition, the Guarantor has a deposit with Santander UK plc of £3,826,175.89 as at 30 June
2012.

5.3

The Guarantor does not have any bank borrowings nor does it currently intend to obtain any
bank borrowings.

6.

Directors and Company Secretary

6.1

Abbey National Secretariat Services Limited was appointed as company secretary of the
Guarantor on 1 July 1998 and resigned on 30 September 2008. On 30 September 2008,
Abbey National Nominees Limited was appointed as company secretary and resigned on 28
August 2012. On 28 August 2012 Santander Secretariat Services Limited was appointed as
company secretary.

6.2

The current directors of the Guarantor are:
Name

Date of appointment

Mark Jackson

26 November 2005

Richard Truelove

26 November 2005

Luis De Sousa

29 May 2009

The business address of the directors is 2 Triton Square, Regent’s Place, London NW1 3AN.
6.3

Mark Jackson joined the Santander Group in 1999 and is Head of Organisation & Change
Management for Santander Global Manufacturing UK. Previously at Santander Mark worked
in a number of roles in Finance and UK Corporate Banking. Prior to joining the Santander
Group, he spent twelve years working in a variety of finance and product control roles at
UBS, Lehman Brothers and Nomura International.

6.4

Richard Truelove joined Santander at the beginning of 2002 and is presently the Chief
Credit Officer, Corporate and Commercial Risk for Santander UK plc. His role focuses
primarily on the development of UK Corporate Banking within the UK, with a particular
focus on Real Estate, Corporates, Education and Social Housing. He also has risk
responsibility for certain other Santander Group businesses such as Business Banking and
Project Finance. Richard Truelove has worked in banking for 36 years and prior to joining
the Santander Group has held a variety of roles, including an initial ten years with HSBC and
his last role as Head of Credit at the London Branch of Bayerische Landesbank. Richard
Truelove has specialised in Credit since 1985 and been involved in workouts at all levels
since 1990. Richard Truelove is an Associate of the Chartered Institute of Bankers.

6.5

Luis De Sousa joined the Santander group of companies in 2006 and was appointed CEO and
board director of Abbey National Treasury Services plc in May 2009. Luis is also Head of
the Santander Global Banking & Markets UK division, branch director of Banco Santander
(London) and a board director of Santander Financial Products plc in Dublin. His previous
role was as Treasurer for Banco Santander in Portugal, based in Lisbon. Before that, Luis
worked at Citibank in various roles based in both Lisbon and Madrid.
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6.6

In addition to their directorships of the Guarantor the directors of the Guarantor hold
directorships in other companies and are members of various partnerships. Details of those
directorships (apart from the Guarantor) and partnerships as well as details of any
directorships and partnerships held by the Guarantor’s directors during the five years
preceding the date of this document are set out below:
Mark Jackson
Current directorships and partnerships
Abbey National (America) Holdings
Limited
Abbey National (Holdings) Limited
Abbey National American Investments
Limited
Abbey National Business Office
Equipment Leasing Limited
Abbey National Financial Investments 3
B.V.
Abbey National Financial Investments 4
B.V.
Abbey National North America Holdings
Limited
Abbey National North America LLC
Abbey National Treasury Investments
Abbey National Treasury Services
Investments Limited
Abbey National Treasury Services
Overseas Holdings
Cater Allen Holdings Limited
Cater Allen Lloyd's Holdings Limited
Cater Allen Syndicate Management
Limited
Insurance Funding Solutions Limited
Sheppards Moneybrokers Limited

Past directorships and partnerships
Abbey National Business Asset Leasing
Limited
Abbey National Business Cashflow Finance
Limited
Abbey National Business Equipment Leasing
Limited
Abbey National Business Sales Aid Leasing
Limited
Abbey National Business Vendor Plan Leasing
Limited
Abbey National Legacy Holdings Limited
Abbey National Legacy Leasing Limited
Abbey National North America Corporation
Abbey National September Leasing (3)
Limited
.
Abbey National Treasury Services (Australia)
Holdings Limited
Abbey National Treasury Services (Transport
Holdings) Limited
Cater Allen International Limited
IEM (Holland) Aircraft Lease B.V.
IEM 757 Leasing I B.V.
IEM Airfinance B.V.
IEM Lease Aircraft B.V.
Porterbrook Leasing Asset Company Limited
Porterbrook Leasing Company Limited
Porterbrook Maintenance Limited
Porterbrook March Leasing (4) Limited
Santander Secretariat Services Limited
(formerly Abbey National Legacy Limited)

Richard Truelove
Current directorships and partnerships
A N (123) plc
Abbey National American Investments
Limited
Abbey National Beta Investments Limited
Abbey National InvestmentsAbbey
National Legacy Holdings Limited
Abbey National Legacy Leasing Limited
Abbey National Legacy Limited
Abbey National Property Investments
Abbey National Treasury Investments
Abbey National Treasury Services
(Transport Holdings) Limited
Abbey National Treasury Services
Investments Limited
Abbey National Treasury Services
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Past directorships and partnerships
Abbey National Investments Holdings Limited
(formerly Santander Limited)
Abbey National September Leasing (3)
Limited
IEM (Holland) Aircraft Lease B.V.
IEM 757 Leasing I B.V.
IEM Airfinance B.V.
IEM Lease Aircraft B.V.
Santander UK Investments

Overseas Holdings
Abbey National UK Investments

Luis De Sousa
Current directorships and partnerships
Abbey National Financial Investments 3
B.V.
Abbey National Financial Investments 4
B.V.
Abbey National Treasury Services plc
Cater Allen International Limited
Santander Financial Products plc
6.7

Past directorships and partnerships
Sagres STC, SA
Abbey National Sterling Capital plc

As at the date of this document, none of the directors of the Guarantor:
6.7.1

has any convictions in relation to fraudulent offences for at least the previous five
years;

6.7.2

has been bankrupt or been a director of any company or been a member of the
administrative, management or supervisory body of a company or a senior manager
of a company at the time of any receivership or compulsory or creditors' voluntary
liquidation for at least the previous five years; or

6.7.3

has been subject to any official public incrimination or sanction of him by any
statutory or regulatory authority (including designated professional bodies) nor has he
been disqualified by a court from acting as a director of a company or from acting as
a member of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies of a company or
from acting in the management or conduct of the affairs of any company, for at least
the previous five years.

6.8

There are no potential conflicts of interests between any duties owed by the directors to the
Guarantor, and the directors’ private interests and or other duties. Luis De Sousa is CEO of
Abbey National Treasury Services plc. Abbey National Treasury Services plc arranges the
Plan Investments for each Cell of the Company.

6.9

None of the directors of the Guarantor received any remuneration or benefits in kind for their
services to the Guarantor for the financial year ended 31 December 2011.

7.

Board Practices

7.1

Mark Jackson was appointed as a director of the Guarantor on 26 November 2005. Richard
Truelove was appointed as a director of the Guarantor on 26 November 2005. Luis De Sousa
was appointed as a director of the Guarantor on 29 May 2009. None of the directors of the
Guarantor has a set term of office. The Guarantor’s directors’ appointments are subject to the
Guarantor’s articles of association.

7.2

No director of the Guarantor has a service contract with the Guarantor.

7.3

The Guarantor does not have an audit or remuneration committee.

7.4

The Guarantor is not subject to any corporate governance regime.

8.

Employees

8.1

The Guarantor has no employees.

8.2

None of the directors owns any share or options over shares in the Guarantor.

0030144-0000332 ICM:16026328.16

105

9.

Related Party Transactions
Save for the deposit placed with Santander UK plc as set out at paragraph 17.8 of this Part E,
the Guarantor has not entered into any Related Party Transactions.

10.

Major Shareholders
The Guarantor is a wholly owned subsidiary of Santander UK plc. Santander UK plc owns
2,806,749 allotted ordinary shares of £1 each in the Guarantor, amounting to approximately
100 per cent. of the allotted share capital of the Guarantor. The Guarantor is an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of Banco Santander. Banco Santander is able (subject to any
regulatory constraints or considerations) to control the Guarantor by procuring that Santander
UK plc's votes at general meetings of the Guarantor are exercised in a particular way.

11.

Historical Financial Information
Financial information for the years ended 31 December 2009, 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2011 and the six-month period ending 30 June 2012.
The audited consolidated annual financial statements of the Guarantor for (i) the years ended
31 December 2009 (as set out in the Securities Note for Cell 165 dated 28 May 2010), 31
December 2010 (as set out in the Supplementary Prospectus in respect of Cells 209 to 212
dated 24 August 2011) and 31 December 2011 (as set out in the Supplementary Prospectus
for Cells 224 and 227 dated 2 April 2012) and (ii) the unaudited interim financial statements
as of the six-month period ended 30 June 2012 (as set out in the Securities Note for Cell 234
dated 3 September 2012) are hereby incorporated by reference and are available for
inspection at the address referred to in Part J of this Registration Document and include, on
the pages specified in the table below, the following information:
Nature of
Information

Year Ended
31 December
2009
Page

Year ended
31 December
2010
Page

Year ended
31 December
2011
Page

Period ending
30 June 2012
Page

Balance Sheet

5

5

5

3

Income
Statement

4

4

4

2

Cashflow
Statement

4

4

4

2

6-11

6

6

4

3

3

3

N/A

Accounting
Policies and
Explanatory
Notes
Statement that
the accounts have
been audited and
auditors' opinion

Copies of the annual and interim financial statements of the Guarantor will be available for
inspection at the address specified in Part J of this Registration Document.
12.

Dividend Policy
The Guarantor has paid no dividends since 31 December 2001.
Guarantor will pay any dividends at their discretion.
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The directors of the

13.

Legal and Arbitration Proceedings
Other than as disclosed in Part G paragraph 6.1, there have been no governmental, legal or
arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of
which the Guarantor is aware) during the previous 12 months, which may have, or have had
in the recent past, a significant effect on the Guarantor's or its group's financial position or
profitability.

14.

No Significant Change
There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the Guarantor
which has occurred since 30 June 2012, being the date to which the most recent interim
financial information was prepared.

15.

Share Capital
The authorised share capital of the Guarantor was increased on 20 December 2005 from
£60,000,000 comprising 60,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each to £500,000,000 comprising
500,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each. 2,806,750 ordinary shares of £1 each have been
called up, allotted and fully paid. There has been no change in the authorised and issued
share capital of the Guarantor since 20 December 2005.

16.

Memorandum and Articles of Association
The memorandum of the Guarantor provides, inter alia, that the Guarantor may carry on any
trade or other business whatever which can in the opinion of its Directors be advantageously
or conveniently carried on in connection with or ancillary to any of the businesses of the
company. The objects of the Guarantor are set out in full in clause 3 of its memorandum.
The articles of association of the Guarantor contain provisions, inter alia, (or in the absence
of a specific provision within the articles of association, the position under law is) as follows:

16.1

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the shares
There is only one class of shares in the Guarantor.
16.1.1 Voting rights
At a general meeting, but subject to any rights or restrictions attached to any shares,
on a show of hands every member of the Guarantor who (being an individual) is
present in person or (being a corporation) is present by a duly authorised
representative and every proxy for any member of the Guarantor (regardless of the
number or the holdings of the member of the Guarantor for whom he is a proxy) shall
have one vote, and on a poll every member who is present in person or by proxy shall
have one vote for every share of which he is the holder.
16.1.2 Dividends
Subject to the Companies Act 2006, the Guarantor may, by ordinary resolution,
declare dividends in accordance with the respective rights of the members, but no
dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the directors. Subject to the
Companies Act 2006, the directors may pay interim dividends as appear to them to be
justified by the profits of the Guarantor available for distribution. Except as
otherwise provided by the Guarantor's articles of association or the rights attached to
the shares, all dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid up
on the shares on which the dividend is paid and all dividends shall be apportioned and
paid proportionately to the amounts paid up on the shares during any portion or
portions of the period in respect of which the dividend is paid. Any dividend which
has remained unclaimed for 12 years from the date when it became due for payment
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shall, if the directors so resolve, be forfeited and cease to remain owing by the
Guarantor.
A general meeting declaring a dividend may, upon the recommendation of the
directors, direct that it is satisfied wholly or partly by the distribution of assets.
Where any difficulty arises in regard to the distribution, the directors may settle the
same as they think fit and in particular may issue fractional certificates and fix the
value for distribution of any assets, and may determine that cash shall be paid to any
member upon the basis of that value in order to adjust the rights of members, and may
vest any assets in trustees.
16.1.3 Distribution of assets on a winding up
Subject to the Companies Act 2006, if the Guarantor is wound up, the liquidator may,
with the sanction of an extraordinary resolution and any other sanction required by
law, divide among the members in kind the whole or any part of the assets of the
Guarantor and, for that purpose, may value any assets and determine how such
division shall be carried out. With the like sanction the liquidator may vest the whole
or any part of the assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the members as
he may determine, but no member shall be compelled to accept any assets upon
which there is a liability.
16.2

Variation of rights
Subject to the Companies Act 2006, if at any time the share capital of the Guarantor is
divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to any class may be varied in such
manner (if any) as may be provided by those rights or, in the absence of such provisions, with
the consent in writing of the holders of three-quarters in nominal value of the issued shares of
that class (excluding treasury shares) or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a
separate meeting of the holders of the shares of that class, but not otherwise. To every such
separate meeting, the provisions of the articles of association relating to general meetings
shall apply except that the necessary quorum at any such meeting shall be two persons
together holding or representing by proxy at least one third in nominal value of the issued
share capital of the class in question. At an adjourned meeting, one person holding shares of
the class in question or his proxy is a quorum.
The rights attached to any shares shall, unless otherwise expressly provided by the rights
attached to any class of shares, be deemed not to be varied by the purchase by the Guarantor
of any of its shares.

16.3

Calling of general meetings
An annual general meeting and an extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of a
special resolution or a resolution appointing a person as a director shall be called by providing
at least twenty-one clear days notice to all the members entitled to attend and vote thereat.
All other extraordinary general meetings shall be called by providing at least seven clear days'
notice but a general meeting may be called by shorter notice if it is so agreed:
(a)

in the case of an annual general meeting, by all the members entitled to attend and
vote thereat; and

(b)

in the case of any other meeting, by a majority in number of the members having a
right to attend and vote, being a majority together holding not less than ninety-five
per cent in nominal value of the shares giving that right.

The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the general nature of the
business to be transacted and, in the case of an annual general meeting, shall specify the
meeting as such.
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16.4

Notices
Any notice or other document may be served on or delivered to any member by the Guarantor
either personally, or by post addressed to the member's registered address, by fax, telex, or by
electronic mail or by any other means authorised in writing by the member concerned. In the
case of joint holders of a share, service or delivery of any notice or other document on or to
one of the joint holders shall for all purposes be deemed a sufficient service on or delivery to
all the joint holders.

16.5

Alteration of capital
The Guarantor may, by special resolution, increase its share capital, consolidate and divide all
or any of its share capital into shares of a larger amount, subdivide its shares into shares of a
smaller amount, cancel any shares which at the date of the passing of the resolution have not
been taken or agreed to be taken by any person, and reduce its share capital and any share
premium account in any way.

16.6

Issue of shares
Subject to the Companies Act 2006 and without prejudice to any rights attached to any
existing shares, any share may be issued with such rights or restrictions as the Guarantor may
by ordinary resolution determine (or, if the Guarantor has not so determined, as the directors
may determine).

16.7

Transfer of shares
Shares of the Guarantor in certificated form may be transferred by an instrument of transfer
which may be in any usual form or in any other form of which the directors approve. The
instrument of transfer must be executed by or on behalf of the transferor but need not be
executed by the transferee, even if the share is not fully paid. Shares in uncertificated form
may be transferred in accordance with the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001. The
directors may, in their absolute discretion and without giving any reason for so doing, decline
to register any transfer of any share, whether or not it is a fully paid share, and they shall
within 2 months after the date on which the transfer was lodged, send to the transferee notice
of the refusal. Subject to the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, the registration of
transfers of shares or of any class of shares may be suspended at such times and for such
periods (not exceeding 30 days in any year) as the directors may determine.

16.8

Disclosures of interests
As a private unlimited company, there is no obligation on members to disclose their
shareholding interest.

16.9

Directors
Unless otherwise determined by the Guarantor by ordinary resolution, the number of directors
(other than alternate directors) shall not be subject to any maximum but shall not be less than
two.
The directors need not be members of the Guarantor.
The directors shall be entitled to such remuneration as the Guarantor may by ordinary
resolution determine.
The directors may be paid all travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by them
in connection with their attendance at meetings of directors or committees of directors or
general meetings or separate meetings of the holders of any class of shares or of debentures of
the Guarantor or otherwise in connection with the discharge of their duties.
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The directors of the Guarantor may delegate any of their powers (with power to sub-delegate)
to committees consisting of such person or persons (whether directors of the Guarantor or
not) as they think fit.
Any member of the Guarantor, or any members of the Guarantor holding in aggregate, a
majority in nominal value of such of the issued share capital for the time being of the
Guarantor as carries the right of attending and voting at general meetings of the Guarantor
may by memorandum in writing signed by or on behalf of him or them and delivered to the
Guarantor’s registered office or tendered at a meeting of the directors of the Guarantor or at a
general meeting of the Guarantor at any time and from time to time, appoint any person to be
a director of the Guarantor (either to fill a vacancy or as an additional director) or remove any
director of the Guarantor from office (no matter how he was appointed).
Without prejudice to anything in the Guarantor’s articles of association any person may be
appointed a director of the Guarantor by the directors of the Guarantor, either to fill a vacancy
or as an additional director.
There is no obligation on the directors to retire by rotation.
The office of director shall be vacated if:
16.9.1 the director resigns his office by written notice;
16.9.2 the director absents himself without permission of the directors from meetings of the
board for a consecutive period of six months and the board resolves that his office
shall be vacated;
16.9.3 the director is or may be suffering from mental disorder and either
16.9.4 the director is admitted to hospital in pursuance of an application for treatment under
the Mental Health Act 1983 (or, in Scotland the Mental Health (Scotland) Act 1960);
or
16.9.5 an order is made by a court having jurisdiction in matters concerning mental disorder
for his detention or for the appointment of a receiver, curator bonis or other person to
exercise powers with respect to his property or affairs;
16.9.6 the director is prohibited by law from being a director;
16.9.7 the director becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his
creditors generally; or
16.9.8 the director is removed from office pursuant to the articles of association of the
Guarantor.
No director of the Guarantor shall be required to retire or vacate his office, and no person
shall be ineligible for appointment as a director of the Guarantor by reason of his having
attained any particular age.
No shareholding qualification for directors shall be required.
A director of the Guarantor who to his knowledge is in any way, whether directly or indirectly
interested in a contract or proposed contract with the Guarantor shall declare the nature of his
interest at a meeting of the directors of the Guarantor in accordance with the Companies Act
2006. Subject where applicable to such disclosure, a director of the Guarantor shall be
entitled to vote in respect of any contract or proposed contract in which he is interested and if
he shall do so his vote shall be counted and he shall be taken into account ascertaining
whether a quorum is present.
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16.10

Gratuities and pensions
The directors may provide benefits, whether by the payment of gratuities or pensions or by
insurance or otherwise, for any director or former director who holds or has held any
executive office or employment with the Guarantor or with any body corporate which is or
has been a subsidiary of the Guarantor or a predecessor in business of the Guarantor or of any
such subsidiary and may contribute to any fund and pay premiums for the purchase or the
provision of any such benefit.

17.

Material Contracts
The following is a summary of: (i) each material contract, other than contracts entered into in
the ordinary course of business, to which the Guarantor is a party, for the two years
immediately preceding publication of this Registration Document; and (ii) any other contract,
not being a contract entered into in the ordinary course of business, entered into by the
Guarantor which contains any provision under which the Guarantor has any obligation or
entitlement which is material to the Guarantor as at the date of this Registration Document:

17.1

The Guarantor has entered into the Guarantee Facility Agreement dated on or about 28
February 2006 (as amended) with the Company, a summary of which is set out in paragraph
7.7 of Part D of this document.

17.2

The Guarantor has entered into the Guarantee Claims Deed dated 28 February 2006 (as
amended) with the Company and the Guarantee Claims Agent, a summary of which is set out
in paragraph 7.8 of Part D of this document.

17.3

The Conditional Share Subscription Agreement dated on or around 28 February 2006
between the Guarantor and Abbey National plc (now known as Santander UK plc). Under
this deed, Santander Guarantee Company may require Santander UK plc to subscribe for
additional shares in the Guarantor if the Guarantor is obliged to make a payment under any
Cell Guarantee and it has insufficient assets to satisfy such Cell Guarantee payment in full.
Santander Guarantee Company will not pay Santander UK plc a fee under this agreement.

17.4

The Deed of Guarantee dated 1 March 2006 in respect of Cell 8 entered into by Santander
Guarantee Company. The Deed of Guarantee sets out the terms of the Cell Guarantee for the
benefit of the holders of Shares in Cell 8.
The Guarantee Claims Agent can make a demand under the Cell Guarantee applicable to the
Cell 8 Shares, if the Company has insufficient assets or resources in Cell 8 to allow payment
of the Guaranteed Return for Cell 8 on or around the Maturity Date for Cell 8 or if the
Company otherwise fails to make payment of the Guaranteed Return to its shareholders.
However, the liability of the Guarantor to make payment under the Cell Guarantee applicable
to the Cell 8 Shares will be reduced:
17.4.1 to the extent that the value of the assets of Cell 8 on the Maturity Date for Cell 8 is
less than the Guaranteed Return for Cell 8 as a result of the imposition or proper
payment of any withholding tax which is levied or imposed by any agency having
jurisdiction in the United Kingdom, or the imposition of any tax, withholding or other
charge in Guernsey, on any payments under any Plan Investment of Cell 8;
17.4.2 by the amount (if any) of any withholding tax which is levied or imposed by any tax
authority on payments by the Company to holders of Shares in Cell 8 in connection
with the redemption of such Shares on their Maturity Date; and
17.4.3 by the extent to which it is unlawful for the Guarantor to remain under any (or any
further) obligations under the Cell Guarantee.
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In addition, if any payment required to be made by the Guarantor under the Cell Guarantee
for Cell 8 is subject to any deduction or withholding in respect of tax, the Guarantor will be
entitled to deduct the amount of such deduction or withholding from the relevant payment.
The Guarantor will not be under any obligation to make any additional payment under a Cell
Guarantee in respect of such deduction or withholding.
17.5

The Guarantor has entered into a Charge Agreement dated 28 February 2006 in respect of
Cell 8 with the Company, a summary of which is set out in paragraph 7.9 of Part D of this
Document.

17.6

The Deeds of Guarantee and Charge Agreements entered into by the Guarantor in respect of
Cells 18 to 239 that remain outstanding (summaries of which are set out in the Relevant
Securities Note relating to each such Cell on the pages specified in the table below) are
incorporated by reference in this document and available for inspection at the address referred
to in Part J of this Registration Document.

17.7

The Series Deeds entered into by the Guarantor, in respect of each of Cells 127 to 239 that
remain outstanding, constitute, among other matters, the Deed of Guarantee and the Charge
Agreement in respect of such Cells.

Deed of Guarantee

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 18

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 19

Page 19

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 21

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 22

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 24

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 25

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 26

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 27

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 29

Page 20

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 30

Page 19

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 31

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 32

Page 21

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 34

Page 23

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 35

Page 21

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 36

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 37

Page 21

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 39

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 40

Page 21

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 42

Page 22

Page 21
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Deed of Guarantee

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 43

Page 20

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 45

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 46

Page 20

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 48

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 49

Page 20

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 51

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 52

Page 20

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 55

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 56

Page 20

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 58

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 59

Page 20

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 61

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 62

Page 20

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 64

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 65

Page 20

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 68

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 69

Page 20

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 70

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 71

Page 20

Page 18

Securities Note for Cell 73

Page 24

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 74

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 76

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 77

Page 20

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 79

Page 23

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 80

Page 21

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 81

Page 23

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 82

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 83

Page 23

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 84

Page 21

Page 20
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Deed of Guarantee

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 85

Page 20

Page 19

Securities Note for Cell 86

Page 25

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 87

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 88

Page 24

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 89

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 90

Page 21

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 91

Page 21

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 92

Page 24

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 93

Page 21

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 94

Page 21

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 95

Page 25

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 96

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 97

Page 25

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 98

Page 21

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 99

Page 21

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 100

Page 25

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 101

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 102

Page 21

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 103

Page 25

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 104

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 105

Page 26

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 106

Page 23

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 107

Page 23

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 108

Page 25

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 109

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 110

Page 21

Page 20

Securities Note for Cell 111

Page 26

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 112

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 113

Page 26

Page 24
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Deed of Guarantee

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 114

Page 23

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 115

Page 23

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 116

Page 25

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 117

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 118

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 119

Page 26

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 120

Page 23

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 121

Page 26

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 122

Page 23

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 123

Page 23

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 124

Page 25

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 125

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 126

Page 22

Page 21

Securities Note for Cell 127

Page 26

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 128

Page 24

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 129

Page 26

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 130

Page 25

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 131

Page 25

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 132

Page 24

Page 22

Securities Note for Cell 133

Page 24

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 134

Page 26

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 135

Page 25

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 136

Page 27

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 137

Page 26

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 138

Page 26

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 139

Page 25

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 140

Page 25

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 141

Page 26

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 142

Page 25

Page 23
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Deed of Guarantee

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 143

Page 31

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 144

Page 30

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 145

Page 32

Page 32

Securities Note for Cell 146

Page 30

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 147

Page 31

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 148

Page 30

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 149

Page 30

Page 23

Securities Note for Cell 150

Page 66

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 151

Page 33

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 152

Page 32

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 153

Page 31

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 154

Page 32

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 155

Page 35

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 156

Page 35

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 157

Page 34

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 158

Page 33

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 159

Page 34

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 160

Page 34

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 161

Page 35

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 162

Page 35

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 163

Page 34

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 164

Page 36

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 165

Page 36

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 166

Page 37

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 167

Page 36

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 168

Page 35

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 169

Page 36

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 170

Page 41

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 171

Page 42

Page 26
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Deed of Guarantee

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 172

Page 41

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 173

Page 41

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 174

Page 42

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 175

Page 42

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 176

Page 39

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 177

Page 38

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 178

Page 40

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 179

Page 39

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 180

Page 38

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 181

Page 40

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 182

Page 39

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 183

Page 39

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 184

Page 40

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 185

Page 39

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 186

Page 40

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 187

Page 39

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 188

Page 41

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 189

Page 40

Page 28

Securities Note for Cell 190

Page 98

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 191

Page 38

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 192

Page 37

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 193

Page 40

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 194

Page 40

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 195

Page 38

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 196

Page 40

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 197

Page 40

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 198

Page 38

Page 26

Securities Note for Cell 199

Page 76

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 200

Page 26

Page 23
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Deed of Guarantee

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 201

Page 31

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 202

Page 30

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 203

Page 31

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 204

Page 30

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 205

Page 32

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 206

Page 31

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 207

Page 32

Page 25

Securities Note for Cell 208

Page 31

Page 24

Securities Note for Cell 209

Page 35

Page 28

Securities Note for Cell 210

Page 34

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 211

Page 35

Page 28

Securities Note for Cell 212

Page 34

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 213

Page 35

Page 28

Securities Note for Cell 214

Page 34

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 215

Page 36

Page 28

Securities Note for Cell 216

Page 34

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 217

Page 34

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 218

Page 36

Page 28

Securities Note for Cell 219

Page 35

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 220

Page 36

Page 28

Securities Note for Cell 221

Page 34

Page 27

Securities Note for Cell 222

Page 31

Page 29

Securities Note for Cell 223

Page 30

Page 28

Securities Note for Cell 224

Page 35

Page 30

Securities Note for Cell 225

Page 34

Page 29

Securities Note for Cell 226

Page 89

Page 30

Securities Note for Cell 227

Page 34

Page 28

Securities Note for Cell 228

Page 38

Page 31

Securities Note for Cell 229

Page 40

Page 32
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Deed of Guarantee

Charge Agreement

Securities Note for Cell 230

Page 40

Page 32

Securities Note for Cell 231

Page 40

Page 32

Securities Note for Cell 232

Page 40

Page 32

Securities Note for Cell 233

Page 37

Page 29

Securities Note for Cell 234

Page 115

Page 31

Securities Note for Cell 235

Page 36

Page 30

Securities Note for Cell 236

Page 37

Page 31

Securities Note for Cell 237

Page 36

Page 30

Securities Note for Cell 238

Page 39

Page 31

Securities Note for Cell 239

Page 38

Page 30

17.8

The deposit agreement dated 28 February 2006 entered into by the Guarantor and Abbey
National plc (now known as Santander UK plc) (the Deposit Agreement) under which
Santander UK plc acknowledges a deposit of £3,355,183 made by the Guarantor with it.
Under the terms of the Deposit Agreement, Santander UK plc agrees to pay to the Guarantor
interest quarterly on the amount of the deposit at a rate equal to the prevailing London InterBank Offered Rate. The deposit will mature on 31 December 2016. The Guarantor may
demand repayment of the deposit prior to 31 December 2016 if Santander UK plc fails to pay
interest on the deposit when due or if certain insolvency related events occur in relation to
Santander UK plc.

17.9

As at the date of this document and save as disclosed in this paragraph, there are no other
contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business) which have
been entered into by the Guarantor at any time which contain any provision under which the
Guarantor has any obligation or entitlement which is or may be material to the Guarantor.
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PART F
INFORMATION ON SANTANDER UK PLC
1.

Statutory Auditors
The auditors of Santander UK plc are Deloitte LLP of 2 New Street Square, London, EC4A
3BZ. Deloitte LLP are members of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.

2.

Information about Santander UK plc

2.1

Santander UK plc (formerly Abbey National plc) was formed as a building society in 1944
and is now a public limited liability company incorporated and registered in England and
Wales under the Companies Act 1985. Santander UK plc was incorporated on 12 September
1988 with registered number 2294747.

2.2

The registered office of Santander UK plc is 2 Triton Square, Regent's Place, London, NW1
3AN. The telephone number of Santander UK plc is +44 (0) 870 607 6000.
On 12 November 2004, Banco Santander completed the acquisition of the entire issued
ordinary share capital of Abbey National plc (now called Santander UK plc), implemented by
means of a scheme of arrangement under Section 425 of the Companies Act 1985. Banco
Santander is one of the largest banks by market capitalisation. Founded in 1857, Banco
Santander had more than 100 million customers, and over 14,000 branches as at 30 June
2011.

3.

Corporate Purpose and Strategy
Santander UK plc's purpose is to maximise value for its shareholders Banco Santander and its
subsidiary company, Santusa Holding, S.L. by focusing on offering a diversified customercentred, full commercial banking service in the United Kingdom. A key feature of Santander
UK plc's strategy is to develop and build deeper customer relationships through increased
current account primacy and customer segmentation. With the continuing support of Banco
Santander, Santander UK plc aims to be the best commercial bank in the United Kingdom for
its customers, its shareholders and its people.

4.

Organisational Structure
Santander UK plc's management structure consists of a number of business and support
divisions. The business divisions consist of:
Retail Banking – offers residential mortgages, savings and banking and other personal
financial products to customers throughout the UK, as well as private banking and other
specialist services.
Corporate Banking – offers banking services principally to small and medium-sized (SME)
UK Companies and also to mid and large corporate clients. It also contains certain legacy
portfolios in run-off.
Markets – provides financial markets sales, trading and risk management services.
Corporate Centre – (formerly known as Group Infrastructure) consists of Asset and Liability
Management (ALM), which is responsible for Santander Group's capital, and certain non-core
and legacy portfolios being run-down and/or managed for value.
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The support divisions consist of:
Retail Products and Marketing - responsible for integrating and gaining the maximum
value from Santander UK plc's products, marketing and brand communications to serve
Santander UK plc's customers better.
Human Resources - responsible for delivering the human resources strategy and personnel
support.
Manufacturing - responsible for all information technology, cost control and operations
activity, including service centres.
Risk - responsible for ensuring that the Board of Directors and senior management team of
Santander UK plc are provided with an appropriate risk policy and control framework, and to
report any material risk issues to the Board Risk Committee and the Board of Directors.
Internal Audit - responsible for supervising the compliance, effectiveness and efficiency of
Santander UK plc's internal control systems to manage its risks.
In addition there are a number of corporate units including Financial Management
Information, Financial Reporting and Tax, Cost Management and Control, Legal and
Secretariat, Strategy and Corporate Development, Regulatory Affairs and Pensions, Service
Quality, Communications and Santander Universities in the UK.
5.

Trend Information

5.1

Planned Acquisitions of RBS and NatWest branches by Santander UK plc
On 17 October 2012, Santander UK plc and Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc ("RBS")
formally confirmed that the agreement to purchase Royal Bank of Scotland England and
Wales and NatWest Scotland branch based businesses (the "Businesses") terminated with
effect from 12 October 2012 in accordance with its terms. Both parties agreed that the
conditions to the transfer of the Businesses from RBS to Santander UK plc were incapable of
satisfaction by the agreed final deadline of end of February 2013 and that the agreement had
therefore terminated with effect from 12 October 2012.

6.

Directors of Santander UK plc

6.1

The following table sets forth the directors of Santander UK plc.

Position

Name

Chairman

Lord Terence Burns

Deputy Chairman
and Non-Executive
Director

Juan Rodríguez Inciarte
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Other principal activities
Non-Executive Director of Banco
Santander, S.A.;
Chairman of Channel 4 Television
Corporation;
President of the Society of Business
Economists;
Member of House of Lords;
Chairman of the Royal Academy of
Music’s Governing Body;
Fellow of the London Business School;
Companion of the Institute of
Management; and
Non- Executive Member of the Office
of Budget Responsibility;
Chief Executive of Santander
Consumer Finance, S.A.;
Non- Executive Director of Banco

Position

Name

Other principal activities
Santander, S.A.;
Director of Banco Banif S. A.; and
Director of Vista Capital de Expansion
S.A.

Executive Director and
Chief Executive
Officer

Ana Botín

Executive Director of Banco Santander,
S.A.;
President of Ingeniería de Software
Bancario, S.L.;
Trustee of Marclino Botín Foundation;
Vice Chairperson of Empresa y
Crecimiento Foundation;
Member of Trilateral Commission;
Member of Conocimiento y Deserrollo
Foundation;
Member of the International Advisory
Board of the NYSE;
Member of the International Advisory
Board
of
the
Inter-American
Development Bank;
Trustee of the Mayor’s Fund for
London;
Member of the Empieza por Educar
Foundation;
Member of Advisory Board, Deusto
Business School;
Member of Advisory Board, INSEAD;
Member of Advisory Board,
Georgetown University;
Member of Advisory Board, Said
Business School; and
Member of the Board of Management
of the European Association for
Banking and Financial History e.V.

Executive Director and
Head of UK Banking

Stephen Pateman

Director of Abbey National Treasury
Services plc;
Director of Mitre Capital Partners
Limited;
Director of Alliance & Leicester plc;
Director of Liquidity Import Finance
Limited; and
Director of Liquidity Limited;

Executive Director and
Chief Risk Officer

Jose María Nus

Member of Banesto Foundation;
Member of Spanish Governmental
Observatory for Multi-nationals;and
Member of Catalan Economic Society.

Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer

Stephen Jones

None.

Non-Executive

Roy Brown

None.

0030144-0000332 ICM:16026328.16

122

Position
Directors
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Name

Other principal activities

José María Carballo

Chairman of La Unión Résinera
Española;
Chairman of Vista Desarrollo;
Director of Vista Capital Expansion
S.A. S.G.E.C.R.;
Santander Real State, S.A.;
Director of Docout S.A;
Director of Santander Banif
Inmobiliarios F.I.I.;
Director of Teleférico Pico del Teide
S.A.;and
Member of the Iberoamerican
Benevolent Society

Bruce Carnegie-Brown

Chairman of Aon UK Limited;
Senior Independent Director of Close
Brothers Group plc;
Non-Executive Director of Branton
Capital Limited;
Senior Independent Director of Catlin
Group Limited; and
Non-Executive Director of
Moneysupermarket.com Group plc

Antonio Escámez
Torres

Chairman of Fundación Banco
Santander;
Member of Banco Santander
International Advisory Board;
Non-Executive Chairman of Santander
Consumer Finance, S.A.;
Non-Executive Chairman of Openbank,
S.A.;
Non-Executive Chairman of Arena
Media Communications Espana, S.A.;
Deputy Chairman of Grupo
Konnectanet S.L.; and
Non-Executive Vice-Chairman of
Attijariwafa Bank.

José Maria Fuster

Chief Information Officer of Banco
Santander, S.A.;
Non-Executive Director of Banco
Español de Crédito, S.A. (“Banesto”);
Director of Santander Consumer
Holdings GmBH;
Director of Ingeniería de Software
Bancario, S.L.;
Director of Sistema 4B S.A.;
Director of Grupo Konnectanet S.L;
Director of Santander Consumer Bank
AG;
Director of Open Bank S.A.;
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Position

Name

Other principal activities
Director of Portal Universia S.A.; and
Director of Grupo Santander Holdings
USA, Inc.

Rosemary Thorne

Non-Executive Director of Smurfitt
Kappa Group plc; and
Director of Ellerton House (Bryston
Square) Management Company
Limited.

6.2

The business address of each of the directors of Santander UK plc is, 2 Triton Square,
Regent's Place, London NW1 3AN with telephone number +44 (0) 870 607 6000.

6.3

There are no potential conflicts of interest between the duties to Santander UK plc of the
persons listed under "Directors of Santander UK plc" above and their private interests and or
other duties.

7.

Major Shareholders
Banco Santander and its subsidiary company Santusa Holding, S.L. own the entire issued
ordinary share capital of Santander UK plc. Banco Santander can (subject to any regulatory
constraints or considerations) control Santander UK plc by exercising its votes in general
meetings.

8.

Financial Information
The following information is hereby incorporated by reference and available for inspection at
the address specified in Part J of this document:

8.1

the
(i)

audited consolidated annual financial statements of Santander UK plc for the
financial year ended 31 December 2009, on pages 99 to 188, and which include the
information specified in the tables below;

(ii)

the audited information in the Directors' Report on page 92, except the paragraph
entitled "Bank Payroll tax";

(iii)

the audited information in the Risk Management Report on pages 49 to 85;

in each case, of Santander UK plc’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31
December 2009;
8.2

the
(i)

audited consolidated annual financial statements of Santander UK plc for the
financial year ended 31 December 2010, which appear on pages 149 to 262 and pages
67 to 134 except as marked as "unaudited" on pages 92, 93 and the Operational Risk
and Other Risks sections on pages 121 to 123, and which include the information
specified in the tables below;

(ii)

the unaudited table titled "Trading profit before tax by segment" on page 25 within
the "Business Review – Divisional Results"; and

(iii)

the audited information in the Directors' Report on pages 141 to 143;
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in each case, of Santander UK plc’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31
December 2010;
8.3

the
(i)

audited consolidated annual financial statements of Santander UK plc for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011, which appear on pages 157 to 274 and pages
62 to 135 except the Operational Risk and Other Risks sections on pages 128 to 134,
and which include the information specified in the tables below;

(ii)

audited information in the Balance Sheet Business Review on pages 44 to 48;

(iii)

audited information titled "FSA Remuneration Disclosures" on pages 152 to 156;

(iv)

the section entitled "Bank of England Specified Liquidity Scheme" on page 58; and

(v)

audited information in the Directors' Report on pages 143 to 145;

in each case, of Santander UK plc’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31
December 2011;
8.4

the unaudited interim financial statements of Santander UK plc for the six month period
ended 30 June 2012, which appear in the half yearly financial report of Santander UK plc for
the six month period ended 30 June 2012, which includes the information specified in the
table below; and

8.5

pages 21 to 23 (inclusive) of the unaudited Quarterly Management Statement of Santander
UK plc for the nine month period ended 30 September 2012.

9.

Santander
UK plc

For year ended
31 December
2009

For year ended
31 December
2010

For year ended
31 December
2011

For six-month
period ended
30 June 2012

Balance
Sheet

Page 103

Page 153

Page 161

Page 128

Income
Statement

Page 102

Page 152

Page 160

Page 127

Cashflow
statement

Page 105

Page 155

Page 163

Page 130

Accounting
Policies and
Explanatory
Notes

Page 109

Page 159

Page 167

Page 131

Statement
that these
accounts have
been audited
and auditors'
opinion

Page 100

Page 150

Page 158

N/A

Legal and Arbitration Proceedings
Other than as disclosed in Part G paragraph 6.1, there have been no governmental, legal or
arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of
which Santander UK plc is aware) during the previous 12 months, which may have or had, in

0030144-0000332 ICM:16026328.16

125

the recent past, a significant effect on the financial position or profitability of the Santander
Group.
10.

Financial Position
The consolidated annual financial statements of Santander UK plc and Abbey National
Treasury Services plc for the years ended 31 December 2009 were prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). In the absence of authoritative
guidance under IFRS for accounting for transactions between entities under common control,
the transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc shares to Santander UK plc by Banco Santander
effected on 9 January 2009, has been accounted for in a manner consistent with group
reconstruction relief under UK GAAP. As a result, the transfer of Alliance & Leicester plc
has been accounted for by Santander UK plc with effect from 10 October 2008, the date on
which Banco Santander acquired Alliance & Leicester plc. The consolidated balance sheet
and related notes of the Santander Group at 31 December 2008 have been updated to reflect
this treatment in the annual financial statements of Santander UK plc for the year ended 31
December 2009. For the avoidance of doubt, this treatment is not reflected in the consolidated
balance sheet and related notes of the Santander Group contained within the audited
consolidated annual financial statements of Santander UK plc in its Annual Report and
Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2008 (please see note 47 to the financial statements
in Santander UK plc’s Annual Report and Accounts for the financial year ended 31 December
2009, which is incorporated by reference into this document at paragraph 8 above).
There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of Santander UK plc
and its subsidiaries which has occurred since 30 September 2012, being the date of
publication of the unaudited Quarterly Management Statement of Santander UK plc.
There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of Santander UK plc since 31
December 2011, being the date of its last published audited financial statements.
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PART G
INFORMATION ON ABBEY NATIONAL TREASURY SERVICES PLC
1.

Statutory Auditors
The auditors of Abbey National Treasury Services plc are Deloitte LLP of 2 New Street
Square, London, EC4A 3BZ. Deloitte LLP are members of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

2.

Information about Abbey National Treasury Services plc

2.1

Abbey National Treasury Services plc is a public limited liability company incorporated and
registered in England and Wales under the Companies Act 1985. Abbey National Treasury
Services plc was incorporated on 24 January 1989 with registered number 2338548 and is
authorised and regulated by the FSA and is an authorised person with permission to accept
deposits under FSMA.

2.2

Abbey National Treasury Services plc is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Santander UK
plc, which has given a full and unconditional guarantee in respect of the liabilities of Abbey
National Treasury Services plc. Banco Santander and its subsidiary company, Santusa
Holding, S.L., own the entire issued ordinary share capital of Santander UK plc. Banco
Santander is able (subject to any regulatory constraints or considerations) to control Abbey
National Treasury Services plc by procuring that Santander UK plc's votes at general
meetings of Abbey National Treasury Services plc are exercised in a particular way.

2.3

Abbey National Treasury Services plc's registered office is at 2 Triton Square, Regent's Place,
London, NW1 3AN. The telephone number of its registered office is +44 (0)870 607 6000.

3.

Business Overview
Abbey National Treasury Services plc's business divisions consist of:


Corporate Banking – offers banking services principally to small and medium-sized
(SME) UK companies and also to mid and large corporate clients. It also contains
certain legacy portfolios in run-off.



Markets – provides financial markets sales, trading and risk management services.



Corporate Centre – (formerly known as Group Infrastructure) consists of Asset and
Liability Management (ALM), which is responsible for Santander Group's capital,
and certain of Santander Group's non-core and legacy portfolios being run-down and
/or managed for value.

4.

Directors

4.1

As at the date hereof, the following are the members of the board of directors of Abbey
National Treasury Services plc:
Position
Directors

Name
Luis De Sousa
David Green
Stephen Pateman

4.2

The business address of each of the above is 2 Triton Square, Regent's Place, London NWI
3AN with telephone number +44 (0)870 607 6000.

4.3

None of the above has any activities outside the Santander Group which are significant within
the context of the Santander Group.
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4.4

There are no potential conflicts of interest between the duties to Abbey National Treasury
Services plc of the persons listed as members of the board of directors above and their private
interests and or other duties.

5.

Financial Information
Abbey National Treasury Services plc's audited consolidated annual financial statements for
the years ended 31 December 2009, 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011, which appear
in the Annual Report and Accounts of Abbey National Treasury Services plc for the years
ended 31 December 2009, 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011, respectively, and the
unaudited interim report and financial statements of Abbey National Treasury Services plc for
the six-month period ended 30 June 2012, which appear in its unaudited half yearly financial
report for the six-months ended 30 June 2012, are hereby incorporated by reference and are
available for inspection at the address referred to in Part J of this document, and include, on
the pages specified in the table on the following page, the following information:

Year ended
31 December
2009

Year ended
31 December
2010

Year ended
31 December
2011

Six-month
period ended
30 June 2012

Balance Sheet

Page 13

Page 14

Page 14

Page 9

Income
Statement

Page 12

Page 13

Page 13

Page 8

Accounting
Policies and
Explanatory
Notes

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 11

Statement that
the accounts
have been
audited and
auditors'
opinion

Page 11

Page 12

Page 12

N/A

6.

Legal and Arbitration Proceedings

6.1

A claim was filed against Abbey National Treasury Services plc by tax authorities abroad in
relation to the refund of certain tax credits and other associated amounts. A favourable
judgement at first instance was handed down in September 2006, although the judgement was
appealed against by the tax authorities in January 2007 and the court found in favour of the
latter in June 2010. Abbey National Treasury Services plc appealed against this decision at a
higher court and in December 2011 the tax authorities confirmed their intention to file the
related pleadings. Although the matter remained in dispute, in January 2012, following a
demand from the tax authorities, Abbey National Treasury Services plc paid £67m, for which
it already held a provision. The higher court hearing took place in April 2012 and the
judgement found in favour of the tax authorities upholding their appeal. There is no recourse
for further appeal.

6.2

Other than as disclosed in the paragraphs above, there have been no governmental, legal or
arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of
which Abbey National Treasury Services plc is aware) during the previous 12 months, which
may have, or have had in the recent past, a significant effect on Abbey National Treasury
Services plc’s or Abbey National Treasury Services plc’s group’s financial position or
profitability.
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7.

Financial Position
There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of Abbey National
Treasury Services plc and its subsidiaries which has occurred since 30 June 2012, being the
date of the unaudited half yearly financial report of Abbey National Treasury Services plc.
There has been no material adverse change in the prospects of Abbey National Treasury
Services plc since 31 December 2011, being the date of its last published audited financial
statements.
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PART H
INFORMATION ON ANSON FUND MANAGERS LIMITED
Anson Fund Managers Limited is a company incorporated in Guernsey on 23 October 1998 with
limited liability with registered number 34570. The registered office of Anson Fund Managers
Limited is Anson Place, Mill Court, La Charroterie, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 1EJ.
Anson Fund Managers Limited is licensed in Guernsey by the GFSC to perform specified restricted
activities, including those required to permit Anson Fund Managers Limited to act as Administrator
and Secretary of the Company. The assets held by the Company for the account of each Cell are not
required to be held by a custodian. Accordingly, no custodian has been appointed and Anson Fund
Managers Limited shall be responsible for any administrative duties in respect of such assets.
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PART I
INFORMATION ON ANSON REGISTRARS LIMITED
Anson Registrars Limited is a company incorporated in Guernsey on 7 June 2000 with limited
liability with registered number 37054. The registered office of Anson Registrars Limited is Anson
Place, Mill Court, La Charroterie, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 1EJ.
Anson Registrars Limited is licensed by the GFSC to perform specified restricted activities, including
those required to permit Anson Registrars Limited to act as Registrar, Transfer Agent, Paying Agent
and Receiving Agent of the Company.
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PART J
DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION
1.

Documents Available for Inspection
Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at the registered office of
the Company during normal business hours on any week day (Saturdays, Sundays and public
holidays excepted) from the date of this document until the close of the relevant Offer for
Subscription:

1.1

the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;

1.2

the memorandum and articles of association of the Guarantor;

1.3

the memorandum and articles of association of Santander UK plc;

1.4

the memorandum and articles of association of Abbey National Treasury Services plc;

1.5

the material contracts which are summarised in this document in paragraph 7 of Part D and
paragraph 17 of Part E, being:
1.5.1

the Listing Sponsor's Agreements;

1.5.2

the Investment Management Agreement;

1.5.3

the Administration and Secretarial Agreement;

1.5.4

the Registrar's Agreement;

1.5.5

the Marketing Agreement;

1.5.6

the ISDA Master Agreements;

1.5.7

the Guarantee Facility Agreements;

1.5.8

the Guarantee Claims Deeds;

1.5.9

the Deeds of Guarantee;

1.5.10 the Charge Agreements;
1.5.11 the Conditional Share Subscription Agreement;
1.5.12 the Deposit Agreement;
1.5.13 the Series Deeds; and
1.5.14 the Determination Agency Agreements;
1.6

the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial years ended 31 March 2010,
31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012, respectively;

1.7

the unaudited half-yearly financial report of the Company for the period ended 30 September
2012;

1.8

(i)

the
(a)

audited consolidated annual financial statements of Santander UK plc for the
financial year ended 31 December 2009, on pages 99 to 188;
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(b)

the audited information in the Directors' Report on page 92, except the
paragraph entitled "Bank Payroll tax";

(c)

the audited information in the Risk Management Report on pages 49 to 85;

in each case, of Santander UK plc’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended
31 December 2009;
(ii)

the
(a)

audited consolidated annual financial statements of Santander UK plc for the
financial year ended 31 December 2010, which appear on pages 149 to 262
and pages 67 to 134 except as marked as "unaudited" on pages 92, 93 and the
Operational Risk and Other Risks sections on pages 121 to 123;

(b)

the unaudited table titled "Trading profit before tax by segment" on page 25
within the "Business Review – Divisional Results"; and

(c)

the audited information in the Directors' Report on pages 141 to 143;

in each case, of Santander UK plc’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended
31 December 2010;
(iii)

the
(a)

audited consolidated annual financial statements of Santander UK plc for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011, which appear on pages 157 to 274
and pages 62 to 135 except the Operational Risk and Other Risks sections on
pages 128 to 134;

(b)

audited information in the Balance Sheet Business Review on pages 44 to 48;

(c)

audited information titled "FSA Remuneration Disclosures" on pages 152 to
156;

(d)

the section entitled "Bank of England Specified Liquidity Scheme" on page
58; and

(e)

audited information in the Directors' Report on pages 143 to 145;

in each case, of Santander UK plc’s Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended
31 December 2011;

1.9

(iv)

the unaudited interim report and financial statements of Santander UK plc for the six
month period ended 30 June 2012, which appear in the half yearly financial report of
Santander UK plc for the six month period ended 30 June 2012; and

(v)

pages 21 to 23 (inclusive) of the unaudited Quarterly Management Statement of
Santander UK plc for the nine month period ended 30 September 2012;

(i) the audited consolidated annual financial statements of Abbey National Treasury Services
plc for the financial years ended 31 December 2009, 31 December 2010 and 31 December
2011 which appear in the Annual Report and Accounts of Abbey National Treasury Services
plc for the financial years ended 31 December 2009, 31 December 2010 and 31 December
2011, respectively; and (ii) the unaudited interim report and financial statements of Abbey
National Treasury Services plc for the six-month period ended 30 June 2012, which appear in
the half yearly financial report of Abbey National Treasury Services plc for the six month
period ended 30 June 2012;
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1.10

(i) the audited consolidated annual financial statements of Santander Guarantee Company for
the financial years ended 31 December 2009, 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011; and
(ii) the unaudited interim report and financial statements of Santander Guarantee Company
for the six-month period ended 30 June 2012;

1.11

the letters of appointment of the Directors of the Company;

1.12

the Application Form; and

1.13

this Registration Document.

1.14

Copies of this Registration Document, each Relevant Securities Note, each Relevant
Summary and any supplement thereto will also be available on the website of the Company at
http://www.anson-group.com/GIPL/GIP1PCCL.html.
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